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Message from Managing Director

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors and the Management Team are
privileged, once again, 1o present your Bank's Annual
Report for the Financial Year 2013-14

The year 2013-14 was especially significant for all of us in
the Bank as 1t completed 20 years of operations 1n the
banking industry

Dunng that financial year, your Bank adopted several
coping actions to counter the weakened operating
environment and strengthen its platform for profitable
growth and improve on key success parameters viz, Net
Profit, Operating Profit, Net Interest Income, Fee Income,
Return on Assets and Return on Equity The Bank's Loan
Book remained healthy with stable Gross and Net
Non-Performing Assets

Six years running, thus, indusind Bank has delivered
consistently robust growth and earnings

The Bank's customer centric stance has continued to help
maintain its growth trajectory Keeping in ine with the themse of ‘Responsive Innovation’, which is deeply
ingrained in our business model, the Bank continued to introduce market-first products - the latest being
'My Account My Number' which enables customers to choose the Bank Account Numbers of their choice

The Bank's expanding network has been one of 1ts major strengths, as on March 31, 2014, Indusind Bank
had 602 branches and 1110 ATMs spread across 404 geographical locations of the country with
representative offices m London and Dubai, enablng the Bank to cater o the evolving financial
requirements of its customers

The Bank also won several awards and accolades, it was awarded ‘Fastest Growing Mid-Size Bank' from
Business World-PwC Best Bank Survey 2013, the ‘Best Private Sector Bank - Prionty Sector Lending’ at
Dun & Bradstreet - Polans Financial Technology Banking Awards 2013 and was also awarded with ‘Best
Imtiative of the Year-TACK India, Indus Pro’ at the Global World Congress In addition, Indusind Bank
received the ‘Financial Inclusion Payment Systems Award 2013 organized by Elets Technomedia, also
‘Best Bank Award for Customer Management and Business Intelligence Initiatives’ -~ Among Small Banks
2012-13 by IDRBT

As a committed practioner of Green Banking and Sustainabihty, the Bank continues to adopt supportive
practices In recognition, it has also been conferred with ABP News Global CSR Excellence & Leadership

Awards in the category ‘Best Use of CSR Practices in Banking & Finance' These awards are bestowed for
the Best innovative use of CSR Practices in Banking & Finance at the Global CSR Excellence & Leadership

Awards 2013

| place on record my sincere appreciation of the contribution of all our employees and also thank all
stakeholders, especially our Board of Directors for supporting us This has helped your Bank achieve the
level of performance as reflected In this report

| look forward to being in touch with you and sharng my perceptions in future also, at the coming AGM

With best wishes to each one of you and your family members
Yours sincerely,

p(____;(t/&

Romesh Sobti
Managing Director & CEO
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Key Business Highlights
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Awards and Accolades

, 'Banking Frontier - Finnovitl Awards 2013’ for
My Account My Number

‘Financial Inclusion Payment Systems Award
2013’ organized by Elets Technomedia

‘Best Inihiative of the Year - TACK India’ at the Global
World Congress held at Athens for Indus Pro

‘Best Private Sector Bank - Prionty Seclor Lending’
at Dun & Bradstreet - Polans Financial Technology
Banking Awards 2013

'Fastest Growing Mid-Size Bank' by
Businessworld-PwC Best Banks Survey 2013

‘Banker of the Year' awarded to Mr Romesh Sobt at
Businessworld-PwC Best Bank Survey 2013

‘Roil of Honour - India’s Best CEOs’ by Busmess
Today-KPMG India Listing of India’s top 100 CEOs

T Excellence Award' by VMware, for Virtualisation of
Cnitical business apphcations

- CISO - Awarded one of the Top 100 Chief Information

. Secuniy Officer awards 2014

‘Best Bankers Awards 2013 - Best Banker ~ Growth,
Mid-Sized' by The Sunday Standard

'Best Bank Award' - Customer Management and
Business Intelligence Imbatives among Small Banks
2012-13 by IDRBT

‘Best Use of CSR Practices in Banking & Finance’ at
ABP News Globa! CSR Excellence & Leadership
Awards 2013

‘Mixed Media Category' for My Account My
Number, awarded by Paul Writers, at the Marketing
Hall of Fame 2014

‘5th Retail Banker International Asia Tratiblazer Summit’
- Excellence i Customer Centricity & Dynarmic Third

" Party Partnershups, for Super Saver Packs

‘Best use of Technology in Training and E-Learning
(1st Runners-up) at 1BA Banking Technology Awards
2012-13

‘Infosec Maestros Award’ by Infosecunty, for information
security inliatives at the Bank
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Managing Director & CEO
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Driving the future with smart innovations

During the year 2013-14, Indusind Bank drove the wheels of
innovation through initiatives that helped widen the brand
visibility. Your Bank tcok an interesting and inngvative year
long multimedia communication approach by making it more
relatable and contemporary.

Strengthening its position as a leading banking institution, your
Bank laid focus on having well-thought out marketing
campaigns coupled with below-the-line activities at branch
levels. which enhanced your Bank's image and recall value.

 (UACCOUNT
el BNE (T N U M B E R

My Account My Number

In line with the theme of Smart

innovation, indusind Bank
launched a pioneenng
proposition service called

‘My Account My Number’ - A
unique marketing initiative that
gave people mare power and
personalization when it came 1o
selecting their Bank Account
Number Customers could
choose 10 out of 12 digits of
their Account Number based
on their preference for favorite
numbers of their choice The
novelty and simplicity of this
innovation helped build a
stranger, personalized
assoclation in the minds of the
customers

Jo build on this innovation,
indusind Bank adopted a 360
degree integrated marketng
approach Television, QOH,
Radio, Digital and Cinema were
leveraged for mass awareness
One such interesting channet of
communication which your
mmmmump i
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applhcation uploaded on the
Bank's Facebook page This
apphication enabled users o
know their iucky number, In turn
encouraging them to ocpen a
Bank account with the same
number The interactivity and
novelty of the apphcation
helped the Facebook fanbase
increase manifold, garner
rave reviews from onling users
and thereby brought in
tremendous visibility

Indusind Cybercity

Another feather to the cap, your
Bank acquired the ‘Naming and
Branding Rights’ of a Rapid
Metro Station in Gurgacn called
as the 'Indusind Cybercity’
Your Bank has become the First
Bank in India to have a Metro
Station named after it thus
making this an excellent
example of transit mode of

advertising in the couniry
Indusind Bank Cybercity
station has a rich aesthetic and
artistic feel to 1t as the intenors
and extertors of the station don
the brand colours conveying
the inherent brand values of the
Bank The grand ilustrations at
the station have brought alive
the great heritage of one of the
oldest cwvilisations of the world-
the Indus Valley civilisalion
from where the Bank dernives
s name and inspiration

Indusind

Cybercity




Indusind Bank |

Induslndg Cybercity - Photo Gallery
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Induige Credit Card

Strengthening Indusind
Bank’s product innovation,
your Bank launched a
customer centric product
‘Indusind Bank Indulge
Credit Card’, a marquee
credit card designed for the
distinguished individual
who wields influence and
power In the social
hierarchy The exciusive
credit card comes with
‘no-preset-spending-himit’
that gives the cardholder
additional spending
flexibilily over and above
his credit hmit depending
on his past spends and
payment history
Considering the exclusivity
of the product, your Bank
1ailor made marketing
campaign i1n select print
media and used direct
mailing activity to reach out
to i1ts target audience

Now n your
Neighbourhood -
Reaching out to Vadodara

Indusind Bank captured the
imagination of the people of
Vadodara with the campaign
“Now in your
Neighbourhood” through a
host of innovative
activations including canter
road shows, engagement
programs at malls and
popular hubs, display
hoardings, bitlboards, and a
radio campaign Built around
the philosophy of “Apne
chaha, Hamne kiya", the
mamn attraction of this
campaign was ‘My Account
My Number’ Select
branches of Vadodara
invited Numerologists who
helped customers to know
their Lucky Numbers which
they could use to open therr
Bank Account This
campaign further fuelled a
series of customer
engagement programs

Online Account Opening

in yet another progressive
move that benefi
customers, and helps them
make the most of their time,
indusind Bank enables
onhne bank account
opening Customers can
also enjoy a host of other
benefits, including choosing
an account number of their
own choice, and
personahsing their debit
and credit cards with their
own photograph

Employee Engagements

This year Myldea iniiative
has gathered momentum and
has grown exponentially

The novel concept which
started 1n 2008 has been a
forefront of various innovative
solutions which have
henefited the Bank It 1s one
such long standing inttiative
which encourages the
employees to contribute
new 1deas

The new Myldea portal has
enabled real time tracking of
the 1deas submitted This
year the portal has received
around 800 new ideas This
15 a very powerful too! which
engages the employees and
helps the Bank to endorse
the Responsive Innovation
theme internally
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Building a Sustainable World

Sustainability and green living form an integral part of the
business values at Indusind Bank. Your Bank actively
participated in building a better environment and reducing the
carbon footprint through various activities and practices which
not only resulted in reduction of costs but also witnessed
several successes in terms of sustainable development.

Sustainability as a 8
Way of Life 8

Your Bank believes that
sustainability 1s not just an act
of thinking but an act of hving
It 1s this belief that has made
sustainabiity a part of your
Bank's corporate DNA
Incorporating sustamnable
practices In every aspect of
day-to-day work not only
benefits the planet, but It also
impacts people including
employees, consumers,
partners and the local
communities where your Bank
does its business For your
Bank, sustamabshity means
bwlding a successful
business and creating
long-term value for people,
customers, shareholders and
the wider community Here are
some steps that your Bank
has taken n that direction

Energy

Power Management Varnous
policies were implemented
across the grganisation on
10,739 desktops and laptops
These polcies have resulted
in reduction of power
consumption by about 27 87
kWh per machine per annum
This has translated in to
savings of approximately

¥ 25 15 lakhs and reduction In
CO:z emission by about 273
tonnes In the year 2013-14

Server Virtuahsation Over ~ ! 7
400 Servers have been 7~ -
virtualised on 47 physical -
servers resulting in
cumuiative savings of 1,248
lakhs 1n capex cost so far and
electricity savings of T 99 15
lakhs per year

Thin Computing Continued
adoption of low power
consuming thin clients
resulted in savings of 300
kWh per year with a saving of

7 2,380 per user per year
towards the cost of power O

Solar Powered Premise
21,679 kWh of energy was
generated through solar
Iinstallation at Bank's owned
premise at Karapakkam,
Chenna which was a pilot
project for a larger power
output This installation
resulted with a saving of ¥ 1 3
lakhs 1n commercial electncity
and saving of ¥ 2 & lakhs
DG power

ATMs with Solar Panels Solar
panels on 100 ATMs resulted

~ In generation of energy

equating 1,23,241 kWh with a
saving of T 7 60 lakhs In
commercial efectricity and
savings of ¥ 14 78 lakhs in DG
power A total of 1,46,655
kilos of carbon was mitigated

Timers In Signages Signages
are switched off without [m=1
manual intervention through ﬂ
timers at branches across
india, preventing wastage of

)

D




glectricity This resulted not
only in saving energy but also
substantial reduction in costs
during 2013-14 In prominent
branch locations wherg
signages have to be It
throughout the night, LED
lights have been used

Power Saving Devices
Installation of power saving
devices at select branches
and otfices has resulted In
reduction In the consumption
of electricity and In savings of
approximately £ 50 lakhs (on
an average) in electricity
costs during 2013-14 a)

-~y
Paper %

By switching to sco-friendly
A4 paper made from Bagasse
instead of wood pulp and
centralised supply, the Bank
has improved the logistics
and generated cost savings

Deploying paperless fax
servers avolded printing
about 90,000 sheets of

iIncoming fax messages

The Bank uses staie-of-the-art
Hand-Held Terminals for the

loan collection in all regrons
The use of these devices has
significantly reduced the
amount of paper needed for

the printing of recetpts Q

Staff Awareness

Employee Engagement - A
Successful Strategy
Environmentally educated
employees can improve
business profitability and help
an entity retain skilled
wWOorkers, improve communty
and customer relations and
reach 1ts sustainability goals

The Bank's efforts on this front
have shown good resuits, with
reduction in energy and paper
consumption The
Adopt-a-Plant & Tree
Plantation programmes and
innovative waste management
Inhiatives were planned,
execuied and monitored by
Green Champilon empioyees

The programme has
increased employee pride
and commytment, giving the
workforce a compelling new
way to connect with the Bank
as well as the customers

Loocking at the enthusiastic
participation by employees In
CSR Iniatives, the Bank

Rg >
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recently created a new line of
employees to support the
Green Champions, called
“Green Commandos" More
than 1,300 employees have
registered as Green
Commando, emphasizing the
fact that Sustainability has
been steadily dnlled into the
core of the Bank iAo

Events/ Campaigns ‘Q‘.‘

World Environment Day
World Environment Day was
celebrated In branches
across the country on June 5,
2013, to propagate the
message of conservation of
resources and preservation
of nature

The Bank sponsored the 5th
National Cricket Tournament
for Binds In association with
Blind Welfare Organization to
support them for National
Cricket tournament Almost
120 wisually challenged
players from 8 Slates
participated ta celebrate the
game of cricket

The Bank encouraged
employees to participate in
vartous marathons to promote
the “Hum aur Hanyal”
initiative, e g Delhi Half
Marathon, Mumbai Marathon
and Terry Fox Run
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QOn the eve of Christmas,

. the Bank organized an
X’'mas sale at its Andhen
office with ‘SUPPORT’, an

. NGO The Bank helped

! children from the NGO to
self the articles made by
them, viz , Handmade
Bags, Cloth Pouches, Key
Chains, Earrings, Table
Mats, etc

i Environment
Conservation Inihatives

Managing e-waste Your Bank
launched a new bank-wide
e-waste Cleanup campaign
called Operation Tsunami
The e-waste Collection Drive,
imtiated from Corporate
Office, was managed by the
Green Champions Nearly
21,455 35 kilos of e-waste
was coliected and disposed

' through Government
authorised recyclers

Managing Paper Waste The

' Bank partnered with ITC in

Southern India for collecting

of waste paper and recycling

it, a small but significant step

towards environment

; protection The Bank
continues to focus on its

i ‘Adopt-a-Plant' and 'Tree

. Piantation' campaigns at

i various branches, which has

' not only generated business

but also helped in

1 brand-buillding

Sustainabilily Week The
Corporate Global Market
Operations(CGMO)
Department of the Bank
celebrated Sustamnability
Week across India during the
FY 2013-14 Vanous activities
were conducted throughout
the week which included
e-learning, e-statement
registration, saving paper,
mandatory 2 side print
settings across all CGMO
locations During the week
expert speakers shared key
insights on various topics like
Water Conservation, Blood
Disorder Thalassemia among
others

Promoting e-statements
e-statement drive called
Mission 41,700 was launched
to encourage customers to
switch to e-statements
National e-statement Day was
celebrated across the Bank
on January 24, 2014

Tree Plantations Your Bank
has institutionahized
Adopt-a-plant program that
includes the distribution of
free saphngs lo employees
and customers We have
partnered with several local
communities for
tree-plantation and sapling
distribution activities

Carbon Disclosure Project
Your bank participated as a
signatory from india in the
Carbon Disclosure Project
(CDP) - a global imtiative for
sustainable development

Donations

The Bank donated AIr
Conditrioners to § N Medical
College in Agra for the
Intensive Care Unit of the
Hospital

The Bank also donated to
Chief Minister's Reliet Fund
during the Uttarakhand
natural calamity The Bank
also supported Helpage India
to provide necessary help to
senior citizens with food and
medical supplies during the
said natural calamity

Bank's employees
accompanied the Helpage
team travelling on temporary
roads, jungle terrain and
trekked mountain routes to
reach to the victims of the
tragedy People from nearby
villages came for medical
treatment

Your bank assisted doctors In
being able to help around 150
patients with free medicines
and doctor's consuitation

€2
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT: 2013-14

The Bank’s Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenhieth Annual Report covenng business and operations of the Bank,
together with the audited financial accounts for the year ended March 31, 2014

The financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2014 1s summanzed as under

As on
March 31, 2014

(T in crores)

As on
March 31, 2013

Deposits A7, 680,502 29 54,116 72
Advances iy 4 U B5,101 84 44,320 61
Operating Profit {before Depreciation and Provisions and Contingencies) Sl W w “5,3‘5}4 1 1,912 89
Net Profit ‘ " 1,408 02 1,061 18

Despite the deceleration in growth rate in the Indian economy and a challenging macroeconomic environment, the Bank’s
deposits grew during the year by 11 80% and advances increased by 24 33%

The focus durng the year continued to be on increasing earnings from core banking business, and on strengthening the fee
income streams

Operating Profit (before Depreciatton and Provisions and Contingencies) during the year under review rose by 40 84% to
T 2,604 11 crores, from the level of T 1,912 B9 crores in the previous year

The Bank's Net Profit, after considering necessary Provistons and Contingencies and all expenses, was higher by 32 68% at
T 1,408 02 crores as against ¥ 1,061 18 crores in the previous year

Appropriations
The Directors recommend appropnation of Profit as under
(T 1n crores}
Operating Profit before Depreciation and Provisions & Contingencies 2,694.11
Less Depreciation on Fixed Assels 98 15
Less Provisions & Contingencies inclusive of Income Tax 1,187 94
. Net Profit 1,408.02
Profit Brought forward 1,790.93
Amount available for Appropriation 3,198.85
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 352 01
Transfer to Capital Reserve 818
Transfer to Investment Reserve Account 007
Proposed Dividend 184 08
Tax on Dividend 3128
Balance carned over to Balance Sheet 2,623 33
Total Appropriations 3,198.95
Dividend

The Earning per Share (EPS} of the Bank has nisen to T 26 B5 dunng the year 2013-14, from ¥ 21 83 n the prevtous year

vement in performance, the Directors recommend Dividend of ¥ 3 50 per equity share of

Considenng the overall impro
¥ 10/- each for the year ended March 31, 2014 (Dwidend for the year 2012-13 was ¥ 3 00 per equity share of T 10/- each)

The Bank shall pay tax on the amount of Dividend paid, which will be tax-free in the hands of the sharsholders
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Financial Performance

The operating environment In the Indian economy witnessed sigmificant turbulence throughout the year, incorporating
worsening hquidity conditions and inflationary pressures coupled with volatility in currency exchange rates Dunng the year,
RBI increased Repo Rate to B 00% from 7 50% and CRR was kept constant at 4 00%

Dunng the year 2013-14, the Bank continued to leverage s business on the three performance planks of Progductiity,
Profitability and Effictency and focused on scalability, which helped to significantly improve its profitabity

The Bank’s Total Income grew by 21 54% to ¥ 10,144 06 crores from ¥ 8,346 19 ¢rores, backed by improved business

The sharp nse in profitability was the result of a healthy increase in core earrungs of the Bank through Net Interest Income
{N1l} and robust growth in Non-Interest Income streams  Net Interest Income improved by 28 46% to ¥ 2,890 71 croras from
7 2,232 86 crores while Non-Interest Income rose to ¥ 1,890 53 crores from ¥ 1,362 96 crores, a nse of 38 71%

The year 2013-14 has been one of sustamed hardaning of interest rates and shnnking ot lending margins The Yield oh
Advances dropped marginally to 13 56% during the year, the Gost of Deposils reduced to 8 17% as against 8 49% wn the
previous year (decrease of 32 basis points) The Net Interest Margin {NIM) increased to 3 71% dunng the year, as compared
with 3 43% 10 201213, owing lo reduction in the total cost of funds

Fee and Miscellaneous Income at T 1,880 53 crores showed sustained annual growth Core Fes Income such as Commission,
Exchange, Fees on distnbution of third-party products and earnings from foreign exchange business, etc grew by 26 89% to
¥ 1,609 72 crores from the level of T 1,239 34 crores last year

The Bank expanded its branch network rapidly to reach 602 branches, as against 500 branches at the beginning of the year
Revenue per employee dunng the year remained steady at ¥ 31 lakhs

Quality of the Bank’s assets remained stable, with Net Non-Performing Assets (Net NPAs) at 0 33% as at March 31, 2014
from 0 31% last year The Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR}) stood at 70 35%, as compared 1o 70 13% in the previous year

On the llabilities side, the emphasis continued to be on broadbasing the deposit franchise This task was accomphshed
by leveraging the expanded branch network and the pan-india marketing set-up, offering innovative products and service
propositions, sustained promotional campaigns, and enabling customers with alternate channels ke ATMs, Internet Banking,
etc

The Bank introduced several new products and services for its chosen client segments through its Transaction Banking Group
and Global Markets Group Deeper understanding of client requirements and the ability to put technelogy to efficient use
formed the bedrock on which new products and service propositions were created

The Bank kept up its focus on deepening as well as strengthening the fee-based income streams, resulting in a smart growth
in non-interest ncome  Gowng forward, the Bank plans to upscale the growth momentum through further enhancements in
diverse revenue streamns such as Foreign Exchange business, Investment Banking, structured Trade and Treasury products,
distribution of third party products like Mutual Funds and Insurance, international remittances, Bullion operations and
Transaction Banking activites, including the Depository business and the Commadity Market business

Share Capital

Dunng the year under review, the Bank allotted 27,68,778 shares pursuant to the exercise of Options under its Employees
Stock Option Scheme, 2007

Pursuant {o the above, the Paid-up Share Capital and Share Premwum Account increased by ¥ 2 77 crores and ¥ 32 39 crores
respectively

As at March 31, 2014, the Paid-up Equity Capital of the Bank consisted of 52,54,46,484 shares of ¥ 10/- each, excluding
forfeited shares

Tier ll Capital
The Bank did not raise any Tier Il Capital during the year

:
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Capital Adequacy

The Bank is adequately capitalized The Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Bank, calculated as per the New Capitai Adequacy
Framework of RBI, 15 set out below

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013

(Basel I} (Basel II)

i} Capital Adequacy Ratio (CRAR) “%ﬁﬁzﬁ Fa&ﬂé%%%gﬁ 15 36%

1) CRAR- Tier | Capital Ty 13 78%

w) CRAR-Tier Il Capital ST 120 158%
Ratings

Instruments i Rating Agency

Lower Tier || Subordinate Debt program i AN ICRA
Upper Tier Ll Bond program ififz?;;f;?%{}”\ ICRA
Certificates of Depostt TR CRISIL
Lower Tier Il Subordinate Debt program CARE
Short Term Rating India Ratings

E and Research
Lower Tier Il Subordinate Debt program , < " AA India Ratings

el s a0 | and Research

2 “AA-1  India Ratings

Upper Tier 1} Bond program T
Co and Research

Subsidiary Company
ALF Insurance Services Pvt Ltd , the Bank’s subsidiary company which was set up to do the business of Insurance Corporate
Broking, 1s currently under voluntanly winding up, and the process is expectad to be completed scon

Directors
Mr Ajay Hinduja, Non-executive Director, retires by rotaton, and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment

Mr T. Anantha Narayanan was appointed “Additiona) Director” in the category of “Non-Executive Independent” by the Board
at its meeting held en March 25, 2014, and shall hold office up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Upon implementation of the Companies Act, 2013 we f Apni 1, 2014, it1s required to obtan approval of the shareholders for
appoiniment of afl the Independent Directors, viz,, Mr S C Tripathi, Mr Ashok Kini, Mrs Kanchan Chitale, Mr Vijay Vaid and

Mr T Anantha Narayanan, at the ensuing AGM

Dr.T T Ram Mohan, who was associated with the Bank as “Independent Director” since January 16, 2006, ceased to hoid
office we t January 16, 2014, on completion of the maximum permissible tenure of 8 years laid down i Section 10-A(2-A) (1)
of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949

The Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the valuable contributions made by Dr T T Ram Mohan
towards the deliberations in the Board Meetings during his tenure as Director of the Bank

Mr. R S. Sharma, who was assoclated with the Bank as “Independent Director’ since Apnl 19, 2012, expressed his desire

to step down from the Board owing to professional precccupations Mr. Sharma's resignaton was accepted by the Board on

August 7, 2013
The Directors wish to place on record therr sincere appreciation for the valuable contributions made by Mr Sharma towards
the deliberations n the Board Meetings during his tenure as Director of the Bank .

:

+
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Mr. R. Seshasayee, Chairman — Members of the Bark had, in the 19th Annual General Meeting held on June 28, 2013,
approved the re-appointment of Mr R Seshasayee as Part-time Non-executive Chairman for a penod of two years, we f July
24, 2013, subject 1o approval of Reserve Bank of India (RBI)

REI have since approved the re-appointment ot Mr R Seshasayee for a peniod of two years we { July 24, 2013

Mr. Romesh Sobt,, Managing Director & CEO - Mambars of the Bank had, In tha 19th Annual General Mesting held on Juna
28, 2013, approved the re-appointment of Mr Romesh Sobtl as Managing Director & CEOQ for a penod of three years we f
February 1, 2014, subject to approval of RBI

RBI have since approved the re-appointment of Mr Romesh Sobt as Managing Director & CEO of the Bank for a penod of
one year we f February 1, 2014

Bref profiles of the Diractors seeking appomntment / re-appointment at the ensuing AGM have been furmished in the Report
on Corporate Governance under the section titled "Board of Directors”

Auditors

M/s B S R & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, Stalutory Auditors, who have audited the accounts of the Bank for the year
2013-14, shall retire at the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are ehgible for ra-appomntment

Members are requested to consider their re-appointment and to authorise the Board to fix their remuneration Re-apposntment
of the Statutory Auditors 15 subject to approval of the Reserve Bank of India, which has been recewved

Independent Auditor’s Report

M/s B S R & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, have audied the accounts of the Bank for the year 2013-14, and their Report
1s annexed There are no qualfications in the Auditor's Report

Statutory Disclosures

Information, wherever raquired under the Banking Regulation Act, 1349 or the Companies Act, 1956 as applicable to a
banking company, has been laid out in the schedules attached and forms part of the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss
Account

There are no matenal changes and commiments affecting the financial position of the Bank, which have occurred between
the end of the financial year 2013-14 to which the Balance Sheet relates and the date of this Report

Considenng the nature of actmvities as an entity in the financial services sector, the provisions of Section 217(1)(e) of the
Companies Act, 1956 relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption do not apply to the Bank The Bank has,
however, made optimum use of nformation technology In its operations

The Bank had 15,590 employees on its rolls as on March 31, 2014 The information required under Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the Rules made thereunder 1s given in the Annexure appended hereto and forms part of this
Report in terms of Section 218(1)(v) of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the sharsholders excluding the
aforesaid Annexure Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the said Annexure may write to the Company Secretary
at the Secretanal & Investor Services Office of the Bank

Business Responsibility Report

The Secunties & Exchange Board of india, vide their cwcular dated August 13, 2012 have mandated top 100 listed entities,
wased on their market capitalization on BSE bimited and National Stock Exchange of India Lid, to include the ‘Business
Responsibility Report’ (BRR) as part of the Annual Report Accordingly, the Business Responsibility Report of the Bank has
been enclosed as an Annexure | to this Report

Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Bank had insttuted Employae Stock Option Scheme (ESOS — 2007) to enable its employses, including Whole-time
Directors, to participate in the future growth of the Bank Under the Scheme, Oplions can be granted, which upon exercise
could give nse to the 1ssuance of a number of shares upto 7% of the issued equity capital of the Bank from time to time The
Employee Stock Option Scheme 1s In accordance with the Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 The eligibiity and number of Options to be granted to an
employee 1s determined on the bagis of cntena laid down In the Scheme and 1s approved by the Compensation Committee

of the Board of Directors
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An aggregate of 3,10,18,700 Options, compnsing 5 80% of the Bank’s equity capial, have been granted under the Scheme
Statutory disclosures as required by the SEBI Guidelnes on ESOS are given at ‘Annexure II' in this Report

Corporate Governance
The Bank continues its endeavour 1o adopt the best prevalent Corporate Governance practices

A separate Report on the status of implementation of Corporate Govemance, as required under Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement with Stock Exchanges, I1s included in the section on ‘Corporata Govemnance’ which forms parn of this Report
M/s Bhandan & Associates, Company Secretaries have certified that the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated
i Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges have baen complied with by tha Bank A copy of thewr
Certificate 1s algo attached at ‘Annexure llI" to this Report

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Directors hereby certify and confirm that

(0 in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper
explanaton relating to matenal departures,

(1) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair iew of the state of affairs of the Bank as at March 31, 2014
and of tha profit of the Bank for the year ended on that date,

(m} the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Banking Regulation Act, 1849 for safeguarding the assets of the
Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds and other rregulanties, and

{w) tha Annual Accounts have besn prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis
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The Directors are grateful to the shareholders of the Bank for the trust and confidence reposed by them in the Bank

The Directors are also grateful to the Reserve Bank of India, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Secunties and Exchange Board
of India, Insurance Regulatory and Development Authonty and the Stock Exchanges for the guidance and support extended
by them to the Bank
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B

ANNEXURE | - DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Business Responsibility Report
{(As per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/DIL/8/2012 of August 13, 2012)

Section A: General Information about the Company

—_

Corporate tdentity Number (CIN} of the
Company

L65191PN1994PLCO76333

Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of
Profit After Tax (%)

2 Nams of the Company Indusind Bank Limited

3 Registered address 2401, Gen Thimmayya Road, (Cantonment), Pune ~ 411001

4 Website www.ndusind.com

5 E-maiid cstsupport@indusind.com

& Financial Year reported Apni 1, 2013 — March 31, 2014

7  Sector(s) that the Company i1s engaged | Banking
in (industnal activity code-wise)

8 List three key products/services that the | All banking and para-banking services, ncluding accepting of deposits such
Company manufactures/provides {as in|as Savings Accounts, Current Accounts, Fixed Deposits, and granting of
balance sheet) loans to vanous segments mcluding industnes / business and Retail loans

to iIndivduals, etc

9 Totat number of locations where |B02 branches across India, Corporate Office and Back Offices
business actwity i1s undertaken by the
Company
i Number of Intemational Locations | Representative Offices at Dubai and London

{Provide details of major 5)
n  Number of National Locations 602 branches across India, Corporate Office and Back Offices

10 Markets served by the Company — Local | All
/ State / Natonal / International

Section B: Financial Details of the Company

1 Paid up Capital (INR) 525 45 crores

2 Total Turnover (INR) 1,165,604 crores (Total Business)

3 Total profit after taxes (INR) 1408 02 crores

4 Tolal Spending on Corporate Socialja) Dunng FY 2013-14, the Bank reached out to around 11 mullion

households from the '‘Base of the Pyramid’ (BoP) segment, both through
Direct and Indirect channels, spread across 24 States Out of the same,
the Bank has direcily reached out to about 5,60,000 clients spread across
O States covenng more than 11,000 villages and 182 slums Majonty of
the areas are from under banked districts and distnets which rank low on
the CRISIL Financial Inclusian Index

In tarms of socio-economic composition, 70% of the poputation belong
to Backward Communtties, with SC / ST categories constituting 33% by
number and amount 100% of these loans were to women orgarused in
Joint Liability Gtoups and around 43 4% of the loans were to Agn and Agn-
Allied sectors, with balance towards Micro Enterprises (Manufacturing,
Trade and Service) Over 70% of the loans are for amount below
¥ 15,000/-

Dunng the year, the Bank also spent approx ¥ 30 lakhs on branches
opened In centres where thera are no branches of scheduled commercial
banks

The Bank has spent ¥ 12 69 crores on varnous social and envircnmental
activities dunng the year 2013-14, which 15 0 90% of the net profit

b)

c)
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List of actvities in which expenditure 1n 4
above has been incurred -

a
b
c

Actvities include

Energy conservation

Renewable Energy

Environment

Social Spending

Arts & Culture

Promotion of sports for differently abled persons

-0 a o T p

Section C: Other Details

1 Doesthe Company have any Subsidiary
Company/ Comparies?

Yes Currently under voluntary hquidation

2 Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies
participate in the BR Initiatives of the
parent company? If yes, then indicate the
number of such subsidiary company(s}

Not apphcable

3 Do any other enlitylentties (eg
suppliers, distnbutors  etc)  that
the Company does business with,
participate in the BR mnihatives of the
Company? If yes, then indicate the
percentage of such entity/entiies? [Less
than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%)]

Not applicable

Section D' BR Information

1 Details ot Director/Directors responsible
for BR

a) Detals of the Director/Director
responsible for implementation of
the BR policy/policies

DIN Number 00031034
Name Mr Romesh Sobu
Designation Managing Chirector & CEO

b) Details of the BR head

DIN Number {if applicable)

Name Mr Adwait Hebbar
Designation Head Corporate Services
Telephone number 91 22 6106 9280

e-mail id adwart hebbar @ indusind com

2, Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies {Reply in Y/N)

5, |Questions
Na. Ethics

Business | Product | Wellbaing [Stakeholder

Environ-
Respon- |of employ-| engage- ment Policy
sibility ment

Inclusive
Growth and | Relations
Equitable
Development

3 |Does the policy conform to any national / Y

1 | Do you have a policy / pohcies for Y Y Y Y ¥ ¥ N* Y
2 |Has the policy being formulated in consul- Y Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y
tation with the relevant stakeholders?
Y Y Y Y Y - Y Y

intemational standards? If yes, specty?
{50 words)
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S .

......

Product
Respon-
sibility

Businass
Ethics

Questions

£es

Has the policy being approved by the Y Y Y
Board?

Is yes, has it basn signed by MD/ owner/
CEO/appropnate Board Durector?

Wellbeing {Stakeholder( Human
of employ-

Inclusive |Customer
Policy | Growth and | Relations
Equitable

Environ-
engage- ment

ment

Development

Does the company have a specified com- Y Y Y
mittee of the Board/ Dwractor/ Official to
overses the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the fink for the policy to be
viewed onling?

http. /Awww indusind comicontenthomesimportant-inks/othes-useful-informanon html

Has the policy been formally communi- ¥ . Y
cated to all relevant intemal and external
stakeholders?

Y Y Y . - Y

Does the company have in-house struc- Y Y Y
turs to Implement the policy/policies

Does the Gompany have a gnevance Y - Y
redressal mechamsm related to the policy
| pohcies 10 address stakeholders' gnev-
ances related to the policy / pohcies?

10

Has the company carned cut independ- Y Y Y
ent audit/ evaluation of the working of this

policy by an internal or extemal agency?

If answer to Sr. No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick upto 2 options)

Questions

The company has not understood the
Prnciples

The company 1 no! al a stage where it
finds ttself in a position to formulate and
implemant the policies on specified pnn-
ciples

3 |The company does not have financial or
manpower resources avalable for the
task

4 |1t s plannad to be done within next 6 -
months

5 |1t is planned to be done within the next -
1 year

6 |Any other reason (please specify) .

“The Bank 15 a member of vanous industry forums, where it paricipates and represents its viaws

3.

Governance related to BR

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors,
Committee of the Board or GEQ to assess the BR per-
formance of the Company Within 3 months, 3-6 months,
Annually, More than 1 year

Annually

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Re-
port? Whal 1s the hyperlink for viewing this report? How
frequentty it 15 published?

Yes The Bank publishes Sustainability Report every year
The same shall be uploaded on the Bank's website by

June 25, 2014 ]
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Section E: Principle-wise performance
Principle 1
1 Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover anly the company? Yes/ No.
Does it extend to the Group / Joint Ventures / Supplters / Contractors / NGOs / Others?

Policy relating 1o ethics, bnbery and comuption covers the Bank, as a'so the Suppliers / Contractors / Others, and I1s
embedded in the Bank's Human Resources Policy, Code of Conduct and Discipline, Employee Service Rules, Outsourcing
Agreements with vendors / contractors, etc

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received In the past financial year and what percentage was

sahsfactonily resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
No complaints have been received with respect to ethics, bnbery and corruption
Principle 2

1. Listup to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated sacial or environmental concerns, risks
and / or opportunities.

Not Applicable

2. For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material
elc ) per unit of product {optional).

i. Reduction during sourcing / production / distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the value
chain?

Not Applicable
I Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achleved since the previous year?
Not Applicable
3. Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?
The Bank endeavors to buy environment-fnendly products, even if these are shghtly expensive

i If yes, what percentage of your Inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50
words or so.

The Bank has invested significantly m Green IT by virtualizing servers, installation of low power thin clients, paperless
fax server and power management policles Signages In several branches have been retrofited with timers which
shut down without manual intervention LED lights are used in signages at branches in prominent locations wherein
they are It for a longer duration A4 paper made from Bagasse 1s used instead of paper made from wood pulp The
Bank’s Visiting Cards are pnnted on recycled paper

4 Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, Including
communities surrounding their place of work?

If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?

Not Applicable

5 Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes, what Is the percentage of recycling
of products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide detalls thereof, in about 50 words or so.

The Bank 1s commutted to dispose electronic and toxic waste through authonzed e-waste vendors In 2013-14, the Bank
disposed of 21,455 35 kgs of e-waste The Bank has also tted up with ITC Ltd at a few centres in their ‘Wealth Out of
Waste' (WOW), ITC's waste paper collection arrangement

Principle 3
1 Please indicate the Total number of employees.
Total number of employees s 15,590

:
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Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis
Total number of employees hired on temporary / contractual / casual basis is 1,646
Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees.
Number of permanent women employees is 2,479
Please Indicate the Number of permanent employees with disabilities
Number of permanent employees with disabilities 1s 5
Do you have an employee associatlon that is recognized by management?
There 1s no employee association 1n the Bank
What percentage of your parmanent employees is members of this recognized employee assoclation?
Not Applicable
Please Indicate the number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, Involuntary labour, sexual
harassment in the last financlal year and pending, as on the end of the financial year
: .”. ....' -_.. '...“ l pending
1 Child labour / forced labour / involuntary labour Nil Nil
2 Sexual harassment 10 10
3 Discrirminatory employment Nil Nil

What percentage of your undermentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation training in the last
year?

¢ Permanent Employees
s Permanent Women Employees
e CasualTemporary/Contractual Employees

e« Employees with Disabilities

Total Empl. No. of Total no. of Total Man hrs Average Average Man
Strength programs employees achieved Man hrs days achieved

covered
15,590 73,070 attendees 430,310

Principle 4

1.

Has the company mapped its internal ahd external stakeholders? Yes/No

Yes
Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders.

Yes

Are there any speclal initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marglnalized stakeholders? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or 60

The outreach and level of actvity demonstrates the success of the Bank's mitiative Employees present at different
lacations oversee the implementation of the inclusive program through customer interaction and onthe ground venfication
Through the Bank’s donattion programme, assistance has been extended to SUPPORT, an NGO based in Mumbay, to

rehabiltate street children addicted to drugs

Principle 5

1.

Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group / Joint Ventures
/ Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / Others?

The Policy 1s applicable to the Bank
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2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received In the past financial year and what percent was
satistactorily resolved by the management?

The Bank has not receved any complaints pertaining to human nghts
Principle 6

1 Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers
/ Contractors / NGOs / Others.

While the policy related to Pnnciple 6 1s applied across the Bank, our endeavor is to embrace the vendors who are
engaged In following best environmental practices

2 Does the company have strategles/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as chimate change,
global warming, ete? ¥/ N If yes, please glve hyperlink for webpage elc.

Given the nature of the Bank’s business, we have undertaken intiatives and sustainable practices within the bank such
as

. Green IT

Power Management policies Power management policies were implemented across the organisation on 10,739
desktops and laptops The steps resulted in reduction of power consumption by about 27 87 KWh per machine per
annum This has translated in savings of approximataly ¥ 25 15 lakhs and reductien in CO?2 emission by about 273
tonnes In the year 2013-14

Server Virtualization: 405 Servers have been wirtualized on 47 physical servers, resuiting in cumutative saving of
¥ 1,248 lakhs in capex cost so far and electncity savings of ¥ 99 15 lakhs per year

Thin Computing* Continued adoption of low power consuming thin chents rasulted in savings of 300 kwh per year with
a saving of ¥ 2,380 per user per year towards the cost of power

Paperless Fax Deploying paperless fax servers avoided pnnting about 90,000 sheats incoming faxes dunng the year

ATMs with Solar Panels: Through the installation of 100 Solar ATMs in areas of power shortage, the Bank not only
successiully generated 1,23,241 kWh of solar energy during but also mitigated 14,66,55 kgs of Carbon

Solar-powered Premises 21,679 kwh of energy was generated through solar installation at the Bank's owned premise
at Karapakkam, Chennal, which was the pilot project for a larger power output

Green Procurement. Indusind Bank considers attnbutes such as recycled content and energy efficiency, when interacting
with vendors and suppliers, hence we procure mainly from Onginal Equipment manufacturers who are leading suppliers
in the country and abroad

Power-saving Devices. Efficiency of devices such as Arr-conditioners, Air-coolers, etc was increased by using power-
saving devices, thus reducing the energy consumed

Paper conservation: The Bank has implemented several fechnology solutions to raduce paper consumption, such
as paperless fax, multifunctional devices, document Imaging, etc The Bank has replaced regular A4 papers with eco-
fnendly paper made from Bagasse The Bank participated with ITC to recycle waste paper in a joint programme called
Wealth out of Waste (WOW}, where used paper was collected and recycled into notebooks & stationary, which were then
distnbuted to underprivileged children in municipal schools Along with e-statements, the Bank 1s promoting several other
e-facililes amongst its customers, inctuding the option of making online transfers & bill payments

LED Signages Branches in prominent locations which had signages switched on tor longer duration were changed to
LED hghting

Hand-held Terminals in the Consumer Finance Division Bank's representatives were given Hand-held devices for
Loan collection mechanism in all the regions, which reduced the amount of paper needed for pnnting of recetpls

E-waste The Bank disposed 21,455 35 kgs of E-waste through authorised recycle vendors who follow environment
norms laid down by the Government

3 Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N

The Bank addresses environmental nsks by procunng aco-nendly A4 papers, generation of anergy through nstallation
of solar panels, saving of electncity through implementation of vanous Green IT initiatives, pnnting of Visiing Cards on

recycled paper, etc




1.

.................................

Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide detalils thereof, in
about 50 words or so. Also, If Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?

Not Applicable

Has the company undertaken any other Initiatives on — clean technology, energy efficlency, renewable energy,
etc Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

Yes The Bank has installed a 45KW Solar Installation at Karapakkam in Tamil Nadu Details are avatlable in this Report
under the caption 'Green Prachces towards Sustainability’

Are the Emisslons / Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB / SPCB for the
financial year being reported?

Not Applicable

Number of show cause / legal notlces received from CPCB / SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resalved to
satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year

Not Applicable

Principle 7

Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that
your business deals with:

Yes Few major ones are as under

Confederation of indian Industry (CIl)

Indian Merchants Chambers (IMC)

Bombay Chamber of Commaerce & Industry (BCCI)
Indian Banks Association {IBA)

Inchan Insttute of Banking and Finance (IBF)

f  The Banking Codes & Standards Board of India (BCSBI)

Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public good?
Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas ( drop box: Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive
Development Policies, Energy secunty, Water, Food Security, Sustainable Business Principfes, Others)

No

c o 0 o o

Principle 8

1.

Does the company have specified programmes / Initlatives ! projects in pursuit of the palicy related to Principle
87 If yes details thereof.

Over the last 6 years, the Bank has developed tha ‘Hum aur Hanyal’ program The program has focused on several
areas including the facitaton and implementation of green solutions or projects, a comprehenswe e-learming program
and monitonng evaluation and reporting of the Bank's environmental impact

The Bank has taken several iniatives, pnmary among them being 100 ATMs operated from solar energy, Bank's premises

powered by solar energy at Karapakkam in Chennal, use of environment-friendly A4 paper instead of normal paper and

investments 1n Green IT The impact has been significant in terms of savings in energy consumphon and reduction in

carbon emission

The Bank also encourages employees to support an NGO called 'SUPPORT", which 1s pnimanly engaged in the

rehabiltation of street chitdren addicted to drugs Through SUPPORT, over 30,000 children / youth have benefitted

The Bank has followed the CSR agenda in the following manner

a Caontinued focus on Financial Inclusion, opening of branches in rural and unbanked centres and increase in Priornity
Sector Lending

b  Focus on environment as a major focus of sustainable growth The Bank has spent on Green [T, Renawable Energy,
environment-friendly paper and equipments and practices that reduce consumption of energy and thereby contribute
to a better envirenment

Finaneral incluston is considerad imperative 1n order 1o create a strong and healthy acosystem of tinancial services
for the poor As a first step, the Bank has tied up with select Microfinance Institutions (MFls) as reliable intermedianes

for extending its products and senices
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In order to drill Sustainability into the DNA of the Bank, the Bank has adopted several sustainable practices
encouraging employees to participate in collection of waste paper for recyching, identifying and collecting E-waste
to dispose through Govemnment authonzed vendors, celebrating Sustainability Week within depariments, observing
awareness days like World Environment Day, E-statement Day, E-waste Dnve and completing E-leaming module on
environment

The Indusind ‘Green Champton’ (GC) Programme has been pursued since 2009, with initiatives taken at vanous
pranches / offices of the Bank The GC programmae is driven by a group of 35 employee volunteers working hand-in-
hand with CSR Department A Green Champion must execute 2 actwities in a year, which will include but would not
be hmited to

a ‘Adopt a Plant' campaign

b E-waste collechon dnve

¢ Energy conservation dnve
d ‘WOW: recyching inihative

@ E-learning module

Further to the Green Champion Programme’s success and increase in amployee participation, in order to accommodate
larger employee participation, the Green Champion Programme has an offshoot called ‘Green Commandos’, where
employees contnbute their ime to Bank-initiated CSRA Intiatives monitored and managed by the Green Champions

2. Are the programmes / projects undertaken through in-house team / own foundation { external NGO/government
structures / any other organization?

The programmes / projects / inbatives are undertaken through in-house team, business cortespondent, NGO and
environment advisors

3. Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?

Yes The Bank has undertaken impact assessment for a few of its intiatives by analyzing cost savings, electncity saving,
etc The Bank is also a signatory to CDP reporting that provides an overview of Bank's emission activity based on the
alectnicity consumption, resource consumption and other factors

4. What is your company’s direct contribution to communty development projects- Amount In INR and the details
of the projects undertaken.

Durng FY 2013-14, the Bank reached out to around 1 1 milion hauseholds from the ‘Base of the Pyramid’ (BoP) segment,
both through Direct and Indirect Channals

»  Geographical Spread
a 24 States, 393 Distncts

b Outof the above, Bank has directly reached out to about 5,60,000 clients spread over 9 States and 49 Districts,
covering more than 11,000 villages and 182 slums

¢ Majonty of the above are from under-banked districts and from distncts which rank low on the CRISIL Financial
Inclusion Index

d  100% of these loans were to women organised In Joint Liability Groups (JLG) Various intemational studies
have shown that such loans extended along with other financial services in a responsible manner would help
improve the quality of lives and help empower the women over a pernod of tme It 1s the Bank’s endeavour to
deepen the engagement with these clients to help them move out of poverty and improve their standard of Iving
on a sustainable basis

» Soclo/ Economic Status
e Outof the above, 70% of the population belongs to Backward Communities, with SC / ST categones constituting
33% by number and amount

f  About 43 4% of these Ioans balong to Farm sector {Agr and Agn Allied), and the balance to Micro Enterpnses
(Manufactunng, Trade and Service) Actwihies covered under these include Vegetable Cultivation, Release of
land Mortgaged with Moneylenders, Borewell digging, Pumpset, Land Development, Livestock loans — Buffalo,

:
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Cows, Sheep-reanng, Kitchen poultry units, etc On the Micro Enterprises activities, v e, Saree Trading, Fruits
Business, Kirana stores, Snacks stores, Road side Dhabas, Cycle reparr shops, Tea Stalls, Agarbathi making,
Taillonng, etc In the process, the Bank has financed more than 1000 activities, thus touching wirtually every
aspect of clients in the BoP segment

g Interms of loan sizes, about 70% of the above loans are < ¥ 15,000

The Bank has spent T12 68 crores on vanous social and environmental actiities dunng the year 2013-14 which 1s 0 90%
of its Net Profit

5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development intiative is successfully adopted by the
community? Please explaln in 50 words, or so.

Following are the key ingredients of successful adoption of community development initiative

» Products suiting the needs: The products offered are unconventional, with flexible repayment frequencies (weekly
{ fortrughtly / monthly)

» Counter-party assessment: Given the lack of proper documentary evidence to establish the income, cash flows to
assess credit-worthiness and the segment's inability to offer collateral, social collateral in the form of joint hability 15
obtaned which has proven to be robust and efficient Thisis supported by mandatory credit bureau enquiry tor every
applicant helping to make an informed credit decision The testimony 1s evident from the fact that the program 1l date
had negligible delinquencies Portfolio At Risk for more than 30 days s 0 16%

% Customer convenience: Considenng the nature of actvilies that the target segmenl 1s engaged In, it requires the
financial and banking sarvices to be available to them at flexible and convenient times The customer service point
{hirst point of contact with client) visits the customers in early morning / late evening, as desired

» Continuous Client engagement The segment lacks financial discipline due to their low hteracy and awareness
levels Continuaus engagement in the form of group meetings at frequent intervals (weekly / fortnightly, monthty) is
made, aligning with the repayments, to instill and reinforce discipline

» Feedback system* Regular chent meetings and visits to houses of the customers helps in effective feedback system
and helps sense early warning signals for taking corrective achion

¥ Appropriate IT systems Complex nature of business and multitude of business models with various service
providers across the country requires a system which 1s flexible, robust and user-fnendly The Bank has in place a
customisad software application which 1s working seamlessly with 9 service providers, with number of transactions
crossing over 13 milhon

» Robust Monitoring Mulh-prenged approach i1s adopted m monitorng The Bank has set up a dedicated Analytcs
Team which does data mining and monitoring, and a Process and Control Team which has on-ground presence with
field staff headquartered in operational locations  In addition to regular supervision, this makes the monitoning robust

» Centralized Processing: Operations are centrahized and are camed out by dedicated staff for financial inclusion
inihatives of the Bank Technology, Systems and controls are well in place to ensure quick turnaround time of the
loan applications recewed The customar on-boarding and KYC venfication i1s done in accordance with regulatory
guidelines for every single member under the Fl inisative

Principle 9

1 What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end o1 financial year
1 56% customer complaints are pending at the end of the financial year

2 Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per
local laws? Yes/No/N AJ/Remarks {additional information)

Not Applicable

3. Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding untair trade practices, !rresponsible
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year.

If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so

No

4. Did your company carry out any consumer survey / consumer satistaction trends?

Yes, the Bank regularly conducts consumer survey / consumer satisfaction trends for its retail products




Indusind Bank |

ANNEXURE Il - DIRECTCORS’ REPORT

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES REGARDING ESOPs ( FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2014)

8 Optio Optio O O Optio Optio Optio Ontio Optio
0 00 + ¢l a (l a 0 d a o d
014 0 0 O b N b Octob 0
0 9 0 g 014 014
1 | No of Options granted 31,018,700 12,500| 175,000| 1,835,000 75,000 22,000 67,500 700,000 176,500
2 [No of Options surrenderad 1,261,939 7.500 - 167,000 2,000 - - - -
(cancelled)
3 | Pnoing Formula Options granted at market prica, excapt some options granted on July 18, 2008, January 28, 2010, February 7, 2011
and January 29, 2014 at discount to market price
4 | No of Options Vested 25,398,482 - - 3000* - - -
5 | No of Options Exercised 13,440,344 - - - - - - -

8 | No of shares ansing as a result (13,448,344 - - - - - -
of exercise of options

7 | Ophons Lapsed N . - - - - - .

8 |Vanation in terms of ESOP NA - B - - - .

9 | Money realised by exercisa of | 10,847 22 - - - - - - .
Options (3 1n lakhs)

10 | Total No of Options in farce 16,307.417 5000| 175,000 1,668,000 73,000 22,000 67,500 700,000 176,500

11 | Employee-wise detalls of
Options granted to

(a) Key managenal personnel - - . - - . .
1 ¢ MD & CEO and SEVPs 14,084,000

Mr Romesh Sobtt (MD & CEQ) - - - - - -| 700,000

{(b) Any other smployee 1,585,000 - - - - - - - .
who recenves a grant in
any one year of options
amounting to 5% or more
of the options granted
duning the year

{c) Idenhtied employees Nil - - . R
who were granted option,
dunng any one year equal
to or exceeding 1% of the
1ssued capital {excluding
outstanding warrants
and conversions} of the
company at the ime of
grant

12 | Diuted Earmings per share The Diluted EPS of the Bank calculated after considening the affect of potanhal equity sharas ansing on account of
(EPS) pursuant to 1ssue of exercise of options is T 26 41

shares on exercise of option,
calculated as per Accounting
Standard {AS) 20- “Earning Per
Share"

:
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Particulars ESOP Options | Options | Oplions | Qptions | Options | Oplions | Options | Options
2007 (As | Granted | Granted | Granted | Granted | Granted | Granted | Granted | Granted

atMarch | on April | onJune |onJuly 18, on on on on an March
31,2014) | 18,2013 | 20,2013 2013 September| October | January | Janvary [ 25,2014
23,2013 | 29,2013 | 29,2014 | 29, 2Di4

13 | Where the company has The Bank has charged ¥ 0 64 crores to the Proft and Loss account being the intnnsic value of stack options
calculated the employee granted for tha year ended March 31, 2014 Had the Bank adopted the Black Scholes mode! based farr valuation,
compensation costusing the  |compansation cost for the year ended March 31, 2014, would have increased by ¥ 32 46 croras and the proforma
ntrinsic vaiue of the stock profit after tax would have been lower by T 32 46 crores On a proforma bagis, the basic and diuted eamungs per

options, the difference between |share would have been T 26 44 and ¥ 26 00, respectively
the employee compensation
cost so computed and the
employee compehsation
cost that shall have been
recogmzed f it had used the
. far value of options, shall be
disclosed The impact of this
difference on profits and on
EPS of the company shall also
be disclosed

14 | Weighted average axercise The weighted average market price of oplions exercised during the year1s 435 49
prices and weighted average
fair values of options shall be
disclosed separately for oplions |The waighted average exercisa price of options granted dunng the year 1s T 454 69
whose exercise pnce either
equals of exceeds or Is less The weighted average fair value of options granted dunng the year Is 157 46
than the market pnce of the
stock

Grants whose Exercise Price is equai to market price

Granis whose Exercise price is less than market price.
The weighted average exercise pnce of options granted during the year 1s T 300

The weighted average farr value of options granted dunng the year is 118975

15 | A descnption of the method and [The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pnicing model
significant assumphions used
during the year to estimate the
fair value of Optiong, including
the following weighted-average

Information

. Risk Free Interest Rate 762% 7 56% 835% B84% 865% 8 86% 8 86% 887%
Expected Life 451 4 51 451 451 451 451 451 451
Expected Volalility 44 19% 42 56% 42 42% 42 80% 42 54% 40 41% 40 1% 40 17%
Dmndend Yield 128% 128% 128% 128% 128% 128% 128% 128%
Pnce of the underlying share 450 35 449 25 46500 386 00 43515 38030 38030 486 10
in the markat at the time of
Options grant

* Accelarated Vasting

.
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ANNEXURE Ill - DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Certificate on compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement.

To the Members of Indusind Bank Ltd

We have examined the comphance of condmions of Corporate Govemance by INDUSIND BANK LTD (“the Bank”) for the year
ended on 31st March 2014 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Bank with the Stock Exchanges

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 1s the responsibility of the Management Our examination was hmited
to procedures and implementation thereol, adopted by the Bank for ensurnng comphance with the conditions of Corporate
Govemance It 1s neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Bank

In our opinion and 1o the best of our Information and according to the axplanations given to us, we cerify that the Bank has
comphed with the conditions of Corporate Governance as shpulatad in the above mentioned Listing Agreement

We further state that such comphance i1s neither an assurance as to the future viabiity of the Bank nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Bank

For Bhandan & Associates
Company Secrelangs

S. N Bhandari
Proprietor
C P 366

Mumbai, May 12, 2014
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Macroeconomic Scenario and Banking Environment

Global economic actvity remained subdued dunng the first half of the financial year as a consequence of tapering
of the asset purchase programme by the US Federal Reserve, and sluggish growth in developed markets
This, coupled with weaker economic output In Emerging Market Economies (EMEs), resulted in portfolio outflows
from EMESs, including India, contnbuting to currency volatiity -

Demand from advanced economes regstered a
marked improvement n the latter half of the financial
year, leading to a pick-up In EMEs growth to clock
4 7% 1n 2013 With the uncertainty ansing from the
US tapenng having dimimished, focus of policy
makers globally has shifted to tackling the residual
nsks to growth and inflatonary pressures faced
mainly by EMEs

On the domestic front, the economy was confronted
with structural headwinds in the form of the ‘twin deficits’
(Fiscal and Current Account) and elevated inflation
levels In order to curb volatility in forex markets, RBI
announced exceplional policy measures in July 2013
These measures Included restncting access to funds
under the Liquidity Adustment Facilty (LAF) while
simultaneously increasing the Marginal Standing Facility
(MSF) rate by 200 bps These steps led to tightening
of lquidity with an overmight spurt In rates, and nse
in Interest rates across the short and long end of the
curve by 200 - 300 bps The measures succeeded In
immediately calming the markets The RBI announced
neéw measures on September 4, 2013 to further
the soothing-effect on the market These included
concessional Swap Windows for FCNR Deposits and
Foreign Currency Loans raised by Indian banks These
measures eased pressure on hquidity and strengthened
the Rupee

Dunng the year, the Government continued its fiscal
consolidation process, resulting n lowenng of FY14
Fiscal Defict at 4 6% of GDP aganst the targeted
4 8% Broader structural issues such as addressing the
subsidy burden and augmenting revenue receipts would
have to be addressed by the political formation brought
to office in General Elections 2014 Unless these broad
1ssues are addressed, fiscal consolidation would have

to be undertaken through ad hoc cuts to spending,
which may impair the productivity of the economy In the
long-run

With the ‘twin-deficits’ (Fiscal and Current Account)
under contral, the RBI adoptad the recommendations
of Dr Urit Patel Committee Report in January 2014
The recommendations included adepting headline
Consumer Price Index (CP1) as the nominal anchor for
Monetary Policy regime and suggested a disinflatonary
‘ghide-path’ (bringing down inflation to 8% by January
2015 and 6% by January 2016) The operative
framework to ensure consistency with the broad policy
theme included introduction of Term Repos of varying
matunitres and Open Market Operattons ({OMOs} being
inked solely to lquidity management CPi inflation
which was above 10% {y-o-y) till Novermber 2013 finally
fell below its double digit mark to 9 87% (y-o-y) for
the month of December 2013 and continued to easé
thereafter, and core TPl inflation had trended down to
below 8% in February 2014

Against such a backdrop, most banks have had to
manage productvity and efficiency levels through
lquidity and resource mobilisation strategies that
proactively factor in the changing market conditions

Given weak growth, manageable Current Account
Deficit, reasonably stable currency and moderating
inflattien as indicated by data over the last couple of
months, no significant tightening 1s expected over the
next few quarters With the Government of Inda’s
commitment to contain Fiscal Deficit below 4 6%,
low GDP growth (4 7% for FY 2013-14), coupled with
possible achievement of 2 disinflationary glide path, the
macro-economic environment may provide headroom
for policy action with a focus on stimulating growth
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Bank’s Performance during 2013-2014

Business Performance

The salient features of the Bank’s operating performance dunng the year 2013-14 are summanzed n the

table below

Interest Earned
I;\terest Expended

Net intere.st Incorﬁe
Other Income

Tota] Operating Income
Operating Iéxpenses excluding Depreciabon
Operating Proé;t before Deprematu;n an~d Provisions
“Less Déprc;c:atton o

'Less ’ Provisions & Contingencies

Net Profit

 In crores)

2012-13
6,983 23
4,750 37
2,232.86

ORI

1,362 96

3,595 82

1,682.93
1,912 89
7343

2.

s T

Despite the tough operating environment that prevailed
through most part of the financial year, the Bank's Net
Profit, after considering all expenses and necessary
Provisicns and Contingencies, roseé by 3268% to
¥ 1,408 02 crores, as against T 1,061 18 crores in the
previous year The Operating Profit(before Depreciation
and Provisions and Contingencies) was higher at
¥ 2,694 11 crores as against ¥ 1,912 89 crores In the
previous year, a nse of 40 84%

Core earnings of the Bank through Net Interest
Income improved by 29 46% to ¥ 2,890 71 crores from
Z 2,232 86 crores Yield on Advances dropped by
21 bps at 13 56%, but Cost of Deposits showed a

Operating
Profit

sharper decrease of 32 bps at 8 17%, helping enhance
the margins Net Interest Margin (NIM) improved to 3 71%
during the year, as compared with 3 43% in 2012-13

Fee and Miscellaneous Income during the year was
Z 1,890 53 crores, as compared to ¥ 1,362 96 crores In
the previous year, showing a strong growth of 38 71%
onh a y-o-y basis Increase In Core Fee Income such
as Commission, Exchange, Fees on distrbution of
third-party products and earings from Foreign
Exchange business, eic was equally robust at
Z 1,609 72 crores as against T 1,239 34 crores, registenng
29 89% growth

Net Interest
Income

Cther
Income
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The Bank expanded its branch network rapidly to reach
602 branches, as against 500 at the beginning of the
year Revenue per employee dunng the year remaned
steady at ¥ 31 lakhs

Qualty of the Bank’s assets was stable, with Net
Non-Performing Assets (Net NPAs) at 033% at
March 31, 2014 as against 0 31% the previous year
Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR) was maintained at
a satisfactory level of 70 35%, compared with 70 13% In
the previous year

Dunng the year under review, the Bank allotted
27,68,778 shares, pursuant to the exercise of Options
under its Employees Stock Opton Scheme, 2007 An
aggregate of 3,10,18,700 Options, compnsing 5 90% of

Consumer Banking

Dunng 2013-14, the Bank’s Consumer Banking

business showed healthy growth in revenue, recording
a y-o-y nse of 36%, on the back of 40% nse in the Retail
Book (Assets + Liabilities) The Bank's strategy of
dnving Savings book growth continued to show results,
with 41% y-0-y growth driven by the segmented client
approach and a growing distnbution network

The Bank continued its business segment led focus
on Current Accounts by enhancing the existing product
sute The ‘Indus Infotech Current Account’' offers a
comprehensive package with the best-in-class banking
products and services that include Current Account,
Trade & Forex, Salary Account and Retall Forex
Services

Bank's deposits grew dunng the year by 11 80%, to
¥ 60,502 29 crores from ¥ 54,116 72 crores CASA
stood at 32 55% of Deposits, from the level of 29 32%
last year The number of branches doubled dunng
the year, and the customer base expanded to about
5 mithion from about 2 million

the Bank's equity capital, have been granted under the
Scheme

Dunng the year, the Bank has received the IBA Award
for “Best Use of Technology In Traming and elLearning”
amongst Pnvate Sector Banks, ACI
Award 2014 for Operational Excellence, Top Green IT
Enterpnse Award 2013, Top 100 CISO Award 2014,
Infosec Maestros Award 2014 in recogmiton of the
Information Security projects implemented by the Bank,
Customer Management & Business Intelligence Award
in the Small Banks category and the VMWARE Award
for vitualization of cntical business applications

Indusind Bank
HOME LOANS

Smarl way o
fund your dreams

The Home Loan distnbution tie-up with HDFC Limited
has been well established now, with their products being
offered across all branches in the country Housing Loan
disbursals have grown by 73% during the financial year
The ‘Loans against Property’ (LAP) book grew by 77%
during the year The Bank launched Business Loans,
Personal Loans and Gold Loans

With the aim of providing best-in-class preducts and
services In the area of Health Insurance, the Bank
tied up with Rehgare Health Insurance to distnbute
comprehensive Health Insurance solutions through the
Bank’s branch network.

The Business Banking Group achieved growth of 35%
in overall assets, with substantial growth of 39% In
Working Capital and of 16% in the Term Loan Book

The Bank continued to scale-up the Credit Card
business by Increasing distnbuton In new cities
and mtroducing new product vanants, including the
“4conia’ range of Cards on the Amencan Express and
VISA networks

The Bank retamed its No 1 ranking in the Prime
Database statistics on public issue collections

Excellence |




Innovations

In line with the theme of “Responsive innovation®, the
Bank launched ‘My Account My Number (MAMN),
which allows a customer

to choose an Account | gy FNWEINIE R}

Number of hus / her choice
when opsning an account My NUMBER

with the Bank This service

proposition has been well received and substantial
CASA deposits mobilization in the year was acquired
under this unique feature

New
Branches
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Distribution

The Bank opened 102 new branches as part of the
strategy of expanding banking network to different
focations In the couniry 160 new branches are
planned to be opened dunng the cumrent year In
select geographies and 250 ATMs to be set up across
key markels

The Bank focused on key service propositions such as
client engagement and operating process management
to enhance the quality of delivery of banking products
and services

Credit Cards

The Credit Cards business made robust strides during
the year 2013-2014 with strong and attractive product
launches, continued robust portfolo performance and
strong increase In key portiolio dnvers such as customer
spends and actvity The business continues to be
profitable and forms a key diversification in the overall
assets strategy of the Bank The business continues
to be scaled up 1n a prudent manner, with measured
growth In new accounts and receivables given the
unsecurad nature of the portfolic

New cities wheren Credit Cards distnbution was
opened up during the year ncluded Ludhiana, Kanpur,
Vadodara, Nagpur and Vishakhapatnam The business
deepened its distnbution capabiliies I the existing
cities, to further leverage the opportunities of cross-sell
to the Bank’s existing and new customers

In addition to the existing 1ssuance capabities on the
Visa and MasterCard brands, the business also started
1ssuing cards on the Amencan Express {Amex} brand
through a strategic tie-up with Amercan Express GNS
{Global Network Services) Issuance onthe Amex brand
ties 1n with the overall affluent segment-targeted growth
strategy

The Bank has successfully managed to grow customer

Deposits

outstandings and spends while controlling nsk Risk
underwnting 1s based on astute use of the CiBIL
database, along with prudent underwniting norms, which
has ensured that the portfolio continues to perform well

The Bank’s Credt Cards are embedded with
micropracessor chips, and are based on the EMV
{Eurcpay, MasterCard, Visa) Issuance platform as
mandated by the regulator

The business continues to be focused on mantaning
enhanced service delvery platforms, and retans
a focus on astute portfolo management through
strong clent engagement programs with a view to
ensuring that qualty of customer service and strong
value propositions forms the key differentiator for the
bustnessin the marketplace




Consumer Finance

The Consumer Finance Diasion (CFD) extends funding
for a wide range of Vehicles / Equipment, which includes
Commercial Vehicles, viz, Heavy, Light and Small
vehicle segments used both for goods and passenger
applications, Passenger Cars, Utiity Vehicles, Two-
wheelers and Construction Equipment such as
Excavators, Loaders, Tippers, Cranes, eic Finance is
extended for both new and used assets in all the above
segments

The year 2013-14 witnessed continued slowdown n the
automobile segment with the overall automobile segment
witnessing growth of a mere 353% Commercial
Vehicles segment declined by 20 23% over the previous
year, Passenger Vehicles declined by 6.05%, Three-
whaelers by 10 90% and only Two-wheelers grew by
7 31% (Source- SIAM data) Construction segment
showed de-growth of 17 4% (Source - Manufacturer
Data)

Aggregate disbursements made dunng the year
2013-14 were T 14,110 crores as against ¥ 14,808 crores
In 2012-13, a drop of 5% New loan accounts numbenng
9 26 lakhs were added in 2013-14 as aganst 8 40 lakhs
In 2012-13 Growth In fresh loans disbursed {10% over
previous year) was thus healthy, in the background of
slowdown n the vehicle segment

The focus dunng the year was on optimizing the product
mix to maximize yields, while mamntaining portfolio
quality despite the industry slowdown Dunng the year
2013-14, Used Vehicles loans amounted to ¥ 2,693

4

i

crores as against ¥ 2,426 crores tn 2012-13, a growth
of 11% Loans for Two-wheelers, the flagship segment
of the year, grew by 24%, with disbursement of ¥ 2,641
crores, up from ¥ 2,134 crores in 2012-13 The number
of loans disbursed grew to 6 79 lakhs from § 75 lakhs

This Dmsion also eamed Commission income of
¥ 23 69 crores, primarily through distnbution of varnous
third-party insurance products through Cholamandam
MS General Insurance, strategic partner of the Bank for
bancassurance under the General Insurance segment

DAL

e gy Hidly) E]
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The operations of this Division are efficiently supported
by document storage and retneval faciity at the
Bank’s Karapakkam Unit (near Chennai), which handles
processing of Loan Documents and mamntenance
of records This Unit handled 15 milion Loan
bookings and closure transactions and 22 milhon
customer service / accounting transaciions dunng the
year 2013-14

The Bank’s Data Centre, also located at Karapakkam,
has state-of-the-art faciliies in terms of data / equipment
protection mecharmsms and 1S equipped with access
nghts with sensors to facilitate morutonng of movement
within the Centre The Data Centre has a backup at the
Bank's G N Chetty Road premises, as part of Business
Continuity Planning

Dunng the year, Hand-Held Terminals were deployed
across India to handle CFD's collection activity,
thus enhancing process efficiencies and faciitating real-
time collection moritonng
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Corporate and Commercial Banking Group

Corporate Banking

Corporate & Investment Banking (C & I} provides
Universal Banking Solutions to large (ndian and
multinational corporates Owver the past 5 vyears,
this unit has become a banker to almost all the well-
known Iindustnal houses of the country and actively
participates in their short-term and longer-term financing
reguirements

The Group has bullt specialist capabiliies n
executing structured solutions in the Trade Finance
and Foreign Exchange hedging for its chents

This has Increased penetration in the top
corporale groups through a vanety of funded and
non-funded transactions including trade products,
foreign exchange products and Investment
Banking activities

The group consolidated on its strong reputation as a
provider of innovative solutions to complex funding
requirements, with quick tumaround times

Public Sector Group

The Group handles relationships with more than
150 Public Sector clients including Maharatnas
and Navratnas

The business showed healthy growth in FY14 This
unilis emerging as one of the major contributors to the
Bank’s revenue The Group successfully executed
several collection mandates for Bonds and Dividend
payments from key Public Sector Units, and has been
appointed as the leading Cash Management Banker
for several of ts chients This business Is also a large
and stable source of habilities for the Bank

Investment Banking (1B)

IB Fee grew by over 74% as a result of strong
ongination skills and disciplined execution

Investment Banking at the Bank has 3 main
businesses Debt Capital Markets (DCM), Advisory
{M&A and Pnivate Equity) and Structured & Project
Finance This positions the Bank as a partner through
the entire ife cycle of growth-onented corporates

The DCM Desk syndicates Project and Caputal
Expenditure loans for corporates acress banks
and financial instituttons This business grew well
as the Bank was successfully able to leverage
relationships and get several prestigious loan
syndication mandates

Structured / Project Finance deals were successfully
executed In sectors like Aviation, Engineerng
Services, Real Estate and Financial Services

The Advisory Business 1s aimed at providing M&A
and Pnvate Equity advisory services

Financial Institutions Group (FIG).

FIG manages relatonships with domestic and
international banks and Financial Institutions

The Group manages a large network of correspondent
banks across the globe These relationships in
different geographies supporn the scaling up of the
Trade and Treasury businesses af the Bank and
ensure seamless execution of cross-border deals
The Group also successfully raised foreign currency
resources from key correspondents which helped
support the lending book in Foreign Currency, thus
supporting the Bank's iquidity needs and faciditating
reduction In costs

Capital & Commodities Markets Division

The Capital and Commodity Markets Division
focuses on serving Captal and Commodiy
Exchanges and thewr Members

The Bank i1s one of the Cleanng-cum-Settlement
Bankars to both NSE and BSE in the Capital and
Futures Market segments and to all the Commodity
and Currency Futures Exchanges in the country

:
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Commercial Banking Group (CBG)

Set up with a view 1o target the ‘sweet spot' of the Indian corporate space, the Commercial Banking Group focuses
on companies In the fast growing mid-market segments

The Bank's imitiatives in Supply Chain Finance, Corporate & SME Agncultural Business Finance and the Inclusive
Banking Division are also housed within this Business Unit

The broad business theme of the Group 1s centred on the following

Offening a fuli bouquet of customized products to clients, for thesr working capital requirements,
Increasing the chient-base to create a sustainable earmings stream for the Bank,
Increased cross-sell through alignment of Relahonship Managers and the Praduct Groups, 1e, the Transaction

Banking, Global Markets and Investment Banking,

Offenng structured solutions through Transactional and Investment Banking products to clents for specific needs,

and

Meeting the stipulated Prionty Sector Lending requirements through its inclusive Business Group and Agn

Business Group inhiatives

The hughlights of the year are

Focus had besen laid on bulding a sustainable
working capital chent portfolio and the year saw
further strengthaning of this posibon The Group's
Loan Book crossed ¥ 11,000 crores

Increase In product offerings to the clients Special
emphasis was laid on concluding structured Foregn
Exchange (FX) as well as Trade Finance offerings
to clients Cash Management, Bond Collections and
Dividend Payments were successfully marketed and
executed, showcasing the Bank’s capabiity to offer
efficient and custormzed solutions

CBG ventured into newer sectors, vz, Real
Estate, Healthcare and Education, where profitable
relationships were built with established players.

The Inclusive Banking arm of the Group was the
Market Leader in launching the “Partnership Model”
with Microfinance Inshtutions providing micro loans
to Weaker Sections of society The program is now
geographically well diversified, and has spread
to 49 districts across 9 States with a network of
206 MF! branches

This Group achively works with more than 9,50,000
clients, alt of which are women, providing them with
micro loans for produclive purposes

For providing specialized services to clients in the
Agniculture segment, an integrated Agn Business
Group was Inihated, compnsing specialized
Agnculture  Finance professionals to cover all

segments of the agnculture finance spectrum In its
first year of operations itself, the Group established
significant presence in Dairy and other allied sectors

The Commercial Banking Group also houses the
Commodity Finance Team, which 1s focused on
specific banking requirements of producers and
traders of agnicultural products and works on a fully
coliateralized basis, managing financing agamnst
36 commodities through a network of 8 collateral
managers in the key agrcultural belts of the country
across 12 States The Group has been able to
place the Bank amongst the Top 3 Private Seclor
Banks under Commodity Finance and the only Bank
with Nil averdues and NPAs

Collateral Managers are engaged n providing Risk
Management Services relating to commodities and
inventones, which includes Field Warehousing
Arrangements, Inventory Audit services, Storage
& Preservation Services, Procurement Services,
Testng & Centificaion Services, etc, thus
helping 1n mitigation of varous nsks associated
with commodities pledged as collateral for the
faciities avaited

The Supply Channel Finance Division had 712
Channel Finance Dealers and 284 Vendors of
automobiles and other products, and provides short
term nventory finance through 36 different specially |
designed programs for indmvidual industries




Global Markets Group

The Global Markets Group (GMG) compnses three main
functions Trading (Interest Rates, Govemment Bonds and
Corporate Bonds), Sales (Clent Risk Solutions across
foreign exchange, interest rates and denwvatives) and ALM
(Asset Liability Management)

The year 2013-2014 has been one of the most volatile
years for both, foreign exchange and interest rates
The vear started with a backdrop of improved economic
conditions that saw the Reserve Bank lowenng interest
rates n the first quarter The second quarter saw a nse
in inflation coupled with a large Current Account Deficit,
leading the Rupee to depreciate against the US Dollar by
29% to an all-time low, from 53 66 to 68 84

Most emarging market currencies also fell n value dunng
the penod that saw varying response from respective
authorties, ranging from capital controls on the one hand
to faking measures to attract relatively longer term flows
on the other

RBI hiked the Marginal Standing Facility (MSF) rate by 200
basts pomnts on July 15, 2013, from 8 25% to 10.25% to
prevent slide of the Rupee The spread of 300 basis points
between MSF and Repo Rate resuited in a spike in short-
term Money Market rates on Soverexgn and Corporate
Debt, the yield on 3-Month Treasury Bills touching 12%
and 3-Month PSU Bank CDs touching 11 85%. RBI also
modified the rules related to CRR maintenance import of
Bullion was restncted and Customs Duty on imports was
increased in steps to 10% from 6% These measures had
an immediate impact on the Rupee, but the effect was
not sustained as the USD / INR level touched a low of
¥ 68 84 by end-August

RBI, with the new Governor In office, announced a slew
of measures on September 4, 2013 including offenng
a concessional Swap Window on FCNR deposits and
Foreign Currency loans {o banks These measures
eased the pressure on lgquidty and strengthened
the Rupee The market however remained listless
in the wake of contnued high inflation and worry on
Current Account Deficit At the end of the financial
year, market sentiments were positive, with increased
Fll iInterest and a relatively stable Rupee and interest rate
regime

The Money Markets and Balance Sheet Management Unit
manages the regulatory requirements

Cash Reserve Rato and Statutory Liquidity Ratio,
Resource Mobilisation and Liquidity Management, Asset
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Liability Management, and Funds Transfer Pricing, In
order to manage and mitigate market and liguidity nsks
in the Balance Sheet

The hquidity and resource mobilisation strategy
proactively addressed to these conditions to have a
significant cost reduction in Bank’s sources of funds with
an optmal mix of Term Deposits, Market Borrowings
and Refinance The drive during September -November
2013 for raising FCNR Deposits and overseas
borrowings increased the liability profile of the Balance
Sheet Through a dynamic management of the liquidity
requirements of the Bank, the Desk could maintain a
better cost of funding the assets

In spite of the progressively hardening interest rate
cycle witnessed dunng the year, nght strategies backed
by accurate short-term interest rate wiews brought
in improvement In the yield of core SLR portfolio and
the Trading Desk managed to pare the detenoration of
porticlio value

The Trading Desk in Rates and Fareign Exchange aims
to maximise the Bank's revenue by taking propnetary
positions In the Rupee market as well as »n G-7
currencies juxtaposed to its timely entry / exit in the
currency and interest rate markets The Trading Dask
had curtailed its back-to-back covering of risk on swaps
and the IRS and MIFOR nsks dunng the year The Desk
also provides competitive rates to the cient-facing team
in order to enhance client value, besides using trading
techniques In Increasing revenues in the inter-bank
market
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The Credit Trading and Sales Desk was set up dunng the
financiat year with a view to provide to chents a complete
suite of Fixed Income products and enhancing trading
profits and fees through arranging and trading Non-SLR
products such as Corporate Bonds, Commercial Paper
{CPs) and Certificates of Deposit (CDs) The Desk
arranged and invested mn varous issuances of bonds
and CPs of corporates

The Desk focused on maximising profits and managing
nsk, rather than targehng league tables Despite a
challenging and highly volatile market dunng the year,
in terms of interest rates and credit spreads, the Desk
has been profitable and managed well the nsk of the
Bank’s Trading Book

The client-facing team wn Global Markets Group Is
broadly segmented nto three parls — the CRS Team
(Client Risk Solutions}, the SRS Team (Structured Risk
Solutions) and the Bulhon Team

The Chent Risk Solutions (CRS) Desk adwisés
Institutional and Corporate clients on therr FX and
Interest Rate-related exposures, and provides tatlor-
made solutions to hed ge such exposures The spectrum
ol Advisory Services includes domestic as well as
cross-barder transaction flows and nsk management
of related exposures on chents' Balance Sheets CRS
covers the India geography through Dealers / Dealng
Centres n  Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Coimbatore,
Chennai, Gurgaon, Hyderabad, Japur, Kolkata,
Lucknow, Ludtana and Mumbai It has extended s
geographical reach through FastForex, Bank’s internet
platform, to a wider Emerging Corporate Chent base
and branch network, thereby ensurning faster delivery
and access to real-time market prices

The SRS team provides structured nsk management
solutions and advisory to Bank's corporate clients, using
vanous Dervatives products. The Bullion Desk helped

3

chents of that segment with hedging requirements for the
metal, in accordance with the regulatory environment
prevailing from time to time

Dunng the year, the CRS Desk successfully handled
various large onghore FX flow transactions ot corporate
as well as Financial Institutional chents, and a few large
cross-border trades related to capital market flows
SRS Desk’s timely adwisory on structured Denvatives
solutions helped wncrease rmindshare amongst large
and medium corporate and institutional clients, and the
Desk saw a healthy upsurge in client volumes

The Bank has a well laid-out set of Operational Palicy
guidelines, nsk management policies, including Client
Suitability Policy and appropriate systems support to
monitor transactions and nsk on real-time basis

The sustained growth of the Giobal Markets Group
and its ability to offer new products and solutions
encompasses need for automation and upgrading of the
technological environment The Bank 1s implementing
an integrated Treasury application interfaced with the
Risk monitoring system, which will enable the Bank to
expand its client offening and market making in certan
Denvatives products, as well as manage the nsk
posihons effectively




Transaction Banking Group

The Transaction Banking Group provides solutions
under Cash Management, Trade Services, Supply Chain
Financing, Commodity Financing, Global Remittances,
Electronic Banking and the Gems & Jewellery sector

The Bank's Global Remittances business continued
to experience robust growth in transaction flows, with
the business witnessing about 40% growth in flows in
FY 2013-14

The year saw high growth in Bank’s Online Remittances
coming into India, with Canadabeingthe latestgeagraphy
added to the Bank's online offenng The Bank continues
to hold a posion of significance with partner-Exchange
Houses, acting as the ‘India Correspondent’ for over 60
relationships The Bank features amongst the largest
players in the industry for Inward Remittances under
Rupee Drawing Arrangement of RBI

Impressive growth was atso witnessed in the Qutward
Remittances business handled by the Bank The overall
revenues from cross-border remittance products grew
over 80% dunng 2013-14

Under the Cash Management Services (CMS), the
Bank offers products such as collections and payments
of ts corporate clients, thus helping grow the Current
Account base and fees The CMS throughput witnessed
73% increase In transaction volumes during the year,
with several new CMS mandates added during the year

The year 2013-14 saw the Bank focus on technology-
enabled solutions offered to 1its corporate clients, such
as Payment Gateway solutions and Host-to-Host
solutons Focus on Electronic Payments saw the
Bank bagging several corporate mandates involving
Host-to-Host integration, a completely seamless
solution enabling corporate clients to make therr
payments in a fully automated and secure environment
This places the Bank amongst the best-in-class players
offenng corporate payments solutions, implementing
such solutions with flexibility to connect with platforms
like SAP, Oracle, etc

The Bank also launched dunng the year its global
Host-to-Host service for seamlessly integrating with the
processing systems of the Overseas Money Transfer
operators The Bank remains committed to pursuing

Cross-border
Remittance
Revenues

Global
Remittance
Business
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the philosophy of STP (Straight Through Processing)
In its transaction handling Last year, the Bank handled
nearly 36 million STP transactions onginated on its
Corporate & Remittance online channels, up by 35%
over the previous year's volume

The Bank was yet again ranked as the # 1 Collecting

v
Z

Bank across all public 1ssues that hit the market
in 2013-14 under ‘Debt’ category (Source Pnme
Database Rankings )

The Bank had opened two Currency Chests during the
last financial year and the year 2013-14 saw the Bank
capitalising on these to drive home significant benefts
fromthese faciities While on one hand, Currency Chests
helped the Bank to efficienlly manage cash holdings
across Its branches and ATMs, on the other hand, It has
helped the Bank to make impressive inroads with various
new corporate relationships The fee generated at the
Bank from Currency Chests showed a substantial jump in
FY 2013-14 The Bank plans to open two more
Currency Chest’s in the current year, which will further
comphment its network expansion strategy as well as
help grow its Cash Management Services The Bank
has been providing competitive structured solutions to
customers under its Trade Services umbrella, thereby
effectively assisting corporates in funds management
and efficient management of therr working capital flows
The Bank's ability to provide Structured Trade solutions
has enabled clhients to unlock their capital funds, leading
to reduction in their interest cost and improvement in
their profitability To enhance the scope and reach of
tech-savvy corporates, the Bank 1s proposing to launch
a new state-of-the-art Trade Online Platform that would
enable clients to seamlessly interact with the Bank
for their Trade Finance requirements In a secure and
afficient envirenment

Cash
Management
Services

4
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Under Trade Services, in addition to usual Trade
facilihes such as Letters of Credit and Guarantees, the
Bank offers customized working capital management
solutions to clients as per thewr business requirements
This has reflected in the growth in Trade business, with
trade fees growing by about 28% last year

The Bank’s Supply Chain Business solutions are
highly effective In strengthening relationships between
corperate buyers, ther strategic partners and core
suppters Taking a commercial approach based on
key market trends, these solutions help clients to
unlock working capital, maxirtruse returns and suppon
sales effots to develop new markets The Supply
Chain Finance soclutions also help manufactunng
sactor clients In negotiating preferential purchasse
terms and strengthening channel relationships  Bank’s
online portal enables chents to obtain finance in the
most efficient and convenient manner Under Channel
Finance, the Bank presently provides Short Term
Finance to over 712 dealers of large manufacturing
companies

Prionty Sector Lending

The Bank has achieved the RBI-prescribed target for
Prionty Sector Advances Prionty Sector Advances
aggregated ¥ 18,270 44 crores at the end of March
2014, representing 40 93 % ot the Adjusted Net Bank
Credit (ANBC) of the previous year, as compared to
40 56 % at the end of March 2013

Advances to Agnculture

During the year, the Bank financed over 6,12,946
agncultunsts, and its Aggregate Direct Agncultural
Advances stood at T 4,089 60 crores, representing
9 16 % of ANBC at the end of March 2014 The overall
Agncultural Advances {1e, Direct Agncuiture and
Indirect Agnculture) of T 5,216 56 crores, amounted to
11 69 % of the ANBC at the end of March 2014. Although
lower than March 2013 In terms of percentage of ANBC,
this reflects an absolute growth of ¥ 868 66 crores, a
sizeable increase in Advances to this important sector

Advances to other segments of Prionty Sector
Dunng the year, the Bank’s finance to ‘Weaker Sections’
increased by ¥ 696 12 crores and stood at ¥ 3,68519
crores, representing 8.26% of ANBC as at the end of
March 2014 Finance to Small Enterprises represented
20 24% of the ANBC at the end of March 2014

Approach to Prionty Sector Lending

To achieve thus sizeable exposure to the sector, the
Bank has

Reached out to about 1 1 million households from the
Base of the Pyrarmid (BoP) Segment, both through
Direct and Indirect Channels

Spread operations to 24 States, 393 districts in total
whilst directly reaching out to about 560,000 clients
spread over 9 States and 49 Districts covering more
than 11,000 willages and 182 slums mostly from
under-banked distnicts and distncts which rank low
on the CRISIL Financial Inclusion Index

100% of these loans were to Women, organised in
Joint Liabihty Groups {JLG)

About 43 4% of these loans were towards Farm
(Agn and Agn-Alhed) and the balance towards
Micro Enterpnses (Manufactunng, Trade and
Services) Activities covered under these include
Vegetable Cultivation, Release of Land Mortgaged
with moneylenders, Borewell digging, Pumpsets,
Land Development, Livestock loans, e, Buffalo,
Cows, Sheep-reanng, Kitchen poultry units, etc On
the Micro Enterpnses activities, 1 e, Saree Trading,
Fruts Business, Kirana stores, Snacks stores,
Road Side Dhabas, Cycle repair shops, Tea Stalls,
Agarbathi-making, Tailonng, etc In the process, we
have touched more than 1,000 economic actvities
In terms of loan sizes, about 70% of the above loans
are for amounts less than T 15,000
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Risk Management

Banking business i1s exposed to a wids spectrum of
nsks and 1t 1s imperative that the vanous nsks faced
by the Bank are effectively measured, monitored and
managed A robust Enterpnse-wide Risk Management
(ERM) framework enables effective and proactve
management of vanous nsks while supporting business
growth ERM helps reduce volatilty in earnings and
enhances shareholder value

The ERM framework provides single-window view of the
nisks that the Bank s exposed to and facilitates efiective
management of associated nsks in an integrated
manner The Bank has an integrated Risk Management
Department, ndependent of business funchons,
covenng Credit Risk, Market Risk, Asset Liability
Management (ALM) and Operations Risk including
Information Secunty nsk funchons Risk Management
practices have been aligned with best industry practices
and are adaptable to a dynamic operating enviranment
and market condittons

Reinforcement of Risk Management -
Basel I /1l

The Bank has implemented the New Capital Adequacy
framework, which enables allocation of capital based
on nsk sensitivity of respective asset classes Dunng
the year, the Bank has implemented the new RBI
guidelnes on Basel lll Capital Regulations, and has
been maintaining capital requirements as per norms
stipulated therein

The Bank has implemented a highly sophisticated
system which enables automated computation of capital
requirements under the Basel Ili framework.

As part of Capital Adequacy framework, the Bank has
implemented Intemnal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) which facilitates identification and
measurement of matenal nsks other than the nsks
covered under Pillar | of Basel Il gudelines The
Bank has further strengthened quantfication and
management of the matenal risks under Pillar I The
Bank has undertaken substantive imbatives to equip
tself for migration to advanced approaches of nsk
assessment under Basel Il

The Bank has implemented state-of-the-art Market
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Risk Management System which enables adoption of
Internal Madel Approach for computation of Capital
Charge towards market risk

Credit Risk Management

Credit Risk 15 managed both at transactions level
as well as portiolio level The key objective of Credit
Risk Management 15 to maintain credit qualty within
the defined nsk appetite, while achieving appropnate
returns ih relation to nsks assumed

Vanous measures adopted for management of Credit
Risk are mentioned hereunder

Gauging Credit Risk at the time of credit approval by
means of nsk rating mode!s implemented for different
segments of obligors,

Credit Portfolio Management analysis to monitor
credit quality, compostition of portfolios, concentration
nsk, yield mamtonng and business growth,

Measurement and monitoring of credit qualty
regularly by means of Weighted Average Credtt
Rating (WACR) of the credit portfolio,

Prudential internal imits prescnbed for assuming
exposures on counterparties, Industnes, sectors,
etc,

Measurement of credit quaity of Consumer Finance
portfolics by means of Behaviour Modeling,

Management of exposures to counterparty banks
and countnes by setting exposure hmits basis their
nsk profles and monitonng the exposures regularly,

Stress Testing of credit portfolios to measure shock
absorbing capacity under multiple stressed scenarios
and assessment ot impact of potential credit losses
on profitability and capital adequacy, thus enabling
imitiation of appropnate nsk mitigation measures
Stress Testing of credit portfolios to measure shock
absorbing capacity under muitiple siressed scenares
and assessment of impact of potential credit losses
on profiability and capital adequacy, thus enabting
ination of appropnate nsk mitigation measures
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Market Risk Management

Market Risk anses from changes in interest rates,
exchange rates, equity prices and risk-related factors
such as market volatiities

The Bank manages Market Risk in trading portfolios
through a robust market nsk management framework
prescnbed In its Market Risk Management Policy

The Bank has successfully implemented a state-of-
the-art Market Risk system to enhance the existing
Risk Management Framework to keep i step with the
new concepts in the Market Fisk Management domain
The Market Risk system has strengthened VaR, Stress
Testing and Capital Computation framework, which
has helped manage market rnisk effectively in a volatile
market condition

The framework includes monitoning of PV01 limits,
Value-at-Risk (VaR) Imits for Forex, Invesiments,
Equity and Denvatives Porticlios, besides Stop-Loss
fimits, Exposure ints, Deal-size limits and various
operational limits

The Market Risk Management Group functions
independent of Treasury business and 1s responsible
for

Designing and updating comprehensive policies
framework for Funds and Investments, Foreign
Exchange Dealing, Dervatives and Equities,

imptementation of methodologies for measurement
and monrtoring the market nsks associated with
respective portfolios,

Monttoring market nsk exposures in line with rnisk
limits prescnbed in the policies

Asset Liability Management (ALM)

The Bank’s Asset Liability Management system suppons
effective management of iquidity nsk and interest rate
nsk, covering all assets and hiabilties

Liquidity Risk 1s managed through Structural Lyquidity
Gaps, Liquidity Simulation, Dynamic  Liquidity
monitoring, Liquidity Ratios analysis, Behavioral
analysis of habiliies and assets and prudential hmits
for negative gaps in varous time buckets

interest Rate Senstivity is monttored  through
prudential limits for Rate Sensitive Gaps, Eaming
at Risk, Modified Duration of Equity and other nsk
parameters

Interest Rate Risk on Investment portfolios 1s
monitored through, PV01, VaR and Modified Duration
on a daily basis Optimum nsk 1s assumad through
duration, to balance between nsk containment and
profit generation from market movements

Detaled analysis of iiquidity position, mnterest rate
nsks, product mix, business growth versus budgets,
nterest rate outlook, etc 1s presented to the Asset
Liability Management Commuittee (ALCO) which meets
frequently and deliberates on hquidity position and
interest rate nsk and reviews business strategies

The ALCO provides directional guidance to Business
Uniis towards effective management of liquidity position,
while achieving business goals The Bank assesses its
structural hquidity position on a daily basis for managing
hquidty in a cost-effective manner

Stress Testing - Liquidity Risk

The Bank carnes out stress tests on liquidity position
regularly to simulate impact of stressed  hquidity
scenanos on funding and hiquidity position  Stress Tests
help the Bank to be better equipped to meet stressed
situations and have contingency funding pians (n place

Contingency Funding Planning

Contingency funding plans have been developed to
respond swiftly to any anticipated or actual stressed
martket condtions Bank reviews s contingency

plans considenng the evolving market conditions
Contingency funding plan covers avallable sources
of funds to supplement cash flow gaps In the event of
strassed scenanos, roles and responsibilites of those
nvolved 1n execution of contingency plans and the
contingency tnggers




Interest Rate Risk on Banking Book (IRRBB)

Interest Rate Risk on Banking Book largely arises on
account of (1) Re-pncing Risk, {n) Optionality, (m) Basis
Risk, and {iv} Yield Curve Risk

From an economic value perspective, it 1s the Bank's
policy to minimise sensitivity to changes in interest rates
on assets and labilities Inlerest Rate nsk 1s measured
basis re-prncing behaviour of each of the items under
asset, hability and off-Balance Sheet products The
Bank’s Assets and Liabiities Management Policy has
lard down hmits basis nsk appetite, and the impact on
NIl and Economic Value of Equity (EVE} for a given
change in interest rate

The Bank has put in place necessary framework to
measure and monitor Interest Rate Risk on Banking
Book using the Duration Gap Approach, besides the
Traditional Gap Approach

Operational Risk Management

Operational Risk 1s the nsk of incurnng loss due to
fallure of systems, technology, processes, employees,
projects, disasters, external factors, frauds, etc,
including legal and regutatory nsk Operational Risk
occurs on account of human error, falled processes,
inadequate systems, fraud, damage to physical assets,
improper behaviour or external events The Bank seeks
to ensure that key operational risks are managed in a
timely and effective manner through a framework of
policies, standard operating processes and procedures
and tools to identily, assess, monitar and control such
inherent nsks in its businesses

The Bank's Risk Management Department provides
necessary direction and undertakes vanous inhatives
under its Operatronal Risk Management (ORM)
Framework for mitigation of nsks The ORM Framework
compnses Policy guidelnes, Fisk and Control Self-
Assessment (RCSA), Loss Data Analysis, Key
Risk Indicators (KRIs), Risk Profiing of branches,
implementation of Basel Il Guidelines, etc

The RCSA of all major QOperations functions have
been carried out and necessary nsk mitigation plans
have been designed and implemented Loss Data
Analysis, basis internal as well as external loss data, i1s
carned out penodically to identify trends and reinforce
operational controls An Incident Reporting tool has
been implemented for reporting Operational Risk
incidents across Bank and monitoring actions theraon
for miigation of nsk
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The Bank has initiated scenano-based assessment of
identified plausible Operational Risks The scenano
analysis shall be used in creation of statistical models
with respect to computation of Operational Risk Capital
Charge under Advanced Measurement Approach of
Basel Il

New products / processes are assessed for associated
risks before their launch All new products / processes
are approved by the Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC), which identifies the nsks inherent
in the products and prescnbes necessary controls to
mitigate such risks

The Bank's Audt mechanism covers penodical on-
site audt, concurrent audits and ofi-site survelllance
enabled by the Bank’s advanced technology-driven
processes and the Core Banking System

The Bank has implemented a comprehensive Bank-
wide Business Continuity Plan to ensure continuity of its
critical functions dunng disruption / disaster situations

Systems Risk

As part of Systems-related Operational Risk
Management inihatives, the Bank has implemented
the following

Formulated and implemented a comprehensive
Business Continuity Plan (BCP) to ensure continuity
of its critical business functions and extension of
hanking services to Its customers,

Established an effective Disaster Recovery site at a
distant location, with on-line real-time replication of
data, both 1n Mumbai and Chennai,

A comprehensive Information Secunty Policy and
necessary framework have been put In piace to
ensure complete data security, confidentiality and

integnty,

The Bank has housed its Data Centre in a professionally
managed environment with sophisticated and fool-proof
security features and assured supply of utiliies
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Financial Restructuring and Reconstruction Group

All activities relating to recavery of non-performing foans
and restructunng of stressed assets are handled by
the Financial Restructuring and Reconstruction Group
{FRRG) The role of FRRG has assumed impocrancs,
given the challenging credit environment faced by banks
in India dunng the pas! few years

The Bank has actively utihzed the Securtization and
Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement
of Secunty Interest Act, 2002 far recovenng its dues,
wherever considered appropnate The Bank i1s now a
permanent member of the Corporate Debt Restructunng

Banking Operations

The Bank has strengthened the policy framework on
“Know Your Customer” (KYC) norms and “Antt Money
Laundering” (AML} measures from time to time, In line
with the policies of Reserve Bank of India The Bank
has implemented a simplified procedure of “Know
Your Customer” which will benefit lower income group
persons to open accounts with mimmal documentation

The Bank had implemented a state-of-the-art Workflow
and Imaging System dunng the year 2009-10 The
System has been implemented in the Account Opening
process, automate the Fixed Deposis opening and
renewals, Trade Finance-related processing, Third Party
products sales operations and centralisation of Branch
Expenses processing The plan 1s to migrate further
processes on to the platform as per the operational
needs

The System enables faster turnaround times, movement
of work from branch locations across the country to the
Central Operations Unit In real time, thus reducing the
time 1t took for physical forms to arnve through couner
This has helped in freeing up manpower at the branches
to tend to customer service as well as help provide
online status of processing of customer requests / new
applications

As mandated in RBI directives, the Bank has undertaken
review of nsk categonsation of all customers’ accounts

The Bank s a member of Banking Codes and Standard
Board of India (BCSBI), which was set up to ensure
that banks In India adhere to a voluntary Code, which
sets minimum standards for far treatment to customers

Forum, so as to effictently handle restructunng of viable
businasses in coordination with other lenders

Dunng the year, the Bank recovered an amount of
¥ 35 72 crores in wnitten-off accounts (Previous Year
T 14 80 crores) The Bank's Provision Coverage Ratio
158 now at 70 35% {Previous Year 70 13%)} The Net
NPAs of the Bank stood at 0 33% of the Total Advances
(Previous Year 031%), while the ratio of Gross
NPAs as percentage of Total Advances 15 112%
(Previous Year 1 03%)

availing of banking services The Bank has made a
commutment to adhere to ail the provisions of the Code
prescribed by BCSBI. The Bank has taken steps to
implement the provisions of the Code of Commitment to
the Customers (Individuals) The Code is displayed at
all the branches and the same 1s also posted on Bank's
website In thirteen fanguages

The Bank similarly has also adopted the “Code of
Commitment to Micro and Small Enterpnses” (MSE
code) 1ssued in June, 2008 for customers belonging to
Micro and Small Enterpnses segment This Code was
further revised in 2012 by BCSBI and duly approved by
the Board of Directors The MSE Code sets the minimum
standards of banking practices and explains how to deal
with these customers in day to day operations and in
times of financial difficulty

The Bank has also formulated the Policy on ‘Financing
to Micro, Small and Medium Enterpnses’, and the same
1s made available on the Bank's website

Centralized cleanng has been implemented in
Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Bhubaneswar, Chandigarh,
Chennal, Coimbatore, Deihi, Goa, Hyderabad, Jaipur,



Jodhpur, Kochi, Kolkata, Lucknow, Ludhiana, Mumbay,
Nagpur, Pune, Salem, Surat, Thwruvananthapuram,
Udaipur, Vadodara and Vishakhapatnam for quicker
and efficient processing 1t will be the Bank's
constant endeavour 1o bnng more centres under
Centralised Cleanng

The Bank has also started participating in NACH
(National Automated Cleanng House) transactions both
for Debit and Credit (ECS) at Mumbai, as also Aadhar-
Based Payment System (ABPS) transactions through
NPCI

Cheque Truncation System {(CTS), which was
implermented in New Deihi by RBI, was operationalised
in March 2008 and has been fully stabiised and the Bank
1s participating in cleanng through CTS In FY 2011-12,
the Bank had stabilised CTS operations in Chennai,
Bengaluru and Coinbatore through National Payment
Corporation of India (NPCIy During the year 2012-13,
the Bank successfully implemented CTS operations in
Chandigarh, Kolkata and Ludhiana Dunng 2013-14,
the Bank successfully implemented CTS operations
in Mumbai and also operationalized gnd cleanng for
18 locations connected to Mumbai gnd 102 locations
are covered under gnd cleanng through our three CTS
centers at Mumbal / Chennai / Delhi, as on March 31,
2014

The Bank has improved internal controls and
comphance through the following

Separate and independent Compliance function has
been set up for Bank-wide comphance,

Instituting of the Vigilance function,

Expenses management software has been deployed
at all branches for facihitating cost control,

Standard Operating Procedures have been defined
for processes at branches to ensure consistency of
delivery with expanding branch network,

Branch Monitonng Unit 1s operative for regular
monitoring of branch operations,

Voucher verification process has been
operationahsed for checking all the entnes posted
by the branches, and

The Process Adherence and Quality function
has been operationahsed for attaiming uniformity
in processes followed by branches, to minmise
operational nsk
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The Bank has revised and adopted a “Comprehensive
Policy’, in pursuance of RBI adwvices, on settlement
of claims n respect of deceased depositors The
policy covers all types of deposits, and has simplhfied
the procedure for settlement and forms are provided
on Website

The Bank has adopted the “Best Practice Code”,
relating to transaction processing, with the objective of
documenting the procedures n hine with national and
international best practices

The Bank has put In place a “Deposit Policy” and a “Faw
Practice Code™ While the former outlines the guiding
principles in respect of vanous products of the Bank, the
terms and conditions governing the operations of the
accounts and the nghts of depositors, the Fair Practice
Code 15 a voluntary code establishing standards to be
followed by all our branches in their dealings with the
customers

The Bank has framed the “Citizen’s Charter” to promote
fair banking practices and to give information In respect
of vanous activites relating to customer service

The Bank has put in place “Compensation Policy” as
part of the commitment to customers to compensate
them i case of the Bank being unable to meet the
service levels committed to the customers The marn
objective of the policy Is to establish a system whereby
the Bank shall compensate the customer for any direct
and actual loss by way of mternal loss / payment of
charges by customer due to deficiency In service, 1o the
extent mentioned In the policy The policy 1s based on
prnciple of transparency and faimess in dealings with
customers

The Bank has framed the “Unclaimed Deposit Policy”
based an RBI guidelines with objective of classification
of unclamed deposits and setting up the gnevance
redressal mechamsm for guick resotution of complaints
and record-keeping
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Corporate and Global Markets Operations (CGMO)

Corporate & Global Market Operatons (CGMO),
which manages the operations related to Trade
Services, Cross Border Remittances, Supply Chain
Finance, Global Markets, Cash Management Services,
Payments, Depository and Capital Markets and
sarvicing of all chents across both the Comorate and
Retall segments, continued to increase its focus on
operational efficiency, proactive nsk management and
client-focused inhatives

CGMO led transformational process re-engneering
in Global Remittances, Bank Guarantees and Client
Servicing, in addition to consolidation and centrahzation
of complex functions The Bank 1s among the market
leaders In handling assignments of Bankers to the Issue,
Tea Trade Settlements, and has seen significant growth
in volumes relating to Depository Operations In all, over
100 change projects were successfully implemented to
support business mnitiatves and increase operatonal
efficency, all of which also improved the clent
expenence

CGMO continued In ts journey towards ‘Continuous
Improvement’ with the objectve of bulding a
mindset of continuous improvement, and to deliver
year-on-year efficiency benefits This program focuses
on increasing ‘Client Delight', ‘Empowerment’ and
‘Rewards & Recognition’ As part of this intative, 55
has been implemented across its processing centers,
over 450 process Improvements were Iinitiated and
implemanted by staff themselves and a tframing
program on continuous improvement was rolled out
for all staff

CGMO focuses on managing Risk proactively and
conducts regular risk reviews across all its processing
centres Risk monitoring activities were also centralized,
providing better visibility and control Advanced Risk
Awareness sessions were conducted for all staff,
keeping them updated on the latest trends in Risk

CGMO 1s currently leading projects to re-platform the
Treasury and Market Risk Management Systems for the
Global Markets Group, the Trade System and Currency
Dervative Systems State-of-the-art systems have
been identified after a detalled evaluation process

The Treasury System, which will be capable of handiing
high volumes of complex Global Market products, 18
under implementation Further, commensurate with
the Bank's plans to grow its Treasury and Denwvatives
products, and with a view to control and manage related
nsks effectively, a sutable Market Risk Management
system has also been finalized for implementation  All
these systems will significantly boost capabilites in
these product segments and offer clients with world
class products and services

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

Operational Controls

The Bank has laid down the policy framework related
to "Know Your Customer® (KYC) norms, “Anh Money
Laundering Measures” (AML) and Combating of
Financing Terrorism (CFT) The policy has been framed
on the basis of recommendations of the Financial
Action Task Force and the Paper 1ssued on ‘Gustomer
Due Diligence for Banks' by the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision The AML software that has been
implemented effectively has brought the operations nsk

under control A systems solution has been implemented
to operationalise Re-KYC guidelines and follow up on
outstanding discrepancies

In accordance with RBl's recommendatons, a
Committee on Procedures and Performance Audit on
Public Service in Banks (CPPAPS), compnsing sentor
functional heads of the Bank and a few customers,
has been estabhshed. The Bank has also constituted a
Customer Service Committee of the Board of Directors
(CSCB) to review the performance of the CPPAPS




Customer Service

The Bank has constituted Branch Level Customer
Service Committees (CSC) at all branches, compnsing
employees and customers CSC mestings are convened
every month tc examine complaints / suggestions, cases
of delay, difficulies faced / reporied by customers /
members of the Committee Feedback and suggestions
are submitted to CPPAPS

CPPAPS examines and prowides relevant feedback
to the Customer Service Committee of the Board for
necessary policy / procedural action

In May 2009, the Bank implemented “Talisma”, a
‘Customer Requests, Complaints and Hequests
Management Sysiem’ The key objective of this solution
is to have a single system to track requests, complaints
and quenes at customer level so that the service
standards as set out by the Bank are managed and
enhanced The System has been implemented across
all branches and the Bank's Contact Centres in Mumba)

and Chennai

Gnevance Redressal Mechanism

The Bank has designed an escalation process for ail
customer complaints recewed at branches and at
Corporate Office

A quarterly report related to complants received and
redressed 1s placed before the Board of Directors
Based on the recurrence of complaints In specific areas,
causative factors are identified and necessary remedial
measures are intiated

The Bank maintains a dedicated page for lodging of
complaints and complaint redressal mechanism on
its website www indusind com where information on
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the escalation process and the detals of the Nodal
Officer / Regional Managers to receive complaints has
been furmshed

These detals are also displayed at the Bank's
branches Details of the Banking Ombudsman Scheme,
2006 are also displayed at Branches and provided on
the website

The Bank has also created a link on cur website for
a “Complant Form”, which gwves opportunity to all
customers to air their gnevances n a simplified way and
get their complaints redressed without delay Further,
customers can contact the respective Branch Manager
or Call our Contact Center on toll-free number or send
email to customercare @indusind com to lodge therr
gnevances

Internal Audit

The Bank's internal Audit function 1s adequately
eguipped to make an wndependent and objective
evaluation of the adequacy and sffectiveness of internal
controls on an on-going basis to ensure that units adhere
to compliance requirements and internal guidelines
To achieve this, comprehensive processes have been
astablished for the Internal Auditors to ensure that all
facets of the Bank’s operations are subjected to scrutiny

The Internal Audit function undertakes a comprehensive
nsk-based audit of all its operating units An audit plan 1s
drawn up on the basis of nsk-profiling of auditee units
Accordingly, the Bank undertakes internal audit of its
operating units at a frequency synchronized to the risk
profile of each unit In line with the spint of guidelines
relating to Risk—Based Internal Audit The scope of nsk-
based intemal audit, besides examining the adequacy
and effectveness of mternal control systems and
external comphance, also evaluates the nsk residing at
the auditee units The Internal Audit function proactively
recommends improvements In operational processes
and service qualty

The Bank’s Internal Audit function is operating as an
integrated unit based out of different locations within the
country, to cover all tts operational activiies The Bank
has developed an effective online survesllance system
by using its fully networked Core Banking System,
well-defined and strong internal controls, need-based
access to computer systems and clear audit trails which
have helped to mitgate operational nsks Further, to
complement the Intemal Audit Function and

:



have real time supervision and control, cntical units of
the Bank are covered under concurrent audits

Post 1ssue of audit reports, there 1s a process for
morutoning of progress on implementation of action
plans Status of resolution tracking as well as pending
ssues 1s reported to Top Management and Audit
Committee of the Board on a regular basis

To ensura independence of Internal Audit, the function
has a reporting to the Audit Committee of the Board,
and only for admimistrative purpose, to the Managing
Director Audt Committee of the Board reviews the
performance of the Internal Audit Department and
efiectiveness of controls laid down by the Bank and
comphiance with regulatory guidelines

Comphance

The Board and Management of the Bank are committed
to high standards m maintaining a corporate culture
of ohserving what 1s legally binding, and of embracing
broader standards of integnty and ethical conduct.

The Bank has a distinct Central Compliance
Department that facilitates management of Compliance
Risk The Comphance Function undertakes macro-
level comphiance activties namely, putting n place
Comphance Policy of the Bank, monitonng compliance
aspects, providing guidance on regulatory and statutory
provisions pertamning to vanous business actvibies

Human Resources

The Bank s on a high growth path. The Bank's HR
objectives are derved from the Bank’s business strategy
and objectives The role of HR 1s to facilitate business
growth through talent acquisiion, development,
management and retention

The Bank's business performance and improved market
positioning attracts qualty talent to the Bank The Bank
is seen as a “preferred career destination” which 18
exhibited by

High guality professionals with proven track records
wiling to make a long term career within the Bank

Lower attrition levels, higher employee lfe span,
high offer acceptance ratio, increased hires through
employee referrals are posiive indicators

to the concerned functional units, and assisting
functional units in ensunng that the Bank's Policies,
Processes, and Products meet the regulatory and
statutory requirements The Complance Function
IS a wmandatory stakeholder of the Operations
Risk Management Committee (ORMC) and provides
sign-off for a new Product / Process routed this channel
The Chief Compliance Officer 1s also the Principal
Officer of the Bank under the Prevention of Money
Laundenng Act

The {unction also independently monitors compliance
aspecls at vanous stages Besides the system of
Monthly Compliance Cettificates from branches and
vanous Corporate Office functions, Complance Test
Studies are carned out to assess the level of comphance
covering the branches, the Corporate Office functions,
and also vanous assoclate agencies

To promote and strengthen comphance culture among
the workforce, the Compliance Funchon regularly
conducts seminars for branch staff at all levels, ranging
from the frontine Marketing / Operations executives
to the Branch Managers, circulates short notes on
important topics, and analysis of / leamings from
cases It also publishes monthly newsletter containing,
inter alia, regulatory highlights, and a quarterly bulletin
containing compliance related matters, and conducts
Compliance Contests

leadership and
supplements the

attntion  at
layers,

Virually neghgible
strategic managenal

behef that employees want to be a part of the
Bank's journey
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Key highlights [
Hired quality manpower {leaders and achievers) 1o lead the Bank's business growth The Bank used diversified '
hurng sources, namely, Employee Referral schemes, Job Portals, Placement Agencies, Campus Hinng and
Tie-ups with agencies to work on Hire-Train-Deploy model to (dentify and hire appropriate talent The Bank also
employed assessment tests and multi-layered interviews to recruit the nght resources In ine with the business
objectives, the manpower strangth increased to 15,590 employees from 11,502 employees a year ago

The Bank's leaming Iinterventions amed at equipping employees with deswed functional / behawvioral
competencies to enhance business success Dunng FY14, the Bank conducted 430,000 learning man-hours
for over 70,000 parhicipants through well-designed classroom and e-learming inthatives Several learning
programs in areas of Performance Management, Leadership Development, Managenal Effectiveness, Sales
Processes, Communication and Negotiahon Skills, Banking Products and Operational Processes were
conducted during the year E-learning initiatives comprising onhne course modules and assessment tests
offered standardized and cost-effective learning solutions to the employees

. A robust Online Performance Management System based on “SMART Coal-setting” conttnues to run
successfully across the Bank The Performance Management processes (Goal-setting, Mid-year Review, Annual
Performance Review) help to accurately outine employee performance objectives, engage with employees,
review performance, recognize and reward based on tangible performance, identfy and nurture leaders to
spearhead business growth The annual performance appraisal for FY13 was executed in alignment with the
Bank's objective of rewarding performance against goal achievements Mid-year Performance Review for FY14
was used as a platform by the Line Managers and HR to analyze performance, provide developmental feedback
and develop performance road-maps for employees to facilitate achievement of their annual “SMARTs”

The Bank's Compensation Policy is based on the philosophy of ‘Pay-for-Performance’ Compensation policies of
the Bank are completely aligned to the regulatory compensation guidelines The key objectives nclude
benchmarking employee compensation with market salanes for vanous job positions, paying for “position,
performance & person”, maintaning an optimal balance between fixed and vanable pay, bullding long-term
employee ownership and assoctation through Employee Stock Optiens

Several Employee engagement iniiatives were pursued to connect and bond with employees, understand
employee problems and seek remedials Quarterly webcasts by the MD & CEO, Branch visits by HR and Line
Managers, Skip-level meetings across the Business Units, Annual Reward and Recognition programs helped to
connect with employees Employee recreation programs as business off-sites, team get-togethers, sports,
festivals, etc helped to build enthusiasm and creativity at the work-place Skip-level CET meeting was imibated
. to involve functional heads to collect business insights for developing the Bank's business plans “My idea”
an ideation platform, continues to generate innovative ideas for business process Improvement and enhancing
customer delight The Bank also launched a “Workplace health and safety palicy” for buiding a safe and secure
work environment
Technology drives HR Operational Processes There was seamless management of all Employee life cycle HR
processes relating to Onboarding, Attendance, Leave, Payroll, Confirmations, Loans, Medictaim, Gratuity, Exits,
F&F, etc The focus has been on responsiveness towards end-user needs by ensunng better TATs, error-free and
proactive service delivery
The Bank pursues values of “Discipiine and Compliance” to create an amiable workplace where employees
can actualize their potential The Bank espouses an adherence to the Code of Conduct, which clearly cutlines
the desired employee professional and personal conduct Any deviation from the acceptable norms pertaining |
to breach of employee integnty and non- conformance 1o the Bank’s Code of Conduct 1s treated as a deviation
resulting in an appropnate action

The Bank realizes the importance of its human capital in achieving its business ambthon in pursuance of the Bank's
growth imperatives, HR's strategic agenda remains to delight employees by offering a fulfiling career, work-life
balance, market-linked compensation & employee development through several benchmark HR practices
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Employee Stack Option Scheme

The Bank had instituted an Employee Stock Opton
Scheme ¢ enable its employees to participate In its
future growth

Other Initiatives Underway

Quality

Qualty 1s a pnme differentiator in a service industry,
and the Bank has had the distinction of having had its
entire Branch network certified as comphant with 1ISO
8001 2000 However, with the passage of time, 1t was
necessary to move beyond this, and to embed gualty In
every aspect of the activities

Aresponsive and responsible organisational culture 1s a
key ingredient to quality in every aspect of our business
and includes people, products, systems, processes and
customer interaction Balanced score cards, process
engineenng, staff traming and recognition, effactive
deployment of technology, Customer Relatonship
Management, channel efficacy and error-free comphiant
operations are key Ingredients of service quality Service
qualty 1s measured through a vanety of techniques such
as tum-around times, loyalty scores, mystery shopping,
quality assurance and others Specifically, the Bank has
a "Solution Delivery" Team that sits between business
and operational imperatives so as to deliver innovative
and customer-inendly products, services and channel
interface

Some of the nnovative service qualty inhatves
introduced by the Bank include multi- Imgual Contact
Centre, Direct Connect to Contact Centres without
going through menu optons, Mobile remittances to
ATMs wherain cash can be withdrawn without the
requirement of a Card, choice of note denominations
at ATMs, prnting of scanned images of customers’
cheques cleared on the reverse of Bank Statements,

The Scheme functions in  accordance with the
Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Employee
Stock Qption Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelings, 1999 The eligibility of an employee
and number of Options to be granted are approved by
the Compsnsation Committae of the Board of Directors

An aggregate of 3,10,18,700 Options, compnsing
5.90% of the Bank’s equity capital, have been granted
Statutory disclosures as required by the revised SEBI
Guidelines on ESOS are given 1in the Annexure to the
Directors’ Report

a CRM system that provides a 360-degree view of the
customer, instant redemption In customer’s account of
Credit Card Reward Points and many more

Withthe growth in electronic channels, the Bank analyzes
effectiveness of electronic channels on a regular basis
Customer behaviour refating to regstration, usage,
transactions, repeat usage, drop-offs, etc are monitored
on a regular basis This channel has been growing
rapidly and promotes the effectiveness of seamless
arror free service quality anytime and anywhere

Shareholder Satisfaction

Effective Apnl 1, 2013 the Bank's stock was inducted
into the ‘NIFTY 50' Benchmark of the National Stock
Exchange of India The Bank continues to deliver
full, farr, timely and clear disclosures through vanous
modes of communications, with shareholders and the
Investment commurnity

With a view to promoting transparency and enhancing
shareholder satisfaction, apart from frequent interaction
with the Registrar & Transfer Agent, steps have




been taken 1o obtain contact detals such as e-mall
IDs, cell phone numbers and telephone numbers of
the shareholders so as to communicate to shareholders
the information about developments in the Bank This
direct communication 1s in addtion to the regular
dissemination of information through usual channels
such as the Stock Exchanges, Press, Bank's website,
RTA's website, etc

Sharehclders of the erstwhile Indusind Enterprises &
Finance Limnted (IEFL), which was amalgamated with the
Bank in 2003, were sent three reminders Shareholders
who did not come forward have subsequently been
contacted ndwvidually through Bank's branches,
encouraging them to exchange Share Certificates of
IEFL tor Certificates of the Bank

Going forward, the Bank’s shareholders shall continue

Information Technology

Information Technology has provided a sustained
thrust in optimizing customer expenence and improving
operational efficiencies The Bank regularly invests in
IT infrastructure and technology Innovations lo stay
ahead of competitors This year, the focus was on
technology upgrade for muliiple applications to cater to
business growth

Information Technology initatives
Customer-oriented Inhatives
My Account My Number

‘My Account My Number, an offenng that has
become immensely popular, 1s a unique proposition
to enhance growth in CASA This software,
developed internally, enables a customer to choose
an Account Number according to his / her
preference, usually based on a specific pattern,
such as a lucky number, favounte combination or
Just something simple to remember
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to receive best-of-class shareholder services and be
promptly informed of the developments in the institution

The Bank has been at the forefront in “Green Initiatives”,
and through this process asprres lo graduate to
paperless complances

Shareholders are requested to furnish their e-mail 1Ds at
investor @indusind.com or inform telephonically on 022
- 6641 2487 to help accelerate the Bank's migrabon to
paperless compliances

tn ine with Circular 1ssued by MCA, the Bank sought
the consent of the shareholders to send the Annual
Report 1 e, Notice convening the Meeting, Financial
Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditor's Report, etc, In
electronic form, to the e-mail address provided by you /
made available to us by the Depositones

The full text of these reperts shall also be made
avallable in an easily navigable format on the website
www indusind com under the link ‘Investors Reporis
and Presentation / Annual Reports’

Shareholders have been intimated from time to time
to clam the dwvidend amounts lying unclaimed with
the Bank

Implementation of RBI's “Next Generation RTGS”

The benefits of Next Generation RTGS, successfully
implemented in Oct 2013, are

| Fastercustomer credits and settlement End-to-end
fund transter 1s now possible In 30 minutes

I Penalty for cases of delayed credt and / or returns,
forcing banks to take prompt action.

m RBI Payment system 1S now integrated to the
Core Banking System, to know the real time
liquidity position

:
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Iv High value transaction alert to banks This 15
auto-generated emayl recewved whenever a hugh
value transaction hits RBI system

Western Umion RDA

Dunng the year, Cross Border Remittance System,
an in-house developed system designed for Wastern
Umionand other RDA (Rupee Drawing Arrangements),
went ive The system pulls / pushes the encrypted file
through secure FTP via VPN and processes inward
remittances via remittance platform

SAS - RMfB (Risk Management for Banking)

RMIB (Risk Management for Banking), the Market
Risk system from SAS, went live in the month of
February, 2014 Lalest analylical 1ools hke SAS Bi,
SAS data integraton, SAS management console,
SAS information delivery portal, etc have been
deployed Currently the ETL (Extract Transfer Load)
runs on vanous source systems ke CBS, Treasury,
CTFS, Market Data from Reuters, etc It provides
standardized reports, Value at Risk, Sensitivity
Analysis, Stress Test, interactive reports and vanous
market nsk management related analyses

‘Bank to Corporate Clent’ system connectivity

A Corporate Connectivity Solution which provides a
direct mterface between the corporate customers’
ERP systems and the Bank for sending
payment instructions

Using this systern, the customer can process
bulk payment data from his ERP / Account System
and authonze it on Bank’s Corporate Banking Portal
online The system uses Data Encryption, by which
data secunty and confidentalty are achieved This
reduces manual intervention and creates efficiency
in processing

Cheque Truncation System (CTS) - Image-based
Cleanng - Western Gnd

Indusind was among the first seven banks to go
live with CTS Western Gnd on Apnl 27, 2013, along
with RBS, SCB, CITl, PMC, BoA and ICIC! Bank This
facility 15 expected to benefit customers through
faster cleanng

IndusPay Plus - Consumer Finance Division {CFD)

It 1s a new payment facility for customers to pay their
outstanding dues online, instead of making payment
by cash or cheques Using this facility, customers
can conveniently pay their dues through Net Banking

P e

of other banks, since this has been linked through
Bill Desk

DD and PO pnnting from State Offices — Consumer
Finance Division (CFD)

DD and PO pnnting from State Offices instead of at
same city IBL branches has reduced ttme and
errors, mproved efficency and resulted n
satisfaction of external vendors and dealers.

Workflow for Repossessed and Sale of vehicles -
Consumer Finance Division (CFD)

A workflow-based process was launched for
iniating  of sale of repossessed vehicles to
prospective buyers [t enables recording of sale of
vehicles and benefits by way of improved TAT,
complete data ownership and enhanced controls on
asset hquidation

Chola E-Policy Integration - Consumer Finance
Dwvision (CFD)

An interface has been buillt wherein the Chola
E-Policy servers carry out onhine checks of Customer/
Vehicle / Policy details with the base application
‘Prolendz’ This has enhanced controls and avoided
disputes between Chola and customers through
better integration between the systems of the Bank
and Chola To enhance customer service, a copy of
the policy 1s sent to customers through mail and
8MS This has bean well received by customers

Internal Efficiency

R
Adoption of SFMS messages for Domestic Trade
Finance transactions

The Ministry of Finance, through the Indian Banks
Association, had directed all banks to adopt
Structured Financial Messaging System (SFMS)
for Domestic Trade Finance transactions in heu of the
existing paper-based instruments and
communications, to avoid delays and frauds
The Bank has integrated the CTFS Trade Finance
application with XMM — SFMS messaging solution
This system integration will ensure seamless
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message flow between the applications avoiding
manual intervention leading to user efficiency
operational controls

System Upgrades
Talisma r

System upgrade was done to support the increase
in concurrent users ‘Talisma' 1s used across
Bank's branches, Contact Centre, CPU and Credit
Card Dmsion for tracking of customers’ complaints
Additional modules built on Talisma platform such
as Delverable Module, RM Management, Super
Saver Pack Tracking, 2 way SMS Alerts, Outbound
Lead Management for Personal Banking have
brought in operational efficiencies

Considenng business expectations and projections
of user concurrency In the years ahead, the Talisma
Upgrade project has gone live on February 17, 2014

FT/R 1 n

Thisrollouthasincreasedthe NEFT/RTGSransaction
processing capability from 3,500 transachons
per hour to 10,000 transactions per hour and
enhanced architecture for STP processing, user
interface and repons

ATM Switch ra

All the Bank’s ATMs ara driven by Base24 Switch
software Upgrade of the Switch was intiated in
August 2013 was successfully completed In
December 2013, covenng 1000+ ATMs, connectmvity
with interchanges Ike NFS, Visa and Master and
integration with other systems such as IVR, DCMS,
Net Banking and Mobile Banking

Work It

The IWorks applicabon that supports key
processes, Including Accounts Opening, Trade
Works, Procurement, Accounts Payable, Corporate
Loans Module, Cheque Referral process, etc was
successfully upgraded in December 2013
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Intelhmatch - R nciliation m

The Bank successfully implemenied the latest
version of Intelimatch system which covers Nostro
Reconciiation, Multi-Currency General Ledger
Reconcihation and Foreign Exchange Deal Matching
Some cof the benefits of the new system are

> Reduces exposure and operattonal nsk through
early exception identfication

> Centralizes reconcihation  and

management

> Allows standardization of business transaction

exception

> Improves productvity by using consistent
matching rules

Expansion and upgrade of British Telecom (BT) and
Nice Logger

In the month of February 2014, the Bank upgraded
the capacity of BT Integrated Trading System and
Nice Logger for voice recording Prior to its
upgradation, the system was supporting 32 turrets
{telephones used by Trading Desk) The expansion
enables it to support 120 turrets Some of the benefits
of this new platform are

> Onsite redundancy for these systems

> Addional features to capture all Cll data (Incoming,
Outgoing, Trader IDs, Hotline label, etc )

> Suppors Dashboard

> Built-in Trader Playback request, workflow
mechanismavallablel e ,Request, Approve, Replay
and Audit

> Tagging of trade through reference number

> Inbuilt e-mail alerting mecharmsm for monitoning
the system

Western Union Inward remittances

An exclusive module, MT103 was developed and
implemented for WUIB, using which it 1s possible
to transfer the remittance in the prescrbed SWIFT
message format without manual interventon This
has helped in business growth from WUIB in addition
to processing efficiencies

Prnting of Form 35 with NOC - Consumer Finance
Division (CFD)

Automation of pnnting of Form 35 along with NOC
was launched This has enhanced process control
and will help save about ¥ 12 lakhs per annum
The automation intraduced additional contrals ke
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specimen signature of authonzed signatory,
Hologram reference pnntng and provision to
ingorporate customer’s specimen signature

‘ProDox’ Scanning solution - Consumer Finance
Dwision (CFD)

‘ProDox’ 15 an applicahon thal was developed
in-house, tor scanning Loans files in CFD at
Karapakkam The application would first be used in
PPD, and will then be used in respect of CV files This
will reduce storing space and enable quick retneval,
apart from helping save ¥ 2 81 crores per annum

Capacity upgrade at Data Center

Accelerated growth of the Bank has gven rise to
more applications and servers, which has restulted
in growth in the number of active network ports A
new Core layer switch-based (top-of-rack)
architecture 15 followed, which helps build high
avallability redundancy and minimizes accidental
disruptions by reducing excesswe cable and patch
panel management

MyClaim Portal

Launched MyClam portal through which the
employees can log ther clams onlne for
reimbursement of mobile bills Bills are scanned and
uploaded on the portal for payment, processed and
dues are credited drectly to employee's bank
account Usage and movement of paper i1s avoided,
which 1s a ‘Green’ iniative

Assymetnx’s EVC System - Credit Risk

The Bank 1s currently using Reveleus software
for computation of Capital under Basel Il for
the ‘Standarcdized Approach' As part of regulatory
requirement, the Bank needs to do capital calculation
underthe AIRB approachalso TheBankhastherefore
implemented a new application from Assymetrix Pvt
Ltd for EVC (Evaluation, Calbration and Valdahon)
This EVC system does the undermentioned activities
for use of credit nsk department and going to be
input for advance approach for capital computation
for Basel Il

Rating Validation

Probabifity of Default (PD) Estmation
Probability of Default (PD) Validation

Probabihty of Default (PD) Calibration
Loss Given Default (LGD) Estimation
Loss Given Default (LGD) Validation

vV vV V V VvV vV

> Exposure at Default (EAD) Estimation
> Exposure at Default (EAD) Valdation
> Low Default Portfolios

> Valdation of Retail pooling

Options Trading - CDS

The Bank 1s actively participating n Currency
Futures in the Currency Denvatives Segment since
August 2011, both as Propnetary as well as on behalf
of Clients (Corporates and Individuals)

Until now, Currency Futures were offered on NSE
platform to clents With a wiew to broadbase the
product range, the Bank has offered Currency
Options to its chents on NSE platform and for
USD /INR parr only The Currency Option has been
implemented on the existing platform, 1 e, Ensettle
from NSE-IT, which supports all statutory reports sent
to client for Currency Options as well as Online
Margins Monitoning, Collateral Management,
Contract Report, Ledger, Profit / Loss Repor,
Brokerage Report, etc

Outstation Voice logging system {Avaya & Voicegats)
for GMG locations

As part of expansion of GMG's outstation locations,
voice logging systems were set up at six locations
Tha new centres are Ahmedabad, Pune, Coimbatore,
Ludhana, Lucknow and Jaipur For this set-up,
we are using Avaya IPO500 telephony system and
Voicegate voice logger. Apart from the main dealing
room at Mumbai {which 1s on BT and Nice logger
set-up), we have now extended outstation dealing
room voica logging to 14 locations now {(including 3
location of CGMO-RET requirement)

Business Continuity Planning & Disaster Recovery
(DR) System

The Bank conducted DR Drills for 15 applications,
which included cntical applications like Finacle Core
Banking System, IndusNet internet Banking and the
Base 24 - ATM Switch




Information Security Review

The Bank has made steady progress in implementation
of RBlI Guidelnes on Information Securty,
Technology Risk Management, Cyber Fraud and
Electronic Banking

Due care Is taken to protect the complex technology
environment from sophisticated attacks and new
approaches have been applied nght from inception to
implementation and operations of systems The Bank s
in the process of strengthening web application secunty,
mobile security, online fraud detection and prevention
secunty, identity and access management and data
leakage prevention, etc

Additionally customers and community are being made
aware of information secunty through vanous ways

Legal

The important legislative / regulatory changes durning
the year were as under

Introduction of new Companies Act, 2013, replacing
Companies Act, 1956

Amendment of Saction 28 of the Indian Contract
Act, 1872

Amendment to the Prevention of Money Laundering
Act, 2002

Electron .
Bankin: \

The Bank has undertaken several initiatives to educate
employees, customers and non-customers through
vanety of mediums ke emails, SMSs, websites, onling
traimings and workshop

No incident of Information Secunty breach occurred
dunng the year

The salient features are as under

Provisions 1n Companies Act 2013 pertaining_to givin
of loans and guarantees by a company

Under the prowisions of the Companies Act, 1956, it
was possible for comparues to freely give guarantees
or offer secunty to secure loans granted by banks and
Financial Institutions to the Director of a company or
concerns In which such Director was interested or loans
granted to other corporates Under Section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 (New Act), these powers
have been restncted / reqgulated Under Section 185
of the new Act, companies are prohibited from giving
loans or offerng guarantee / secunty in respect of
loans granted to its Directors or concemns in which such
Directors are interested In respect of loans granted to
olher companies by banks and Financial Institutions,
the Board of Directors of the company have power to
give guarantee only up to 60% of the Paid-up Capital
and Free Reserves or up to 100% of the Reserves of
the company Prior approval of the shareholders of the
company in General Meeting by Special Resolution i1s
required in the event of the level being exceeded

The abave provisions will affect the ability of companies
to raise loans from banks and Financial Institutions
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A dment of I
Act, 1872

While 1ssuing Bank Guarantees, banks normally insert a
Limitatron Clause specifying certain period within which
the beneficianes are required to enforce the Guarantees
Insertion of the Clause was challenged by many
beneficianes, especially Government Departments as
being in violation of the provisions of Section 28 of the
Indian Contract Act, 1872 A few Courts have struck
down such Clauses

This development was affecting the banking industry
and banks were required to keep the hability open in
thewr books until the Guarantses were retummed by the
beneficiary duly discharged or the penod under the
Law of Limtation was over (which 1s 3 years in case
of pnvate parties and 30 years tn case of Government
Departments} In the light of the representation made by
banks through Indian Banks Association, Section 28 of
the Indian Contract Act, 1872 has been amended and
the following Exception has been inserted

“Exception 3 ----- This section shall not render illegal
a contract in wnhing by which any bank or financial
mnsttutton stpulate a term in a guarantee or any
agreement making a provision for guarantee for
extinguishment of the nghts or discharge of any party
thereto from any habiity under or in respect of such
guarantee or agreement on the expiry of a specified
penod which 1s not less than one year from the date
of occurring or non-occurnng of a specified event for
extinguishment or discharge of such party from the said
hability *

This new provision now enables a bank or financial
institution to limit the penod within which a guarantee
must be invoked by a beneficiary, in order for it to
be honoured

Amendment to the Prevention of Money Laundenng
{Amendment) Act, 2012

Consequent upon the submussion of an Action Plan to
the Financial Action Task Force to bning ant-money
launderng legislation in India at par with international
standards and to obwviate some of the deficiencies n
the Act expenenced by the implementing agencies,
the Preventton of Money Laundering Act has been
amended The sabent features of the amendments are
as foliows

It introduces the concept of ‘corresponding law’ to
link the prowvisions of Indian law with the laws of foreign

countnes and provides for transfer of the proceeds
of the foreign predicate offence i any manner
in India

It introduces the concept of ‘reporting entity’ to
include therein a banking company, financial
institution, intermediary or a person carrying on a
designated business or profession

The Act enlarges the defimion of offence of
money-laundenng to include theren the activities
like concealment, acquisition, possession and use of
proceeds of cnme as cnminal activities

It provides for attachment and confiscation of the
proceeds of cnme even If there 1s no conviction, so
loeng as it 1s proved that offence of money laundenng
has taken place and property in question 1s involved
in money laundering

The Act stipulates that in the proceedings relating to
money laundering, the funds shall be presumed to
be involved In the offence, unless proved othenwvise

It makes the reporting entity, its designated directors
on the Board and employees responsible for
omissions or commisstons In relation to the
reporting cbligattons

The Bank 15 not involved in any legal proceedings,
and 1s not aware of any threatened legal proceedings,
which If deterrmined adversely, could result in a
matenal adverse effect on the business Further,
there are certain legal proceedings in the context of
banking activity which are not unusual for a bank of
comparable size




ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

|

A ment of 28 of th ontr.
Act, 1872

While 1ssuing Bank Guarantees, banks normally insert a
Limitation Clause specifying certain penod within which
the beneficianes are required to enforce the Guarantees
Insertion of the Clause was challenged by many
beneficianes, especially Government Departments as
being in violation of the provisions of Sechion 28 of the
Indian Contract Act, 1872 A few Courts have struck
down such Clauses

This development was affecting the banking industry
and banks were required to keep the liabiity open n
their books until the Guarantees were retured by the
benefictary duly discharged or the penod under the
Law of Limitation was over (which 1s 3 years In case
of private parties and 30 years in case of Government
Departments) In the light of the representation made by
banks through Indian Banks Association, Section 28 of
the Indian Contract Act, 1872 has been amended and
the following Exception has been inserted

“Excephion 3 ----- This section shall not render ilegal
a contract i wnting by which any bank or financial
inshtution shpulate a term in a guarantee or any
agreement making a prowvision for guarantee for
extinguishment of the nghts or discharge of any party
thereto from any hability under or in respect of such
guarantee or agreement on the expiry of a specified
period which is not less than one year from the date
of occurring or non-occurring of a specified event for
extinguishment or discharge of such party from the said
liabthity 7

This new provision now enables a bank or financial
institution to hmit the penod within which a guarantee
must be invoked by a benehciary, in order for it to
be henoured

Amendment to the Prevention of Money Laundenng
(Amendment) Act, 2012

Consequent upon the submission of an Action Plan to
the Financral Action Task Force to bring ant-money
laundering legislation in India at par with international
standards and to obviate some of the deficiencies in
the Act expenenced by the implementng agencies,
the Prevention of Money Laundenng Act has been
amended The salient features of the amendments are
as follows

It introduces the concept of ‘corresponding law’ to
link the provisions of Indian law with the laws of foreign

countries and prowvides for transfer of the proceeds
of the foreign predicate offence in any manner
in India

It introduces the concept of 'reporting entity’ to
include theren a banking company, financial
mshtution, intermediary or a person carrying on a
designated business or profession

The Act enlarges the defimtion of offence of
money-laundenng to include therein the activities
ke concealment, acquisition, possession and use of
proceeds of crime as criminal activities

It provides for attachment and confiscation of the
proceeds of cnme even If there 1s no conviction, so
long as it 1s proved that offence of money laundering
has taken place and property in question 1s involved
in money laundenng

The Act stipulates that in the proceedings relating to
money laundering, the funds shall be presumed to
be involved in the offence, unless proved otherwise

It makes the reporting entity, its designated directors
on the Board and employees responsible for
omissions or commissions In relaton to the
reporting obligations

The Bank i1s not involved in any legal proceedings,
and 1s not aware of any threatened legal proceedings,
which if determined adversely, could result n a
matenal adverse effect on the business Further,
there are certain legal proceedings in the context of
banking activity which are not unusual for a bank of
comparable size




Corporate Communications

Durng the year 2013-14, the Bank adopted vanous
inhatives to increase the brand wisibility quotient and
ensured clutter free commurucation with an interesting
and innovative marketing approach

In an attempt to differentiate itself and stand out as
a leading banking institution, the Bank laid focus on
having well thought out marketing campaigns evenly
spread out dunng the year on vanous channels of
communication The Bank continued to conduct below-
the-line activities at branch levels which have not only
enhanced the reputation, image and recall value, but
has also established the Bank as young, progressive
and agile brand

In ine with the theme of Responsive Innovation, the
Bank launched yet another innovative service called
‘My Account My Number' which enables the customers
to choose the Bank Account Numbers of thewr choice
Customers can choose 10 out of 12 digits of their account
number basis their preference for lucky numbers,
favourite numbers, phone numbers, birthdates, years or
Just something simple

The Bank adopted a 360-deqree integrated marketing
approach to propagate the service message
Television, Out-of-Home, Radio, Digtal and Cinema
were considered as an integral part of this mulimedia
Advertising campaign One such interesting channel
of communication which the Bank leveraged upon, 1s
the creation of an exciting application, uploaded on the
Bank's Facebook page This application enables the
user to know his lucky number and helps in apening the
bank account The application recewved rave reviews
from online users and brought in tremendous visibility
to the new product and adutation to the Brand too
The application helped the Bank to engage and have a
direct interactivity with customers The Bank's fan base

Indusind Bank |

on its Facebook page also increased manifold

Ancther feather to the cap, the Bank acquired the
‘Naming and Branding Rights’ of a Rapid Metro Station
in Gurgaon called as the 'Indusind Cybercity’ The
Bank has become the first bank m India to have a Melro
Station named after it, thus making this an excellent
example of transit mode of advertising n the country
Indusind Bank Cybercity Station has a nch aesthetic
and artistic feel to 1t as the intenors, and extenors of the
station don the brand colours conveying the inherent
brand values of the Bank The grand illustrations at the
statton have brought alive the great hentage of one of
the oldest cvilizahions of the world - the Indus Valley
Cwhization, from where the Bank derves its name
and inspiration

Dunng the year, the Bank launched Indusind Bank
Indulge credit card, a marquee credit card designed
for the distinguished individual who wields influence
and power In the social hierarchy The exclusive credit
card comes with ‘no-preset-spending-hmit’ that gives
the cardholder addiional spending flexibility over and
above his credit imit depending on his past spends
and payment history Constdenng the exclusivity of the
product, the Bank talor-made marketing campaign in
select pnint media and used direct mailing achvity to
reach out to its target audience

Another significant achievement during the year has
been the opening of new branches at semi-urban and
urban locations and the sntroduction of the concept
‘Prionty Markets’, whereby the Bank created increased
density of the branch network n a particular region
The Bank identified 6 such pnonty market cities in
the country and developed specific marketing plan for
each location which entailed inthating communication

SH EN withdraw Cash without a Cardl
BRILE| At indusind Bank ATMs
21 kil Rk
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with the local population The Bank embarked on a multi-
faceted branding campaign- “Now in your neighborhood”
th one such identified city Vadodara The Bank reached
outto customers at Vadedara through canter road shows,
display hoardings, billboards and many ather interesting
engagement programs at malls and poputar hubs - all
in local flavour to reach out to the regional population

The Bank acknowledges that no communication 1s
complete without the wholehearted support of its
internal stakeholders Inthis regard, the Bank developed
interesting and engaging senes of awareness-bullding
e-direct matlers for specific campaigns, which recerved
overwhelming response from the employees There
were many engaging contests which brought n
maximum participation from the employees

Several other communication inthatives undertaken by
the Bank include

Sponsorships / donations / events with reputed
Assocrations / Trusts which in tum have given
higher visibility and reinforced the brand 1mage The
Bank participated in activites having multi-purpose
objectives such as sports, philanthropy, music,
etc alongwith service organisations / NGOs
and corporate bodies to make the Bank's
presence felt in the communty Some of
the major events were Pandit Chatural
Memonal Music concert, Saaz aur Awaaz, Design
One by Sahachan Foundaton, Annual Polo
Event organised by Ramata Vijaya Raje Scindia
Centre for Development (RVRSCD) and many other

Branch Network

events at vanous branch locations

Regular clent engagement actwvities, debit and
credt card promoticns, regional level promotions,
branch launches, an extensive round of
development of wvanous collaterals for new
products / services, and factical promotions dunng
festive / seasonal offers

The Bank's actwvites have recewved extensive
coverage both in the pnnt and electronic channels,
which has enhanced the Bank’'s image amongst its
stakeholders and has created a strong perception of
the Bank in industry circles

Penodic concalls, one-on-one nvestor meetings,
roadshows and annual analysts’ meets have all
created a positive impact on the Bank's image

Increase in the number of ATMs at strategic / high
traffic zones has gwven the Bank desired wisibility
The Bank has invested in opening ATMs at premium
locations like Arrports, Malls, Metro Stations,
Hi Streets of Metro cities, etc This has enabled
the brand to be more wvisible to the mass
affluent audience

The Bank had a sernes of wellHaid TV campaigns
in the US, UK and Canada markets for its ‘Indus Fast
Remit' service, targeting the NRI community The
Bank also continued to emphasize on the social
media, and digital marketing to its target audience

The Bank opened 102 new branches and 228 ATMs duning the year 2013-14 As on March 31, 2014, the Bank had
a total network of 602 branches spread across 404 geographical locations and 1,110 ATMs inclusive of §13 off-site
ATMs The Bank has presence in 31 States and Union Terntornes

In addition, the Bank also has represeniative offices in London and Dubai

Infrastructure

During the year 2013-14, apart from expanding its Branch network to reach pan-India network of 802 branches,
the Bank also refurbished / re-modeled 7 branches, set up 8 new administrative offices and relocated 8 branches
towards better business prospects Apart from the two Currency Chests set up dunng the last year, work is in
progress at two more Currency Chesls (Kolkata & Chennal) which are expected to significantly enhance in-house
capabilities and provide support for increased business profitability
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Bank’s Philosophy on the Code of Corporate Governance

. The Bank beheves that consistent implementation of good Corporate Govemance practices contnbutes towards
developing and sustaining the best operating systems and procedures

. The systems which have evolved allow sufficient freedom to the Board and the Management to make decisions and
take actions towards the growth of the Bank, and simultaneously remain within the framework of effective accountability
To maintain high standards of good Corporate Govemance, the Directors have formed vanous Committees of the
Board The Committees meet regularly to achieve their specific objectives

. The Bank 1s commitied tc aperate on commercial pnnciples ensunng, at the same time, the need to remain accountable,
transparent and responsive to its stakeholders

. The Bank acknowledges the need to uphold the integnty of avery transaction it enters into and belhieves that honesty
and integnty m its internal conduct would be judged by its external behaviour In this conlext, the Directors have adopted
a ‘Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management' This Code attempts to set forth the guiding principlas on
which the Bank shall operate and conduct its dally business with its multtudinous stakeholders, Government and
regulatory agencies, media, and anyone else with whom it 1s connected

Certification by the Chief Financlal Officer and the Managing Director
In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Certification by the Managing Director & CEQ and the Chief Financial

Officer of the Bank, on the financial statements and the intemnal controls relating to financial reporting has been obtained and
subrmitted to the Board

Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

The Board of Directors has laid down a "Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management' of the Bank The said
Code has been uploaded on the Bank's website (www indusind com) under the head ‘investors'> ‘Carporate Profile’>
‘Code of Conduct’

Declaration by the Managing Director Al members of the Board and Senior Management have affirmed 1o the Board, of
having complied with the ‘Code of Conduct duning the year ended March 31, 2014 and no violation of the ‘Code of Conduct’
has been reported dunng the year

* For this purpose, the term ‘Senior Management' means personnel of the Bank who are members of its Core Management
Team, excluding Board of Directors This comprises members of management who are of the level of funchional heads
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Board of Directors
i. Composition
The Board comprses Directors who have specialised knowledge and professicnal experience in diverse fields
Information in respect of each of the Directors is given below
. . . Special Knowledge / .
Name of Director Nature of Directorship Practical Experience Occupation
g ~ Non-executive Vice
Mr R Seshasayee gagl::lr;nae:; Non-executive Sgﬁgcz ;ggteeneral Chairman,
g Ashok Leyland Lid
Industnahst
Director, Indusind
Mr Ajay Hinduja Non-executive Banking & Finance International Holdings
Ltd , Mauntus, a promoter
company
Independent Rural Economy &
. Mr § C Tnpathi Non-execLtive Co-operation | AS (Retd ), Advocate
Independent Managing Director {Retd ),
Mr Ashok Kini Non-executive Banking State Bank of India
Independent Practising Chartered
Mrs Kanchan Chitale Non-executive Accountancy Accountant
Independent
Mr Vijay Vaid Non-executive SSi Industnalist
Independent Retired Executive Director
Mr T Anantha Narayanan o "o ecutive Accountancy & Agnculture o6y Ashok Leyland Ltd
Mr Romash Sobt Whole-time Director Banking Managing Director & CEQ
Altermate Director to Corporate Governance,
MrY M Kale Mr Ajay Hinduja Accounting & Taxaticn Service

1.  Meetings
Duning the year ended March 31, 2014, seven (7) meetings of the Board were held, on Apnl 18, 2013, May 8, 2013,
June 28, 2013, July 10, 2013, October 14, 2013, January 10, 2014 and March 25, 2014 Details of attendance at the
Board Meetings, other Directorships, Membership and Chairmanship of Commitiees pertamning to each Director are as
follows

Name of the Director No. of Number of other Director- No. of Com- No. of Com-
Board ships mittees mittees

Meetings of other of other
attended ¥ | ian Public Other Com- companies companies
Lo ; in which in which
Limited panies Member Chairman

. . Companies
Mr R Seshasayee 6/7 8 1 2 2
Dr T T Ram Mchan* 6/6 N A NA NA N A
Mr Ajay Hinduja** 417 0 2 0 0
Mr § C Tnpathi 77 7 1 6 1
Mr Ashok Kini 57 6 0 2 1
Mrs Kanchan Chitale 77 1 1 0 1
Mr Vijay Vaid 6/7 0 4 0 0
Mr R § Shama*™* 3/4 N A NA N A NA
Mr Y M Kale** 377 4 1 1 1
Mr Romesh Sobti 77 0 0 Q
Mr T Anantha Narayanan **** Nil 5 - 2 1
. *  Dr T T Ram Mohan ceased to hold office from January 18, 2014 upon completion of 8 years on the Board of the
Bank
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Qut of 7 meetings, 3 meetings were attended by Mr ¥ M Kale, Alternate Director to Mr Ajay Hinduja
*** Resigned from the Board we f August 7, 2013

**** Inducted as ‘Additional Director' w e f March 25, 2014

# Includes attendance through video conference

Note:

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, for the purpose of considenng the imit of the Committees on which
the Drrectors are Members / Chairmen, all Public Limited companies, whether listed or not, are included Pnvate
Limited comparues, Foreign compantes and companies under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 (not for profit}
are excluded Further Chairmanship / Membership only of the Audit Committee and the Shareholders’ Gnevance
Committee have been considered

Attendance at previous AGM

All the Directors of the Bank, except Mr Ajay Hinduja, attended the previous Annual General Meeting of the Bank held
on June 28, 2013

Remuneration:

All Non-executive Directors receve remuneration only by way of Sithng Fee for attending the meetings of the Board and
vanous Board Committees As per the Bank’s palicy, no Stock Options were granted to the Non-executive Directors

The cntena for making payment of remuneration to the Non-executive Directors are as follows

a An amount of T 20,000/ per meeting has been paid to the Non-executive Directors towards Sithng Fee for
attending meetings of the Board of Cirectors, Committee of Directors and of the Audit Commuittee, in accordance
with Rule 10B of the Companias (Central Governmeant's) General Rules & Forms, 1958

b With effact from May 2, 2006, the Board had decided that an amount of T 10,000/~ per mesting be paid as
Sitting Fee to the Non-executive Directors for attending meetings of Commuttees of the Board other than those
mentioned n (a) above

The detatls of Sitting Fees paid to the Non-executive Directors for attending the Board and Committes meetings held
dunng the year 2013-14 are as under

Name of Director Sitting Fees (%)

Mr R Seshasayee 5,20,000
Dr T T Ram Mohan * 4,50,000
Mr Ajay P Hinduja 1,20,000
Mr S C Tnpath 2,80,000
Mr Ashok Kini 2,40,000
Mrs Kanchan Chitale 3,70,000
Mr Viay Vaid 2,00,000
Mr R S Sharma** 1,60,000
Mr ¥ M Kale 70,000

* Dr T T Ram Mohan ceased to hold offica from January 16, 2014 upon completion of 8 years on the Board of the
Bank

** Rasigned from the Board we f August 7, 2013

Whole-time Directors’ compensation: The appeintment of Whale-time Directors 15 made with tha approval of tha
Reserve Bank of India

Mr. Romesh Sobti, Managing Director & CEO.

Mr Romesh Sobti was appointed as ‘Managing Director & CEO’ of the Bank w e f February 1, 2008

:
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For the financial year 2013-14, the details of remuneration of Mr Romesh Sobti are Salary ¥ 141 38 lakh, Other
Allowances ¥ 171 05 lakh, facility of company-leased and furmished accommodation, Provident Fund at 12% of Salary,
Gratuity at one month's Salary, Pension at two months' Salary, Medical Expenses reimbursement upto ¥ 1 40 lakh, Leave
Fare Concession of ¥ 1 40 lakh, Mediclaim for self and family members, Personal Accident Insurance, Performance-
based Bonus, Membership of two clubs and two official cars with dnvers

Shareholding

Equity shares held by the Directors as on March 31, 2014 are (1) Mr Romesh Sobt 3,50,000 shares (0 0666%), and
(1) Mr T Anantha Narayanan 580 shares (0 0001%)

None of the Directors hold shares in the Bank for other person(s) on a beneficial basis Further, no Director holds any
other secunty 1ssued by the Bank

Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the AGM

Mr Ajay Hinduja, Non-executive Director retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Mr T Anantha Narayanan, who was apponted as “Additonal Director” on March 25, 2014 in the category of “Non-
exacutive Independent”, shall hold office upto the date of the ensuing AGM, and is eligible for appointment Further,
in terms of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, all the five Directors on the Board of the Bank, wiz,
Mr S C Tnpathi, Mr Ashok Kini, Mrs Kanchan Chitale, Mr Vijay Vaid and Mr T Anantha Narayanan satisfy the
critena specified under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and approval of the shareholders 1s requested for
appointment of all the Independent Directors at the ensuing AGM

A brief profile of the Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment is given below

Committees of other companies Shareholding
in which Member . In Bank
(No. of
shares)

Name of companies in
which Director

Qualifications

Expertise
in specific

Date of Ap-
poiniment

Director

functional
area

Degree in Eco- |Banking &
nomucs (With | Finance 31, 2006
speciahsation in .
Finance)

Mr Ajay Hinduja Hindua Bank

{Switzerland) Ltd
Indusind Intemationa)
Holdings Ltd
{Mauntius}

Mr T Anantha

Narayanan

B Com, ACA,
AICWA

Accountancy
& Agnculture

March .

25,2014

Hinduja Leyland Finance
Ltd
Allsec Technologres Ltd

Sundaram Assaet Man-
agement Co Lid

Sanco Trans Ltd
Hinduja Foundnas Lid

Hinduja Leyland Finance Ltd , Nil

Audit Commuttee

Allsec Technologies Ltd , Audit
Committee

Sundaram Asset Managemant
Lid, Audt Committea

Mr \hjay Vaid

B Com

Small Scale
Industry
(ssly

October
18, 2011

Vaid Elastomer Proces-
sors Pvt Lid

Vijay Elastomer Proces-
sors Pvi Ltd

Vaid Overseas Pvt Ltd

Nine Enterpnses Pvt
Ltd

Nil

Nl

Mr Ashok Kinl

B Sc.MA,
CAllB

Banking

January
30, 2008

Gulf Oil Corporation Ltd
Edelweiss Asset Recon-
struction Company Pvt
Ltd

UTI Trustee Company
P Ltd

SBI Capital Markets Ltd
Fino Trusteeship Ser-
wices Ltd

Fino Pavtech Ltd

Gulf Ol Corporaticn Lid, Audit
Committes

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction
Company Lid , Audit Committes

Fino Paytech Ltd, Audt Com-
mittee

Nil
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Director Qualifications  Expertise  Date of Ap-  Name of companies in  Committees of other companies Shareholding
in specific  pointment which Director in which Member in Bank
functional (No. of

area shares)
Mr § C Tripathl |\ ¢, 1B |Rural February |+ IL&FS Infrastructure De- |+ IL&FS Infrastructure Develop- Nil
PG Diplemain | Economy & |14, 2007 velopment Compaoration ment Corporation
%vegg)mm‘ . Coaparation Reliance Capitat Asset Audit Committes
antab),
Diploma 1 ManagementCo LW [ Relance Capital Asset Manage-
M * Shipping Corporation of ment Co Ltd
anagement India Lid
ncia Audit Commuittee
* Gammon Infrastructure 1. Shipping Corporation of India
Projects Ltd Ltd
+ ILFSEnergy Develop- |  Audt Committee
ment Corporation Ltd Gammon [nfrastructure Projects
= Motherson Sumi Sys- Ltd
:ms Ltd Audt Committee
u;zt:tzmdmg Corpora- ILFS Energy Development Gor-
Kallash Heallh Pt poration Ltd
+ Kailash Healthcare
Aud
Ltd (Deemed Public udt Gommitice
Limited Company) State Trading Corporation Ltd
Audit Commitiee
+ Kallash Healthcare Pvt Ltd
Audit Committea
g‘r? Kanchan {B Com, FCA |Accountancy |October « GUIfOil Comporation Lid [=  Gulf Ol Corporation Ltd , Nil
hitale 18,2011 |« Harkan Management Audt Committee, Remunera-
Consultancy Services tion Committee and Nomnation
Pt Ltd Committee

Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted several Committees of Directors to take decisions and monitor the activibes faling within their
terms of reference The Board’s Committees are as follows

Audit Committee of the Board

Terms of reference

Composttion

Meelings

The role of the Audit Committee includes, inter aha (1) Oversight of the Bank’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial Information to ensure that the financial statement 1s correct,
sufficient and credible, (2) Recommending to the Board, the appointment / re-appointment of Auditors
and fixation of audit fees, (3) Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly and annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to (1) Changes, if any,
In accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same, {n) Major accounting entries involving
estmates based on the exercise of judgment by the Management, (i) Significant adjustments made in
the financial statements ansing cut of audit indings, (iv) Disclosure of related party transachons, if any,
{v) Qualifications in the draft Audit Report, and {wi) Review of Management Discussion and Analysis of
Bank'’s financial conditton and results of operations

The specialised functions of the Audit Committee include (1) Reviewing with the Management, the
performance of Statutory and Internal Auditors and the adequacy of the internal control systems, and
(2) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the Internal Auditors into matters where
there 1s suspected fraud or irregulanty or a failure of internal control systems of a matenal nature

The Commuttee comprised four members, viz , Mrs Kanchan Chitale, Mr S C Tnpathi, Mr Ashok Kim,
and Mr R S Sharma (resigned from the Board w e f August 7, 2013) and Mr T Anantha Narayanan

(wet Apnl 16, 2014)

The Committee met 6 imes dunng the financial year 2013-14, viz , on Apnl 17,2013, May 8, 2013, July
9, 2013, September 20, 2013, October 14, 2013 and January 9, 2014
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The attendance details of the members are as under (#)

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended

Mrs Kanchan Chitale 5
Mr § C Tnpath 6
Mr Ashok Kini 4
Mr R 8 Sharma 2
Mr Vijay Vaid * 1

* Mr Vijay Vaid was co-opted for the meeting held on January 9, 2014, owing to Mr Ashok Kinr's
inability to attend

# Includes attendance through video conference

Committee of Directors

Terms of Reference  Tha Committae of Directors exercises powers delegated to it by the Board, for managing the affairs

Composition

Meetings

of the Bank, for effictant control over operational areas, and for ensuring speedy disposal of matters
requinng immediate approval

The Committee compnsed four members, viz, Mr R Seshasayee, Dr T T Ram Mohan (ceased to
hold office from January 16, 2014 upon completion of 8 years on the Board), Mr R S Sharma (resigned
from the Board we f August 7, 2013}, Mr T Anantha Narayanan (inducted we{ Apnl 16, 2014},
Mrs Kanchan Chitale (inducted we f Apnl 16, 2014) and Mr Romesh Sobti

The Committee met 16 imes durng the financial year 2013-14, viz, on May 8, 2013, May 31, 2013,
June 24, 2013, July 19, 2013, August 13, 2013, Seplember 16, 2013, September 23, 2013, November
1, 2013, November 8, 2013, November 26, 2013, December 11, 2013, December 20, 2013, December
27,2013, January 31, 2014, March 7, 2014 and March 21, 2014

The attendance details of the members are as under (#)

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended

Mr R Seshasayee 14
Dr T T Ram Mohan 13
Mr R S Shama 3
Mr Romesh Sobti 13
Mrs Kanchan Chitale * 1

* Mrs Kanchan Chitale was co-opted for the meeting held on March 7, 2014

# Includes attendance through wvideo confarence

Nomination Committee

Terms of reference

Composthon

Meetings

The Committee conducts dus diligence as to the credentials of a Director before his / her appointment
and makes appropnate recommendations to the Board, in consonance with the recommendations of
Dr Ganguly Committes and the requirements of RBI

The Committee compnsed four members, viz, Mr R Seshasayee, Mr Ajay Hinduja, Mrs Kanchan
Chiale and Mr Romesh Sobh

The Commuittee met twice dunng the financial year 2013-14, viz, on April 18, 2013 and March 25,
2014
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The attendance details of the members are as under (#)

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended

Mr R Seshasayes 2
Mr Ajay Hinduja 1
Mrs Kanchan Chitale 2
Mr Romesh Sobt * 1

* Mr Sobti, being interested, abstained from attending the mesting heid on April 18, 2013
# Includes attendance through video conference

Stakeholders Relations Committee
Terms of Reference The objective of the Stakeholders Relations Committee 1s the redressal of stakeholders’ complaints

Composition
Meetings

The Company Secretary discharges the responsibilities of a Complance Officer
The Committee comprised two members, viz,, Mr Vijay Vaid and Mr Romesh Sobti

The Committee met twice dunng the financial year 2013-14, viz, on October 14, 2013 and March 24,
2014

The attendance details of the members are as under (#)

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended
Mr Vijay Vaid 2

Mr Romesh Sobti 2

# Includes attendance through video confarence

Special Committee of the Board {for monitoring large value frauds)

Terms of Reference

Composttion

Meetings

in accordance with the directives of Reserve Bank of India, a Special Committee has been set up for
monitoring and follow-up of cases of frauds involving amounts of T 1 crore and above

The Committee compnised three members, viz, Dr T T Ram Mohan {ceased to hold office from
January 16, 2014 upon completion of 8 years on the Board of the Bank), Mrs Kanchan Chitale,
Mr Ashok Kimi and Mr Romesh Sobt

The Commitiee met twice dunng the financial year 2013-14, viz,, on September 20, 2013 and March
24, 2014

The atiendance details of the members are as under (#)

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended

Dr T T Ram Mohan 1
Mrs Kanchan Chitale 1
Mr Ashok Kini 2
Mr Romesh Sobh 1

# Includes attendance through wideo conference

Customer Service Committee

Terms of reference

Composition

The Committaa’s function 1s to monitor the gualty of customer service extended by the Bank, and to
attend to the needs of customers

The Committee compnsed three members, viz, Dr T T Ram Mohan (ceased to hold office from
January 18, 2014 upon completion of 8 years on the Board of the Bank), Mr Ashok Kini, Mr Vijay Vaid
and Mr Romesh Sobti

:



ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

PR SRV - -

Meetings The Committee mat twice during the financial year 2013-14, wiz,, on September 20, 2013 and March
24,2014

The attendance details of the members are as under

Or T T Ram Mohan 1
Mr Ashok Kini 2
Mr Vijay Vaid 2
Mr Romesh Sobti -

Risk Management Committee

Terms of reference  The Committee’s role 1s to examine risk policies and procedures developed by the Bank and to monitor
adherence to vanous rnsk parameters and prudential imits by the vanous operating departments

Composition The Committee compnsed three members, viz, Dr T T Ram Mohan (ceased to hold office from
January 16, 2014 upon completion of 8 years on the Board of the Bank), Mr Ajay Hinduja, Mr Ashok
Kini (inducted we f Apnl 16, 2014) and Mr Romesh Sobti

Meetings The Committee met four times duning the financial year 2013-14, viz, on Apnl 17, 2013, July 9, 2013,
October 11, 2013 and January 9, 2014

The attendance details of the members are as under (#)

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended

Dr T T Ram Mohan 4
Mr Ajay Hinduja* 1
Mr Romesh Sabti 4

* One meeting was attended by Mr Y M Kale, Alternate Director to Mr Ajay Hinduja
# Includes attendance through video conference

Finance Committee

Terms of referance  The Committee’s role is to decide on the appropnate mode of 1ssue of capital, to finalise, settle, approve
or agree 1o terms and condittons including the pricing for the said capital-ratsing programme, finalise,
setlle, approve, and authanse the executing of any document, deed, wnting, undertaking, guarantee or

other papers (including any modification thareof) in connaction with the capitat-raising pregramme and

. authonse the affixing of the Common Seal of the Company, If necessary thereto in accordance with
the provisions of Articles of Association of the Company, to appoint and to fix terms and conditions of
merchant bankers, investment bankers, lead or other managers, advisors, solicitors, agents or such
other persons or infermedianes as may be deemed necessary for the capital-raising programme, to
do all such things and deal with all such matters and take all such steps as may be necessary to give
effect to the rasolution for raising of capital and to settle / resolve any question or difficulties that may
anse with regard to the said programme

Composthon The Committee compnsed four members, vz , Mr R Seshasayee, Mr S C Tripath, Mr Ajay Hinduja
and Mr Romesh Sobti
Meetings There was no event dunng 2013-2014 and hence no meetings were convened

Compensation Committee

Terms of reference  The Committee’s role 1s to make recommendations on the 1ssuance of the Bank's shares to its
employees under the Employees Stock Option Scheme

Compostlion The Committes comprised two mambers, viz, Mr R Seshasayes and Mrs Kanchan Chitale

Meetings The Committee met six imes during the financial year 2013-14, viz, on Apnil 18, 2013, June 28, 201 3,
September 23, 2013, October 29, 2013, January 29, 2014 and March 25, 2014
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The attendance details of the members are as under

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended
Mr R Seshasayee 6
Mrs Kanchan Chitale 6

Vigllance Committee
Terms of reference The Committee conducts overview of cases of lapses of vigilance nature on the part of employees of

the Bank

Composition The Committee comprised two members, viz, Dr T T Ram Mohan (ceased to hold office from January
16, 2014 upon completion of 8 years on the Board of the Bank), Mr § C Tnpathi and Mr Romesh
Sobh

Meetings The Committee met twice dunng the financial year 2013-14, viz , on September 20, 2013 and March
25, 2014

The attendance details of the members are as under

Dr T T Ram Mohan 1
Mr S C Trpathi 2
Mr Romesh Sobt 1

L.T. Strategy Committee

Terms of reference The Committee conducts Board-level overview of aligning Information Technology with the business
strategy of the Bank aimed at offering better service to customers, improved nsk management and

supenor performance

Composition The Committee comprnised two members, viz , Mr Ashok Kini and Mr Romesh Sobt:
Meetings The Committee met twice during the financial year 2013-14, viz, on June 13, 2013 and March 24,
2014

The attendance detalls of the members are as under

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended
Mr Ashok Kini 2
Mr Romesh Sobt 2

Human Resources Committee

Terms of reference  The Committee reviews the Bank's HR function

Composition The Gommittee compnsed two members, viz, Mr R Seshasayee and Mr Ajay Hinduja
Meelings The Committee met twice dunng the financial year 2013-14, viz,, on September 30, 2013 and January
10, 2014

The attendance details of the members are as under (#)

Number of Meetings attended

Name of Member
R Seshasayee
Mr Ajay Hinduja
#Includes attendance through video cenference

7

H
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Remuneration Committee

Terms of reference

Composttion

Meetings

The Committee oversees the framing, review and implementation of the Bank's Compensation Policy
for Whole Time Directors / Chief Executive Officers / Risk Takers and Control function staff towards
ensunng effective alignment between remuneration and nsks

The Committee compnised four members, viz, Mr R Seshasayee, Mrs Kanchan Chitale, Mr Vijay
Vaid and Mr Romesh Sobh

The Committee met twice dunng the financial year 2013-14, viz, on Apnl 18, 2013 and March 25,
2014

The attendance details of the members are as under

Name of Member Number of Meetings attended

R Seshasayee 2
Mrs Kanchan Chitale 2
Mr Vijay Vaid 2

Mr Romesh Sobt) * -

* Mr Romesh Sobt, being interested, abstained from attending the meetings

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

As per the Compantes Act, 2013 (which has come into effect from Apnl 1, 2014), every company having Net Worth of
¥ 500 crore or more, or Turnaver of T 1,000 crore or more or Nat Profit of T 5 crore or more, during any financial year shall
constitute a ‘Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)} Committee’ of the Board consisting of three er more Directors, out of
which at least one Director shall be an Independent Director

Accordingly, the CSR Commitiee was constituted cn October 14, 2013

Terms of reference

Composition

Meetings

The Committea’s role i1s to ensure that the Bank spends in every financial year at least 2% of its
average Net Profits made durning three immediately preceding financial years in pursuance of its CSR
Policy

The Committee compnsed four members, viz, Mr Ashok Kini, Mrs Kanchan Chitale, Mr Vijay Vaid
and Mr Romesh Sobti

Tha Compantes Act 2013, having come into effect from Apni 1, 2014, no meetings were held during the
financial year 2013-14

Details of the three previous Annual General Meetings:

AGM Day and Date Time Venue Whether Special
Resolution Passed
19*  Fnday, June 28, 2013 200pm Hote! Le Mendien, Raja Bahadur Mill Road, No
Pune — 411001
18"  Tuesday, July 17, 2012 200pm Hotel Le Mendien, Raja Bahadur Mill Road, Yes
Pune — 411001
17 Fnday, July 15, 2011 200pm Hotel Sun-n-Sand, 262, Bund Garden Road, Yes

Pune — 411001
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Special Resolutions:

The details of Special Resolutions passed at the Annual General Meestings of shareholders in the last three years are given
below

Annual General Meeting Date Resolution

19" Annual General Meeting June 28, 2013 Nil

18™ Annual General Meeting July 17,2012 = Resolution No 9 Authonty for augmentation of capital through
further issuae / placement of secunties including Amencan Depository
Receipts / Global Depository Recempts / Qualfied Instiiutional
Placerment, etc

17t Annual General Meeting July 15, 2011 * Resolution No 7 Authonty for augmentation of capital through
further 1ssue / placement of secunties including Amencan Depository
Receipts / Global Depository Receipts / Qualfied Inshiutonal
Placement, etc
* Resolution No 8 Increase in Authonsed Capital from the existing

¥ 500 croras to ¥ 550 crores

Postal Ballot:

In accordance with Section 192A of the Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Passing of the Resolution by
Postal Ballot) Rules, 2011, as amended from time to time (the ‘Postal Ballot Rules’), the consent of the shareholders for any
resolution for alteration in the Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association 1s required to be obtained by means of a
Postal Ballot instead of transacting the same in the General Meeting

Accordingly, a Postal Ballot was conducted prior to the 20" Annual General Meeting, to pass appropnale resolutions as
Special Resolution for amending the Main Objects Clause of the Memorandum of Association by deleting the word ‘life’
appeanng after the words ‘to solicit and procure’ in sub-clause 18C under Clause Il (A) of the Memorandum of Association
The amended sub-clause 18C under Clause Il {A} would read as ‘To sohcit and procure Insurance business as Corporate
Agent and to undertake such other activities as are incidental or ancillary thereto '

The Bank had appointed Mr S N Bhandan, Practising Company Sectetary, as Scrutimzer for conducting the Postat Ballot
process The Scrutimizer submitted his report to the Managing Director of the Bank after completion of scrutiny 1n a fair and
transparent manner and the result of passing the above-mentioned Special Resolutions through Postal Baliot was announced
on February 17, 2014 at 4 60 p m at the Corporate Office and at the Registered Office of the Bank

Material Disclosures:

Related Party Transactlons Durnng the yeat, there were no matenally significant related pary transactions that could have
had any potential for conflict with the interests of the Bank at large Details are avaltable at Schedu's 18 (Notes on Accounts)
forming part of the Audited Financial Statements for the year

Disqualification of Directors As on March 31, 2014, none of the Directors of the Bank were disquahfied under Section
274(1) {g) of the Compames Act, 1956

Mandatory requirements of Clause 49: The Bank has compled with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate
Governance stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agresment A certificate to this effect has been 1ssued by M/s Bhandan
& Associates, Company Secretanes, and tha same has been incorporated elsewhere In this document

Accounting Standards In the preparation of financial statements for the year 2013-2014, the treatment prescribed in the
Accounting Standards 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time, has been followed by the

Bank

Non-Mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement:

The status of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement 1s given below
Chairman’s Office: The Chairman has been provided with an office at the Corporate Office of the Bank

Tenure of Independent Directors While Clauss 49 puts forth a non-mandatory requirement that the tenure of a Director
may be restricted 1o nine years, according to Section 10A (2A) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, “No director of a banking
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company, other than its Chairman or Whole-time Director, by whatever name called, shall hold office continuously for a penod
exceeding eight years ”

Remuneration Committee: The Board of Directors has constituted the Remuneration Commuittee, in terms of guidelines
1ssued by Reserve Bank of India {RBI) for Compensation for Whole Time Directers / Chief Executive Officers/ Risk Takers and
Control function staff The Commitiee’s role is to oversee framing, iImplementation and review of the Bank's Compensation
Policy

Shareholders’ Rights The Bank publishes 1ts results on its website (www indusind com) which 1s accessible to the public at
large Besides this, the quarterly financial results are published in newspapers, apart fram being reported on the websites of
the Stock Exchanges Therefore, the Bank does not find it expedient to send individual communications 1o the shareholders
regarding significant events and financial performance every half-year

All information pertaining to business and developmental achiviies are intimated to the Stock Exchanges on a continuous
basis The Stock Exchanges in turn announce the corporate information on their respective websites

E-mail messages and SMS messages were sent during the year to shareholders whose e-mail 1Ds and cell phone numbers
were avallable with the Bank, informing them about declaration of the Bank’s Quarterty and Annual Financial Results

The Bank has continued the exercise of collecting the e-mail IDs of shareholders, so as lo communicate more regularly via
e-mall

Audit qualifications The Bank endeavors to remain in a regime of unqualified financial statements

Training of Board Members The Directors are provided with opportunities to attend serminars and workshops in arder 1o
equip them with relevant inputs for effective discharge of their responsibiliies as Directors

Mechanism for evaluating Non-executive Board Members The Bank does not have a mechanism for evaluating the
performance of Non-executive Directors

Whistleblower Policy: In line with RBI regulations towards strengthening financial stability and enhancing public confidence
in the robustness of the financial sector, the Bank has instituted the ‘Protectad Disclosures Schame’ Tha Bank has also
instituted a ‘Whistleblower Policy’

None of the Bank's personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee

Indusind Bank Ltd. — Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading

In accordance with the requirements of the Secunties and Exchange Board of India ({Prohibiion of] Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992, the Bank has instituted a comprehensive 'Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading’

Means of Communication

Besides communicating to the Stock Exchanges where the Bank’s shares are listed, the financial results of the Bank are
also published on a quarterly basis in leading financial pubhcations and regional newspaper in the Bank’s Registered Office
location, viz , Economic Times, Financial Express, Maharashtra Times, Business Standard and Mint

Quarterly Comphance Reports on Corporate Governance as prescnbed under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and the
Shareholding Pattern of the Bank as prescnbed under Clause 35 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges are also
filed through NSE Electronic Application Processing System {NEAPS) and BSE Listing Centre

Information relating to the financial results 1s also hosted under “Investors” > “Shareholders Corner” > “Financials” on the
Bank's website (www indusind com} The said sections are updated ragularly

Quarterly Press meets are organized dunng which the results are formally announced to the media and press releases
are 1ssued for publication Regular interviews with the electronic channels on the awareness of results and other available
opportunities are arranged for the Managing Director and the Chief Operating Officer

Analyst Meets and Conference Calls with the Analyst fraternity are also held penodically A transcript of the calls 1s hosted in
the Bank's website

The Management's Discussion and Analysis report far 2013-14 forms part of this Annual Report

Subsidiary Company — ALF Insurance Services Private Ltd.

The Bank dees not have a "matenal non-listed Indian subsidiary” as defined in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement However,
ALF Insurance Services Private Ltd ts a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank The Company was set up to do the business
of Insurance Corporate Broking, but had not commenced operations The Bank has since decided against entenng nto
Insurance Broking business and voluntary winding up proceedings have been initiated
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility has been and continues 1o be an integral part of the business objectives of the Bank It Is the
foundatton for economic, organisational, social and technological innovations and helps boost the topline / bottomiine growth
of the Bank During the year, the Bank saw many achievements in the “Green Banking” project under the “Hum Aur Hanyal”
campaign

The Bank 1s closely associated with Centre for Environment and Research Education (CERE), an NGO, for guidance on
green practices

Sustainability-driven Growth

The Bank believes that a company has never truly integrated sustainability until sustainability has become a part of its very
culture and corporate DNA Creating a sustainable company not only benefits the planet, but it also impacts people — from
employees and consumers to partners and the local communities where we do businass For the Bank, sustainability means
building a successful business and creating long-term value for our people, our customers, our shareholders and the wider
community

Reporting

In terms of SEBI guidelines, Business Rasponsibiity Report (BR Report) is to be included in the Annual Reports of histed
entities The BR Report 1s governed by certain key pnnciples adopted from the National Voluntary Guidelines (NVG) and the
descniption of the core elements under these pnnciples are as under

Prnciple 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

Principle 2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contnbute to sustainabiity throughout their lile
cycle

Principle 3 Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employess

Principle 4 Businesses should raspect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized

Pnnciple 5 Businesses should respect and promote human nghts

Principle 6 Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment

Principle 7 Businesses, when engaged in infiuencing public and regulatery policy, should do so in a responsible manner
Principle 8 Businegsses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

Principle 8 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

With the implementation of the Companias Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, companies can send Annual Reports
and other communications through electronic mode to those shareholders who have registered thetr email addresses with the
Company or made available by the Depository

The full text of these reports shall also be made available in an easily navigable format on the Bank’s website, www indusind
com

General Information for Shareholders

Registration No 11-76333

CIN - LB5191PN1984PLC076333
Financial Year 2013-2014

Board meeting for adoption of Audited Financial Accounts Apnl 16, 2014

Posting of Annual Report 2013-14 : June 3, 2014

Day, Date and Time of 20™ Annual General Meeting ! Fnday, June 27, 2014 a2 00 p m
Venue *  Hotel Sun-n-Sand, Pune
Financial Calendar *  Apnl 1to March 31

Book Closure *  Waednesday, June 18, 2014 to Fnday, June 27, 2014
Date of Dividend Payment : July1,2014

Bank’s Website ' wwwindusind com
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Distribution of Shareholding - March 31, 2014

Percentage of Percentage of

Range — Shares No. of Folios No. of shares

Folics Shares
Upto 1,000 93,807 9348 1,75,34,422 334
1,001 - 5,000 5,159 514 1,05,86,437 201
5,001 - 10,000 526 052 39,54,030 075
10,001 - 50,000 488 049 1,09,56,124 209
50,001 & above 375 037 48,24,15,471 91 81
TOTAL 1,00,355 100.00 52,54,46,484 100.00

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any Convertible Debentures, conversion date and likely
impact on equity

The Bank has 6,46,82,364 GDRs {equivalent to 6,46,82,364 equity sharas) outstanding, which constituted 12 31% of the
Bank’s total equity capital as at March 31, 2014

Shareholding as on March 31, 2014

i. Distribution

Category No. of shares held % of shareholding
A Promoters’ holding 7,98,99,984 15.21
B. Non-Promoters’ holding 44,55,46,500 8479
() Institutional Investors
a Mutual Funds and UTI 2,54,17,071 484
b Banks, Financial Instifutions, Insurance Companies {Cen- 1,37,94,817 262
tral / State Gov Institutions / Non-government Instiiutions)
¢ Flls 22,74,17,505 43 28
Sub Total 26,66,29,393 50.74
(i) Global Depository Receipts 6,46,82,364 1231
(iii) Others
a Pnvate Corporate Bodies 6,95,03,868 1323
b Indian Public* 3,73,39,566 71
¢ NRIs/OCBs 55,79,030 106
d  Clearing Members 14,75,820 028
e Trusts 3,36,459 006
Sub Total 11,42,34,743 21.74
GRAND TOTAL 52,54,46,484 100.00

* ‘Indian Public’ iIncludes 3,53,880 shares held by Resident Directors
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ii. Major Shareholders (with more than 1% shareholding)

Sr. No. Name of Shareholder No. of shares held % of shareholding
1 The Bank of New York Mellon (GDR Depository} 6,46,82,364 12 3100
2 Indusind International Holdings Ltd 6,03,99,984 11 4950
3 GA Global Investments Limited 2,58,94,839 4 9282
4 Brdge India Fund 2,22,63,458 42371
5 Indusind Limited 1,95,00,000 37111
6 Afrin Dia 1,61,65,000 30764
7 Goldman Sachs Investments (Maurtius) | Ltd 1,52,95,985 29110
8 Life Insurance Corporation of India 1,23,59,404 2 3522
9 HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited 97,84,162 1 8621
10  IDL Spectalty Chemicals Limited 87,98,000 16744
11 ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Lid 78,85,269 1 5007
12  Aasia Management and Consultancy Private Limited 78,39,117 14919
13  Frankhn Templeton Mutual Fund A/c Franklin India Bluechip 76,89,526 14634

Fund
14  Norwest Venture Partners X Fil-Mauntius 67,18,087 12785
15 Government of Singapore 63,81,838 12148
16  Bida Sun Life Trustee Company Pnvate Limited A/C Birla 62,67,150 11927
Sun Life Frontline Equity Fund
17  CPCI {Mauntius) Ltd 61,54,168 11712
18  DVI Fund Mauntius Limited 56,86,300 10822
19  Frankhn Templeton Investment Fund 53,19,928 10125

ili. Total Foreign Shareholding

No. of shares held *» of shareholding

Total Foreign shareholding 37,75,79,150 7186
Of which GDRs 6,46,82,364 12 3t
Details of complaints received and resolved from April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014
Complaints Received Attended to Pending
Non-Receipt of Share Certificate “63 63 0
Non-Receipt of Dmdend Warrants *39 39 0
Non-Receipt of Endorsement Stickers 0 0 0
Non-Receipt of Annual Report 1 0
Non-Receipt of Demat Credit / Remat 0 0 0
Cenificate
Non-Receipt of Rejected DRF 1 1
Non-Receipt of Exchanged Centificate 10 10
Non-Receipt of Split / Duphcate / 1 1 0
Replacement Certificate
Others 1 1 0
Total 116 116 0| .

* Cne complaint each pertaining to financial year 2012-13
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Listing details of the Bank’s Equity Shares / GDRs on Stock Exchanges

Name of the Stock Exchange  Address of the Stock Exchange Stock Code No.

BSE Ltd Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street, 532187
Mumbai 400001

Nationat Stock Exchange of Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor Bandra-Kurla  INDUSINDBK
India Ltd Complex, Plot No C/1, G Block, Bandra
(E), Mumbai - 400 051

Luxembourg Stock Exchange Soctété de la Bourse de Luxembourg 111202
{Global Depository Receipts) Societe Anonyme
RC Luxembourg B 6222

The Bank has paid annual listing fees on its capital for the relevant penod to BSE Ltd and Nationa! Stock Exchange
of India Ltd where its shares are listed and to Luxembourg Stock Exchange where its Global Depository Receipts are
listed

Market Price Data of the Bank’s shares
i. Naticnal Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Ope s 0 0
01-Apr-13 407 50 417 80 403 60 41570 5910 05 5704 40 11425 55
2-May-13 467 00 476 70 465 00 472 80 5465 27 5998 35 12709 95
3-Jun-13 520 00 525 40 501 45 509 90 7157 79 5839 30 12402 10
1-Jul-13 466 50 481 90 465 00 471 95 4771 90 5898 85 11714 90
1-Aug-13 391 95 398 60 368 10 392 95 14769 97 5727 85 10142 95
2-Sep-13 357 95 383 35 357 95 381 05 8329 74 5580 75 9139 50
1-Oct-13 37100 386 50 366 50 383 05 8563 25 5780 05 9883 30
1-Nov-13 443 00 455 95 442 10 44915 8167 BB 6307 20 11628 65
2-Dec-13 425 40 435 55 422 20 433 40 7928 76 6217 85 11284 35
1-Jan-14 422 60 424 60 421 35 423 35 1843 72 6301 65 11385 60
3-Feb-14 380 45 384 95 377 70 382 30 3089 54 6001 80 10102 10
3-Mar-14 397 00 403 75 390 35 392 25 3580 49 6221 45 10651 95
31-Mar-14 505 00 508 45 496 15 50185 9556 32 6704 20 12742 05

18000
15000
14000
13000
12000
11000
10000
$000
BO0D
7000
#8000
5400 s Turhiovar
00 {Fa. Lakhs)
1000 —»—Price
0.90.3,5-.5.?-?9.?..\--?«‘*

” A SF SIS TSP

{Actual values of Indices hava baen rotznad in the graph whemeas (Actual values of trada has bean ratained in the graph whie

the price has baan [actored for tha purpose of comparnson. the pnca has been factored for ihe purpoas of comparision

The pricas have been mestiplied by 25) Tha piicas have been multipled by 5)
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li. BSE Ltd.
Date Price of Shares Turnoverin  SENSEX BANKEX
Open {3) High (2) Low ()  Close(?) *Lakhs

1-Apr-13 416 00 41810 404 00 416 00 277380 1886475| 1311520
2-May-13 470 70 476 70 465 80 47190 60822| 1973577| 1453174
3-Jun-13 517 00 521 20 501 50 510 65 41519 1961048 1418267
1-Jul-13 47130 48135 466 80 47185 44431| 1957739 1338258
1-Aug-13 391 80 398 40 368 20 393 35 1937 40| 1931719 1157872
2-Sep-13 356 00 385 00 356 00 380 65 1080 52| 1888613| 10397 9
1-Oct-13 37290 386 80 366 75 38325 171046| 1951715 1125705
. 1-Nov-13 446 50 456 00 443 00 448 80 107405 2119681 1327615
2-Dec-13 42500 435 40 422 45 432 60 858 46| 2089801! 1287819
1-Jan-14 424 00 42500 421 40 423 80 21012| 2114048| 1301039
3-Feb-14 383 00 384 70 377 65 38225 45914| 2020926 11554 48
3-Mar-14 397 00 403 80 390 20 39225 35533| 2094665| 1218067
31-Mar-14 505 70 508 45 496 25 501 20 47122| 2238627 1457246

-

s

— SENSEY e
o= e

oo —a-rrie
AB1Y May 13 i) MHIE Aug1Y Bepld Dxi13 Hewld Dacid Jenid Febid Mar 14 Mar 14 L
g bt Ui S ook yotior S A
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Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The Bank’s sharas are tradable {in electronic form only} at the BSE Ltd and the National Stock Exchange of India Lid ,
97 93% of the Bank's shares are dematanalised and the rest remain in physical form The volume of trades and share
price information is provided In the tables abave

In view of the numerous advantages offered by the depositary system, members holding the shares of the Bank in
physical form are requested to get the same dematenalsed and converted to the electronic form

Share Transfer System

A Share Transfer Committee compnsing the Bank's executives has been formed to deal with matters relating to transfer
of shares, 1ssue of duplicate shara certificates in heu of mutilated share certificales or those which are misplaced / lost,
and other related matters The approvals granted by the Share Transfer Committee are confirmed at subsequent Board

meetings With a view to expediting the process of physical share transfers, the Share Transfer Committee meets every

Fnday

Trading in the Bank's shares now takes place compulsorily in dematenalised form However, members holding share
certificates in physical form are entitled to transter their shareholding by forwarding the share certificates along with
valhd, duly executed and stamped Secunties Transfer Form (Form No SH-4) signed by the member (or on his / her |
behalf} and the transferee, 1o the Bank or to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Pvt Ltd
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As required under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement, a Practising Company Secretary has examined the records
relating to Share Transfer Deeds, Registers and other related documents on a half-yearly basis and has certified
comphance with the provisions of the above Clause The Certificates are forwarded to BSE and NSE where the Bank's
equity shares are listed

As required by SEBI, Share Capital Audit 1s conducted by a Practising Company Secretary on a quarterly basis, for the
purpose, Inter alia, of reconciliation of the total admitted equity Share Capital with the depositones and in the physical
form with the total 1ssued / paid-up equity capital of the Bank Certificates issued in this regard are forwarded to BSE
and NSE

Sharehelders holding shares in different follos but In identical name(s) are requested to get therr shareholdings
consolidated into one folio by requesting the Bank / Registrar for the same The request may please be accompaniad
with proot of identification and the share certificates

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
Link Intime India Pvt Ltd

C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound

L B S Marg, Bhandup (West)

Mumbal — 400078

Contact Person: Mr Mahesh Masurkar
Tel 02225963838 /022 25946980 Fax 022 25946969
Email mt helpdesk@hnkintime co In

Redressal of Investors’ Grievances

In order to service the investors in an efficient manner and to attend to thar grnevances, the Bank has constituted an
‘Investor Services Cell' at its undermentioned office at Mumbai Members are requested to conlact

Mr Raghunath Poojary

Investor Services Cell

Indusind Bank Ltd

Solitaire Corporate Park

167, Guru Hargovind) Marg

Andhen (East), Mumbai - 400093

Tel 022 66412487 Fax 022 66412347
Email investor@indusind com

Dividends
Receipt of dividend through Electronic mode

Shareholders can opt for receving dividend credit diractly in to therr bank account by way of updating their Bank
Account details with the Depository Participant (DP) in case the shares are held in demat mode or with the Registrar &
Share Transfer Agent viz,, Link Intime India Pvt Ltd in case the shares are held in physical form

To avail of this facility, shareholders can approach their DPs or send a request letter to Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
duly signed by the shareholder(s) mentioning particulars of Bank Account, Folio No and attaching self-attested copies
of PAN Card, proof of Residence (not older than two monthg), cancelled cheque leaf along with signature attestation

letter from their Bank

Unclaimed Dividends

In accordance with the provisions of Section 124 (5) of the Compames Act, 2013 (cotresponding Section 205A of the
Companies Act, 1956), read with Investor Educatron and Protection Fund {(Awareness and Protection of Investors), Rules
2001, dividend which remains unclaimed for a penod of seven years from the date of transfer to the ‘Unpaid Dividend
Account of the Company shall be transterred to the ‘Investor Education and Protechon Fund’ (IEPF) established by the
Central Government Dividends for and up to the finaneial year ended March 31, 2005 have already been transferred

to ‘IEPF’
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Details of unclaimed dividends for the financial year 2006-07 onwards and the last date for claiming the dividend for
respective years are given in the table below Members are requested to take note of such due dates and claim the
unpaid dividend well In advance of the due date (1 @ before the expiry of the seven years penod)

Year Type of dividend Date of declaration of Dividend Due date for availing unclaimed Dividend
2008-07 Final 18 Septamber 2007 23 October 2014
2007-08 Fnat 22 September 2008 27 October 2015
2008-09 Final 3 Juty 2009 8 August 2016
2009-10 Final 28 June 2010 2 August 2017
2010-11 Final 15 July 2011 19 August 2018
2011-12 Final 17 July 2012 21 August 2019
2012-13 Final 28 June 2013 2 August 2020

Pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, it 1s clanfied that claims in respect of dividend amounts that have
remained unclaimed or unpaid beyond the period of seven years from the date of payment shall be made with IEPF (1 @
with the Central Govenment) In other words, no claims shall lie against the Bank upon expiry of penod of seven years
from the date of payment
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of indusind Bank Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Indusind Bank Limited('the Bank’), which compnse the
Balance Sheet as at 31March 2014, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended,
a summary cf sigrificant accounting polictes and other explanatory information

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2

Management 1s responsible for preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with provisions of Section 29 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 211 of the Compames Act, 1956 and circulars and guidehnes 1ssued by Reserve
Bank of India from time to time This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair iew and are free
from matenal misstatement, whether due te fraud or error

Auditor’'s Responsibility

3

Our responsibility 1s to express an opimion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit
of the Bank including its branches in accordance with Standards on Auditing (‘the Standards’) 1ssued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtatn reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenal misstatements

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statemenis The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the nsks of
matenal misstatement of the financal statements, whether due to fraud or error fn making those nsk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and far presentation of the financia! statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinien on the effectivenass of the Bank’s intemal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estmates made by management, as well as
evaluabing the overall prasentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion

Opinion

6

In our opinion and to the best of our nformation and according to the explanations given to us, the financial statements
give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the Companies Act, 1956, in the mannar
so required for banking companies and give a true and farr view in conformity with accounting pnnciples generally

accepted In India
{a) nthe case of the Balance Sheelt, of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 March 2014,
{b) Inthe case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Bank for the year ended on that date, and

{c) nthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Bank for the year ended on that date
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

7

10

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up In accordance with the provisions of Section
29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956

We report that

{a)

(b)
{c)

we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, wera
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory,

the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice, have been within the powars of the Bank, and

dunng the course of our audit we have visited 21 branches Since the key operations of the Bank are auvtornated
with the key applications integrated to the core banking systems, the audit 1s carned out centrally as all the
necessary records and data required for the purposes of our audit are available therein

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting
Standards referred to in subsection (3C} of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956, to the exteni they are not
inconsistent with the accounting polictes prescnbed by Reserve Bank of India

We further report that

0}

{n}

()

(v)

Mumbai
16 Apnl, 2014 Membership No 046768

the Balance Sheet,the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account,

the financial accounting systems of the Bank are centralized and, therefore, returns are not necessary 1o be
submitted by the branches,

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as appears from
our examination of those books, and

on the basis of written representations received from the Diwrectors and taken on record by the Board of Directors,
none of the Directors 1s disqualified as on 31 March 2014 from being appointed as a Director in terms of clause
(g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956

ForBSR&Co LLP
Charterad Accountants
Firm’s Registration No 101248W

Akee! Master
Partner

:
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2014

e ]
o T1n '000s
a”? P R it e
SCHEDULE |; fgg@&ggt As at
11}%3 1.03.2014 3103.2013
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES Eret o Bl
-5 '&:,f;;;? - ﬂagm
Capital 1 "‘é‘f%%i‘bszsﬁéa 86 522,86,98
z, 3"‘%%’:%'}@‘3?’
Employee Stock Options Outstanding 18(10) ”;; f&?x“@] 0)55;1 96 10,71,19
D e
Reserves and Surplus 2 af‘;zmsg 0.42 7096,67,19
Deposits 3 ’zwsqsoéné”ﬁ 53, 54116,71,50
el
Borrowings 4 = 14?61%95570 9459,55,61
Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 fiw 27&1 8, gz 59 2099,99,07
TOTAL ‘”‘870”25’?93 06 73306,51,54
& u“%*@;%?;ta '
ASSETS Eﬁéﬂ%?%; f*&f} .
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 8 -7 4413,91.56 3249,84,45
e Bt R
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice 7 “‘ﬁi%?é%ﬁ? 61 3598,88,79
Investments 8 o 21562 9_5 30 19654,16,57
Advances 9 ¥ :w,555101 “83 59 44320,61,00
Fixed Assets 10 L ' “fﬁ 3344 72 756,14,18
Other Assets 1 : ’ff;gg,zg 125,28 1726,86,55
TOTAL *“3762‘5 93,06 73306,51,54
Contingent Liabilites 12 147804 26 44 134902,88,80
Bills for Collection ! 5774 56 85 6337,50,73
Significant Accounting Policies 17 ;
Notes to the financial statements 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet has been prepared in conformity with Form A of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949

As per our report of even date For INDUSIND BANK LTD.
ForBSR &Co.LLP R. Seshasayee
Chariered Accountanis Chairman

Firm’s Registration No 101248W

Kanchan Chitale

Director

Akeel Master Romesh Sobt
Partner Managing Director

Membership No 046768

Place Mumbai S V Zaregaonkar
Date Apnl 16, 2014 Chief Financial Officer

Haresh Gajwani

Company Secretary
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2014

g”‘?fj A ¥ in '000s
SCHEDULE ; ;@La frzgqgeg Year ended
% 31.03.2013
I. INCOME
Interest Eamed 13 6983,23,23
Other Income 14 1362,96,08
TOTAL 8346,19,31
Il. EXPENDITURE -
Interest Expended 15 4750,36,62
Operating Expenses 16 1756,36,27
Provisions and Contingencies Al 778,28,14
TOTAL s 873650414 7285,01,03
. PROFIT B Feds
Net Profi for the year i ‘;%@a 02.20 1061,18.28
Profit brought forward *; " 790,82,95 1187,59,01
TOTAL 23198, 95 15 2248,77,29
IV. APPROPRIATIONS f" AL T
Transfer to f ~:"3?§§u_ﬁmw )
a) Statutory Reserve 3, ““?5%1:‘1‘%5“3 2 00 55 285,29,57
b} Capial Reserve o ~?‘W’ 8 17 54 8,36,41
c) Investment Reserve Account i ;’fg}_ﬁ st 745 40,31
d) Proposed final dvidend o A%:;‘E%M 07,81 157,08,60
e) Corporate Dividend Tax gl “W .'31:28, 40 26,6545
st 0575,61 75 457 84,34
Balance carned over to the Balance Sheet ‘- 2623,33,40 1790,92,95
TOTAL - -, -3198,95,15 2248,77,29
V. EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE i
(Face value of ¥ 10/- per share) X)
Basic 18(11 5) 26 85 2183
Diluted 18(11 5) 2641 2140
Significant Accounting Policies 17
Notes to the financial statements 18

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of Profit and Loss Account
The Profit and Loss Account has been prepared in conformity with Form B of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulaton Act, 1949

As per our report of even date

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No 101248W

Akeel Master
Partner
Membership No 046768

Place Mumbal
Date Apnl 16, 2014

For INDUSIND BANK LTD.

R. Seshasayee
Chairman

S. V. Zaregaonkar
Chief Financial Officer

Kanchan Chitale

Dirgctor

Romesh Sobti
Managing Direclor

Haresh Gajwani
Company Secretary
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A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before taxation
Adjustments for .

Depreciation on Fixed assets

Depreciation on Investments

Employees Stock Option expenses

Loan Loss and Qther Provisions

Amortisation on HTM investments

Interest paid on Borrowings

Interest paid on Tier Il/ Upper Tier Il bonds
Profit on sale of fixed assets

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes
Adjustments for :

Increase in Advances

Increase in Investments

(Increase) f Decrease in Other Assets
Increase in Deposits

Increase in Other Liabilities

Cash (used n) / generated from Operations
Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds}

Net Cash used in Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets {(including WIP)
Proceeds from sale of Fixed Assets
Net Cash used in Investing Activities
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (net of iIssue expenses)
Dividends paid
Payment towards redemption of Sub-ordinated Tier il capital
Increase in Borrowings
Interest paid on Borrowangs
Interest paid on Tier Il Upper Tier Il Bonds
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities
Net (Decrease) / Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

f in '000s
Year ended
31.03.2013
1576,35,93
73,43,39
1,30,35
(23,40)
261,80,13
14,46,90
616,83,27
106,75,04
(5,44,95)
2645,26,66
b ﬁsﬁ e

S OMBT: »29 ,19) (6518,46,00)
3 W(zozz 47.99) (5097,99,21)
Ph % z'g% 55 30) 84,79,27
i 638557,03 11755,16,54
s 560,34,82 208,54,67
' ;, (3}32% 51,64) 77.31,93
w %ié% (?%9 24711) (563,08,28)
. %(41;93 75 75) (485.76,35)

5 a;@‘g ,3 ex

: 1 i" *

(177 05,56} (184,38,70)
gt b +3,35,41 10,4122
#5(173,70,15) (173,97,48)

i, 35,1592 2018,02,45

(156,97,51) (103,13,50)

. {50,00,00) (50,00,00)

. 5352,40,08 827,54,35

(879,70,73) (616.83,27)

- (100,70,93 (106?504
4200,16,8 1968,84

(79,29,07) 1309,11,05

6848,73,24 5539,62,18

6769,44,17 6848,73,24

Notes

4 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accounting Standard 3 on Cash Flow Statements

2 Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow

3 Cash and cash equivalents compnses of Cash in Hand and Balances with RB! and Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice

As per our report of aven dats

ForBSR & Co.LLP R Seshasayee
Chartered Accountants Chaiman
Firm's Registration No 101248W

Akeel Master
Partner
Membership No 046768

Place Mumbati
Date Apnl 16, 2014

S§ V. Zaregaonkar
Chief Financial Officer

For INDUSIND BANK LTD

Kanchan Chltale

Director

Romesh Sobt
Managing Director

Haresh Gajwani
Company Secretary
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As at 31 03 2014

T1n '000s
As at 31.03.2013

SCHEDULE - 1 CAPITAL

Authoarised Capital

55,00,00,000 {Previous year 55,00,00,000) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each
Issued, Subscribed and Called Up Capital

52,54,46,484 (Previous year 52,26,77,706) equity shares of ¥ 10/- sach

Paid up Capital

52,54,46,484 (Previous year 52,26,77,706) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each

Add 3,84,200 (Previous year 3,84,200) Forfeited equity shares of T 10/- each
Note .

On December 5, 2012, the Bank had i1ssued 5,21,00,000 equity shares of T 10/- i

each through a Qualified Institutions Placement {QIP) Accordingly as at March 31,
2013, the paid-up share capital and share premwm account under reserves stand
increased by T 52 10 crores and T 1,948 54 crores respectively

TOTAL
SCHEDULE - 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
| Statutory Reserve

Opening balance
Additions dunng the year

Il Share Premium Account

Opening balance
Additions dunng the year

Less Share issue expenses

Il General Reserve

Balance as at the end of the year

IV Capital Reserve

Opening balance

Additions dunng the year

V  Investment Allowance Reserve

Balance as at the end of the year

:

o (W"%ﬁﬁf‘,! r?" R

‘“'“‘%'“?? ’w@gé ﬁm I

550,00,00
522.67,77
Mgggfggszsm 65 522,67,77
' %ég}%f, f;}Q g 19,21
i
‘Afkﬁféffg‘:uz}»;‘él; +
i 45265,63,86 522.86,98
k3 v e
S 4
ﬁ%’lj;@gf
o, j'?‘:: o
- 838 75,00 568,45,43
;“g“ 352,00,55 265,29,57
'1185,75,55 833,75,00
4117.96,88 2155,11,20
- 32,.309,04 1980,42 54
’ . 17,5686
4150,35,92 4117,96,88
1,35,57 1,35,57
1,35,57 1,35,57
135,68,73 127,32,32
8,17.54 8,36,41
143,86,27 135,68,73
1,00,00 1,00,00
1,00,00 1,00,00
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SCHEDULES (Contd.)
S gﬁ‘;gﬁ;ﬁs; ) 2 1n '000s
TASa13103.2014 | As at 31.032013

VI Investment Reserve Account

Opening Balance
Additions dunng the year

VIl Revaluation Reserve

Opening balance
Addition dunng the year
Less Deductions dunng the year

VIl Balance in the Profit and Loss Account
TOTAL
SCHEDULE - 3 DEPOSITS
A 1 Demand Deposits
1)  From Banks

) From Others
Il Savings Bank Deposits

Il Term Deposits
1)  From Banks
n)  From Others
TOTAL
B  Deposits of Branches
| In India
I OCutside India
TOTAL
SCHEDULE - 4 BORROWINGS
| Borrowings in India
) Reserve Bank of India
n) Other Banks
m) Other Institutions and Agencies
v}  Unsecured Non-Convertible Redeemable Debentures / Bonds
(Subordinated Tier-Il Bonds)

v) Unsecured Non-Convertible Redeemable Non-Cumulative
Subordinated Upper Tier Il Bonds

Il Borrowings outside India
TOTAL

Secured borrowings included in | and Il above

= S #“’;&«1’ wn&r a
A e
Ty f%»%%jga 2920 2,88,89
“'* B »x‘?\m +7,45 40,31
Fik ; Vi403,36,65 3,29,20
R -
S
;{?f& _%%%_%3?%55 219,33,58
D asisa st .
T e ﬁ%n{&
X mﬁ%’%a 95,31 6,64,72
Ms«m@?@ £397,27,06 212,68,86
" i172623,33,40 1790,92,95
i i ; é*ssos’”ao 42 7096,67,19
t‘ ::j !‘ t ""Jk.. }
- 571 97,55 882,17,19
'Z 9203 68,03 7952,38,45
L €9915 24,98 7032,80,17
Sl 3660,34,08 1199,01,04
37142,02,99 37050,34,65
60502,28,53 54116,71,50
60502,28,53 54116,71,50
60502,28,53 54116,71,50
55,00,00 .
4261,30,42 3035,93,80
5885,26,68 3191,84,59
760,10,00 810,10,00
308,80,00 308,90,00
3491,38,60 2112,77.22
14761,95,70 9459,55,61

-]
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SCHEDULES
{;w B T.1n '000s
6 5.2 ?].{Q3¢2014 As at 31.03.2013
SCHEDULE - 5 OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS H:‘i;”:éﬁ’ﬁfégl R
| Inter-office Adjustments (Net) ;§€$§:§§§ﬁ3§ 23,14,89
Il Bills Payable iy 311,09.54 351,27,10
It Interest Accrued 1% 5a300,39 399,99.85
IV Others [(including Standard Asset Provisions of ¥ 239 09 crores) % 5 18\5 45,31 1325,57,23
(Previous Year ¥ 174 26 crores)) N * - ‘w:*
TOTAL | S 2718,72,59 2099,59,07
SCHEDULE - 6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE S T
BANK OF INDIA N AC
| Cashn hand (including foreign currency notes) iéﬁ;; *"496.75 58 306,84,05
Il Balances with Reserve Bank of India *@ s
) In Current Accounts o 3917,1‘5.98 2853,00,40
)  In Other Accounts ‘ PR - -
TOTAL T 4413.91,56 3249,84,45
SCHEDULE - 7 BALANCES WITH BANKS AND MONEY AT CALL | | ::?H ‘. ;;.::iw
AND SHORT NOTICE B T
| In India o
1)  Baiances with Banks
a) In Current Accounts 362,95,62 406,78,40
b) In Other Deposit Accounts - 1713,56,12 1516,83,05
1) Money at Call and Short Notice - With Others Institutions - 851,22,26
TOTAL - .. 2076,51,64 2774,83,71
Il Outside India
1} In Currant Accounts +  103,15,982 174, 53,08
) In Other Deposit Accounts - -
m) Money at Call and Short Notice 175,85.05 649,52,00
TOTAL 279,00,97 824,05,08
GRAND TOTAL 2355,52,61 3598,88,79
Schedule - 8 INVESTMENTS
1 In India
Gross Value 21661,60,46 19665,90,69
Less Aggregate of prowision / depreciation 98,65,16 11,7412
Net value of Investments in India 21 562,95,30_ 19654,16,57

:
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SCHEDULES (Contd.)
7 T .11 '000s
) A}ﬁ@ 03.2014 | As at 31.03.2013
Compnsing *:;M;%;;ﬁ j w w
) Govermment secunties” '}ﬁ 53801‘)0 71 14108,26,31
n)  Other approved secunties 4 -
w) Shares 58,03,28
) Debentures and bonds 753,84,95
v)  Subsidianes and / or Joint Ventures 50,00
wvi) Others - Deposits under RIDF scheme with NABARD 1382,94,50
. - Secunty Receipt, Units of schemes of Mutual Funds and 3350,57,53
Others P
I Outside India Qéﬁ \ )
TOTAL . 21562,95,30 19654,16,57
*Includes secuntes costing ¥ 206 92 crores (previous year ¥ 373 84 crores) pledged for - :
cleanng facility and margin requirements BRI
SCHEDULE - 9 ADVANCES ;eim' .
A 1}  Bills Purchased and Discounted 4 ;@3047 99,56 1152,87,02
)  Cash Credits, Overdrafts and Loans Repayable on Demand J :,Q;u gﬂﬂgﬁ 24 25 10775,22,29
-
m) Term Loans = 38557 09 .78 32392,51,69
TOTAL “ +~55101,83,59 44320,61,00
B 1)  Secured by Tangible Assets (iIncludes advances against book debts) E N‘\:észwé 96,55 39334,25,37
) Coverad by Bank / Govemment Guarantees {includes advances against - j : 722 53,21 775,30,41
I/Cs 1ssued by Banks)
m)  Unsecured | 5856,33,83 4211,05,22
. TOTAL - 55101,83,59 44320,61,00
C 1) Advances in India
1)  Pnonty Sector 18158,18,25 14323,55,11
n)  Public Sector 1188,07,75 633,97 .11
w) Banks 4,37 24,87,90
) Others 35755,53,22 29338,20,88
TOTAL 55101,83,59 44320,61,00
I}  Advances QOutside India - -
TOTAL 55101,83,59 44320,61,00
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_As at31.03.2014
e s e Mo EET

T1n'000s
As at 31 03.2013

SCHEDULE - 10 FIXED ASSETS

Premises

i)  Atcostas at the beginning of the year
n)  Revaluation dunng the year

)  Additions dunng the year

w) Less Deductions dunng the year

v) Less Depreciation to date

TOTAL
Other Fixed Assets {(including furniture & fixtures)
1} Atcost as at the beginning of the year
W)  Additions dunng the year
w) Less Deductions dunng the year
v) Less Depreciation to date
TOTAL
Capital Work in Progress
GRAND TOTAL

SCHEDULE - 11 OTHER ASSETS

|

Il
i
v

Interest Accrued
Tax Paid in Advance / tax deducted at source (net of provision)

Stationery and Stamps

Others [Including deferred tax assets of ¥ 91 41 crores (Previous Year
T 69 48 crores)}

TOTAL

SCHEDULE - 12 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

I
]
i
v

Vi

Claims agamnst the Bank not acknowledged as debts

Liability on account of outstanding Forward Exchange Contracls
Liability on account of outstanding Denvative Gonlracts
Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

- Inindia

- Outside India

Acceptances, Endorsements and Other Obligations

Other Items for which the Bank I1s contingently liable
TOTAL

Fmmae
Bt -
E

397,60,57
9 13,23,52
i 595.43,32 410,84,00
> ERE 4,84,37
.. 50,49,08 44,45,72
s+ 5 544,94,24 361,54,00
SRt
X7 869,00,73 685,18,49
166,49 51 197,10,91
TE414,1035,50,24 882,29,40
177 ‘257528 13,28.67
v - ’563,43,70 489,93,80
" 5,446,31,26 379,06,93
027 25,19,22 15,5325
L -1016,44,72 756,14,18
£29,30,67 461,05,51
265,48,73 193,60,31
11,8920 2,60,20
1678,56,68 1069,60,53
. 2575,25,28 1726,86,55
535,82,56 430,89,11
78491,21,24 79438,65,51
45391,62,66 29540,14,71
18502,33,14 19361,00,90
4883,26,84 4362,18,57
- 1750,00,00
147804,26,44|  134902,88,80
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SCHEDULES (Contd.)
Eer ok % in "000s
. S;Ieg“,rg!‘\ﬁded Year ended
e 31 03 2014 31.03.2013
SCHEDULE - 13 INTEREST EARNED ?T‘ %L
| Interest/ Discount on Advances / Bils -0 ‘;“;:5“6627 35 49 5610,30,02
Il Income on Investments . i:;ﬁ 477 02 57 1282,49,78
Il interest on Balances with RBI and Other Inter-Bank Funds | ;; 5;;&1718}:6 26 85,49,94
IV Others s %ss 12 4,93,49
TOTAL ~{7.78253/53,44 69863,23,23
SCHEDULE - 14 OTHER INCOME ”:i?a% ’:;C’%m
| Commussion, Exchange and Brokerage E%‘i%g ;%:1795 fﬂa .98 947,04,58
Il Protit on Sale of Investments / Denvatives {Net) 277 51,8314 64,41,76
Il Profit/ (Loss) on Sale of Land, Bulldings and Other Assets (Net) ’x:ﬁ - :"1 ,{?7,01 5,44,95
IV Profit on exchange transactions (Net) K 616,34.22 328,03,46
V  Income earned by way of dividend from companies in India = s 3,2594 2,85,51
VI Miscellaneous Income . 48,3361 15,05,82
TOTAL . - f31890,62,80 1362,96,08
SCHEDULE - 15 INTEREST EXPENDED :u o

| Interest on Deposits Ej ‘ 2351-3822 46 48 4026,78,31
Il Interest on Reserve Bank of India / Inter-Bank Borrowings ?jr“?; . 298 93 75 257,37,02
Il Others (including interest on Subordinate Debts and Upper Tier Il bonds) w : ( 681 47 90 466,21,29
TOTAL .+ 5362,82,13 4750,36,62

SCHEDULE - 16 OPERATING EXPENSES
| Payments to and Provisions for Employees 809,29,46 661,46,23
Il Rent,Taxes and Lighting (includes operating lease rentals) 187,80,93 166,37,18
Il Panting and Stationery 33,53,15 25,79,88
IV Advertisement and Publicity - 29,54,00 13,28,48
V  Depreciation oh Bank's Property 98,14,83 73,43,39
VI Directors' Fees, Allowances and Expenses 86,00 72,62
Vil Audiors’ Fees and Expenses 1,26.61 1,20,78
Vill Law Charges 35,27.35 27,59,72
IX Postage, Telegrams, Telephones, elc 74,43.42 69,22,08
X Repairs and Maintenance 125,82,68 96,45,46
X Insurance 59,53,78 57,54,36
XIl  Serwice Prowider Fees 183.24,09 158,85,76
Xll{ Other Expenditure 546,51,98 404,40,33
, TOTAL 2185,28,28 1756,36,27
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Schedule 17

Significant accounting policies
1. General

11

12

The accompanying financial statements have been preparad under the histoncal cost convention except where
otherwise stated, and in accordance with statutory requirements prescnbed under the Banking Regutation
Act 1948, circulars and guidelines 1ssued by Reserve Bank of india (‘RBI'} from time to ime {RBI guidehnes}),
accounting standards referred to in Section 211(3C) of the Comparies Act, 1956 (the Act) and notified by the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and practices prevailing within the banking industry in India

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting pnnciples in India
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affact the reported amounts of assets, habilities,
revenues, expenses and disclosure of contingent liabiliies on the date of the financial stalements Management
believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable Any revision to accounting estimates 1s recogmised prospectively in current and future pencds

. 2. Transactions involving Foreign Exchange

21

22

23

24

25

26

Monetary assets and habilittes dencminated in foreign currency are translated at the Balance Sheet date at the
exchange rates notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers' Association of india ('FEDAJ') for 1enors up to one year
and rates published by Reuters for tenor above one year and the resulting gains or losses are recegnised in the
Profit and Loss account

Non-monetary items which are camed in terms of histoncal cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction, and non-monetary items which are camed at fair value
or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values were determined

All foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are re-valued at the rates of exchange
notified by the FEDAI and the resulting gains or losses are racogntsad in the Profit and Loss account

Swap Cost ansing on account of foreign currency swap contracts to convert foreign currency funded habihties into
rupee habilities 1s charged to the Profit and Loss account under the head ‘Interest ~ Others’ by amorhizing over the
undetlying swap penod

Income and expenditure denominated in foreign currency are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the date of the transaction

Contingent liabiliies al the Balance Sheet date on account of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts,

guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other obligations denorminated in foreign currency are stated at the
closing rates of exchange notified by the FEDAI for tenors up to one year and rates published by Reuters for tenor

above one year

3. Investments
Significant accounting policies in accordance with RBI guidelines are as follows

31

32

Categonisation of Investments

In accordance with the guidelings issued by RBI, the Bank classifies its investment on the date of purchase into
one of the following three categones

{1} Held to Matunty (HTM) — Secunties acquired with the intention to held tll matunty

() Held for Trading (HFT) — Secunties acquired with the intention to trade

(n) Available for Sale (AFS) — Secunties which do not fali within the above two categones
Subseguent shifting amongst the categones ts done in accordance with RBI guidelines

Classification of Investments

For the purpose of disclosure n the Balance Sheet, investments are classified under six groups as required by
RBI guidelines wiz , (1 Govemmant Secunues, (v) Other Approved Secunhes, (n} Shares, (v) Debentures and
Bonds, (v} Investments in Subsidianes and Jaint Ventures, and (vi) Other Investments
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33 Valuation of Investments

(v

(u)

()

()

v
(v}
(vn}
{vun)

{1}

(x)

0a)

{xn)

(xm}

(xiv)

{xv)

Held to Matunty — Each secunty in this category 1s carned at its acquisition cost Any premwum paid
on acquisition of the secunty 1s amortised over the balance penod to matunty The amortized amount i1s
deducted from Interest eamed — Income on investments (ltem Il of Schedule 13) The book value of the
secunty ts reduced to the extent of amount amortized dunng the relevant accounting penod Diminution,
other than temporary, 1s determined and provided for each investment indwidually

Held for Trading — Secunties are valued scnp-wise and depreciation / appreciation 1s aggregated for
each classification Net appreciation in each classification, if any, being unreahised, i1s ignored, while net
depreciation 1s provided for

Available for Sale — Secunties are valued scnp-wise and depreciation / appreciation 1s aggregated for
each classification Net appreciation in gach classification, if any, being unrealised, 1s ignored, while net
depreciation 15 provided for

Market value of govemment secunties {(excluding treasury bills) 1s determined on the basis of the pnces
/ Yield to Matunty (YTM) published by RBI or the pnces / YTM penodically declared by Pomary Dealers
Association of India (PDAI) jointly with Fixed Income Money Market and Denvatives Association (FIMMDA)

Treasury bills are valued at carrying cost, which includes discount amortised over the penod to matunty
Fair value of other debt secunties 1s determined based on the yield curve and spreads provided by FIMMDA

Quoted equity shares are valued at lowar of cost or the ¢losing pnce on a recogrised stack exchange
Unquoted equity shares are valued at their break-up value or at Re 1 per company where the latest
Balance Sheet 1s not avallable

Units of the schemaes of mutual funds are valued at the lower of cost and Net Asset Value (NAV) provided
by the respective schemes of mutual funds

Investments in equity shares held as long-term investments by erstwhile Indusind Enterpnses & Finance
Limited and Ashok Leyland Finance Limited (since merged with the Bank) are valued at cost and classified
as part of HTM category Provision towards diminution in the value of such long-term investments is made
only if the dimnution in value 1s not temporary in the opinion of management

Secunty Receipts (SR) are valued at the lower of redemption value or NAV obtained from the Secuntisation
Company {SC) / Reconstruction Company (RC)

Trade date method of accounting is followed for purchase and sale of investments, except for Government
of India and State Government secunties where settiement date method of accounting 1s followed in
accordance with RBI guidelines

Broken penod (nterest on debt nstruments Is treated as a revenue lem Brokerage, commission, etc
pertaining to investments, paid at the time of acquisition 1s charged to the Profit and Loss account

Provision for non-perdorming investments 1s made in conformity with RBI guidelines

Repurchase (Repo) / Reverse Repurchase {Reverse Repo) transactions (except transactions under
Liqudity Adjustment Facility (LAF) with RBI) are accounted for as Borrowing / Lending respectively
On completion of the sacond leg of the Repo / Reverse Repo transachon, the difference between the
consideration amounts 1s reckoned as Interest Expenditure / Income  Amounts outstanding in Repa /
Reverse Repo account as at the Balance Sheet date 1s shown as parn of Borrowings / Money at Call and at
Short Notice respectively, and the accrued expenditure / income 1l the Balance Sheet date is recognised
in the Profit and Loss account

In respect of repo transactions under LAF with RBI, monies borrowed from RBI are credited to tnvestment
account and reversed on matunty of the transaction Costs thereon are accounted for as interest expense
In respect of reverse repo transactions under LAF, momies lent to RBI are debited tc investment account
and reversed on malunty of the transaction Revenues thereon are accounted for as interest Income

In respect of the short sale transactions In Central Government dated secunties, the short position 15
covered by outnght purchase of an equivalent amount of the same secunty within 2 maximumn pencd of
three months including the day of trade The short position 18 reflected as the amount received on sale In
a separate account and 1s classified under ‘Other Liabilites’ The short position 1S marked to markel and
loss, If any, 1s charged to the Profit and Loss account, while gamn, « any, 15 not recognized Profit / loss on
seftlemnent of the short position is recognized in the Profit and Loss account
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(xv1) Profit in respect of Investments sold from HTM category ts included in the Profit on Sale of Investments and
an equivalent amount {net of taxes, If any, and transfer to Statutory Reserves as applicable to such profits)
1s appropnated from the Profit and Loss Appropnation account to Capital Reserve account

(xvi) In the event, provisions created on account of depreciation in the AFS or HFT categones are found to be
in excess of the required amount in any year, the excess 1s credited to the Profit and Loss account and
an equivalent amount {net of taxes, if any, and net of transter to Statutory Reserves as applicable to such
excess provisions) 1s appropnated to an Investment Reserve account (IRA) The balance in IRA account
1s considered as Tier Il Capital within the overall ceiling of 1 25% of total Risk Weighted Assets prescnbed
for General Provisions / Loss reserves

The balance in IRA account is used to meet provision on account of depreciation in AFS and HFT categones
by transfernng an equivalent amount to the Profit and Loss Appropnation account as and when required

Derivatives
Denvative contracts are designated as hedging or trading and accounted for as follows

41 The hedging contracts compnse of Forward Rate Agreements, Interesi Rate Swaps, and Currency Swaps
undertaken to hedge interest rate nsk on certain assets and habiites The net interest receivable / payable 1s
accounted on an accrual basis over the life of the swaps However, where the hedge 1s designated with an asset
or liability that 1s carned at market value or lower of cost and market value, then the hedging instruments 1s also
marked to market with the resulting gain or loss recorded as an adjustmaent to the market value of designated
assets or Labilihes

42 The trading contracts compnse of trading n Interast Rate Swaps, Interest Rate Futures and Currency Futures
The gain / loss ansing on unwinding or termination of the contracts, 1s accounted for in the Profit and Loss
account Trading contracts outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date are re-valued at their fair value and resuiting
gains / losses are recogmsed in the Profit and Loss account

43 Gains or losses on the temination of hedge swaps 1s deferred and recoghised over the shorter of the remaining
contractual life of the hedge swap or the remaining hfe of the underlying asset / hiability

44 Premium paid and received on currency options is accounted when due in the Profit and Less Account
45 Provisioning of overdue customer receivable on denvative contracts 1s made as per RBI guidelines

46 In accordance with the Prudential Norms for Off-Balance Sheet Exposures issued by RBI, provisioning against
outstanding credit exposurs as at the Balance Shest date 1s mada, as is applicable to the assets of the concerned
counterparties under ‘standard’ category Credit exposures are computed as per the current marked to market
value of the contract ansing on account of interest rate and foreign exchange denvative transactions

Advances

51 Advances are classified as per RBI guidelnes into standard, sub-standard, doubtiul and loss assets after
considenng subsequent recovenes to date

52 Spechic provisions for non-performing advances and floating provisions are made n conformity with RBI
guidelnes

53 A general provision on standard advances 1s made In accordance with RBI guidelines Prowvision made against
standard assets 1s included in ‘Other Liabilibies and Provisions’

54 Advances are disclosed m the Balance Sheet, net of provisions and interest suspended for non-performing
advances, and floating provisions

55 Advances exclude derecognised secuntised advances, inter-bank participation and bills rediscounted
56 Amounts recovered against bad debts written off in earlier years are recognised in the Profit and Loss account

57 Prowision no longer considered necessary in the context of the current status of the borrower as a performing
asset, are writlen back to the Profit and Loss account to the extent such provisions were charged to the Profit and

L.oss account
58 Restructured / rescheduled accounts
In case of restructured standard advances, provision 1s made as per RBI guidelines

.
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Further in case of restructured / rescheduled accounts provision 1s made for the sacnfice against erosion /
diminution in fair value of restructured loans, in accordance with RBI guidelines  The erosion in fair value of the
advances is computed as the difference between fair value of the loan before and after restructunng

Fair value of the loan before restructuring 1s computed as the present value of cash flows representing the interest
at the existing rate charged on the advance before restructunng and the pnncipal, discounted at a rate equal
to the sum of the Base Rate as on the date of restructunng and an appropnate term premium and credit nsk
premium for the borrower category on the date of restructunng

Farr value of the loan after restructunng 1s computed as the present value of cash flows representing the interest
at the rate charged on the advance on restructunng and the pnncipal, discounted at a rate equal to the sum of
the Base Rate as on the date of restructunng and an appropnate term premium and credit nsk premium for the
borrower category on the date of restructunng

The diminution in the fair value 1s re-computed on each Balance Sheet date till satisfactory completion of all
repayment obhgations and full repayment of the outstanding in the account, so as to capture the changes In
the fair value on account of changes in Base Rate, term premium and the credit category of the borrower The
shortfall / excess provision held is etther charged / credited to the Profit and Loss account respectively

The restructured accounts have been classified in accordance with RBI guidelines, including special dispensation
wherever allowed

Securitisation transactions and direct assignmenis

61

62

63

64

65

in Secuntisation transactions, the Bank transfers its loan receivables both through Direct Assignment route as
well as transfer to Special Purpose Vehicles 'SPV

The secuntzation transachons are without recourse to the Bank The transfetred loans and such secuntised
recewables are de-recognized as and when these are sold (iruse sale ¢cntena being fully met) and the consideration
has been received by the Bank Gains / losses are racognised only if the Bank surrenders the nghts to the benefits
specified in the loan contracts

In respect of certain transactions, the Bank prowvides credit enhancements in the form of cash collaterals /
guarantee and / or by subordination of cash flows to Senior Pass Through Certificate (PTC) holders Retained
interest and subordinated PTCs are disclosed under “Advances” In the Balance Sheet

In terms of RBI gurdelines, profit / premium ansing on account of sale of standard assets, baing the difference
between the sale consideration and book value, 1s amerhised over the Iife of the secunhes 1ssued by the Special
Purpose Vehicles (SPV} Any loss ansing on account of the sale 1s recognized in the Profit & Loss account in the
penod in which the sale oceurs

In case of sale of non-performing assets through securitization route to SC / RC by way of assignment of debt
against issuance of SRs, the recognition of sale and accounting of profit and loss thereon Is done in accordance
with applicable RBI guidelings Generally, the sale 1s recognized at the lower of redemption value of SR and the
Net Book Valus (NBV) of the financial asset soid, and the surplus 1s recognized in the Profit and Loss Account,
shortfall if any, 1s charged to the Prohit and Loss Account subject to regulatory forbearance, if any, allowed from
time to time

Profit and loss realized on ultimate redemption of the SR s recognized in the Profit and Loss Account

Fixed Assets and depreciation

71

72

73

Fixed assets are stated at cost {except in the case of pramises which were re-valued based on values determined
by approved valuers) less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any Cost includes incidental expenditure
incurred on the assets before they are ready for intended use

The appreciation on revaluation s credited to Revaluation Reserve Depreciation relating to revaluation is
adjusted againsi the Revaluation Reserve

Depreciation is provided, pro rata for the penod of use, on a straight-ine method The rates of depreciation
prescnbed in Schedule X1V to the Act are considersd as the minimum rates If management's estimate of the
useful life of a fixed asset 1s shorter than that envisaged in the aforesaid schedule, depreciation is provided at a
gher rate based on management's estimate of the useful ife Pursuant to this policy, depreciation on the fixed
assets Is provided at the following rates, which are as per or higher than the corresponding rates prescnbed in

Schedule XIV to the Act
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{(a) Computers at3333%pa

(b) Application software and pempetual software hcences al 20% p a

(c) Pnnters, Scanners, Routers, Switch at 20% p a

(d ATMsat1429%pa

(e) Network cabling, Electrical Installations, Fumiture and Fixtures, Other Office Equipment at 10% p a
(N Vehiclesat20%pa

(g) Buldingsat163%pa

The useful life of an asset class 1s penodically assessed taking into account vanous cntena such as changes in
technology, changes in business environment, utiity and efficacy of an asset class to meet with intended user
needs, etc Whenever there 1s a revision In the estimated useful life of an asset, the unamorised deprecrable
amount ts charged over the revised remaining usefu! life of the said asset

The carrying amount of fixed assets 1s reviewed at the Balance Sheet date to determine if there are any indications
of impairment based on intemal / external factors In case of impaired assets, the impairment loss 1 e the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable vafue 1s charged to the Profit and Loss account
to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their estimated racoverable amount

Revenue Recognition

81 Interest and discount income cn performing assets 1s recognised on accrual basis Interest and discount iIncome
on non-performing assets 1s recogrnised on realisation

82 Interest an Govemment secunties, debentures and other fixed income secunties s recognised on a penod
proportional basis Income on discounted instruments is recogrised over the tenor of the instrument on a straight-
line basis

83 Dmdend income 1s accounted on accrual basis when the nght to receive dividend 1s established

84 Commission (except for commisston on Deferred Payment Guarantees which is recognised over the term on a
straight ine basis), Exchange and Brokerage are recognised on a transaction date and net off directly attnbutable
expenses

85 Fees are recognised when due, except in cases whera the Bank 1s uncertain of realisation

86 Income from distnbution of third party products I1s recogrised on the basis of business booked

Operating Leases

91 Lease rental obligations in respect of assets taken on operating lease are charged 1o the Profit and Loss account
on a straight-line basis over the lease term

92 Assets given under leases in respect of which all the nsks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by

the Bank are classified as operating leases Lease rentals receved under operating leases are recognized in the
Profit and Loss account as per the terms of the contracts

Employee Benelfits

101

102

The Gratuity scheme of the Bank is a defined beneht scheme and the expense for the year i1s recognized on the
hasis of actuanal valuation at the Balance Sheet date The present value of the ebligation under such benefit plan
1s determined based on independent actuanal valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognizes
each penod of service that gives nse to addittonal unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separately to build up the final obligation Payment obhigations under the Group Gratuity scheme are managed

through purchase of appropnate insurance policies

Provident Fund contnbutions are made under trusts separately established for the purpose and the scheme
administered by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC), as applicable The rate at which the annual
interest 1s payable to the bensficianes by the trusts 1s being administered by the government The Bank has an
obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trusts and the notihied
\nterest rates Actuanal valuation of this Provident Fund Interest shortfall 1s done as per the guidance note on
Valuation of Interest Rate Guarantees on Exempt Provident Funds under AS 15 (Revised) 1ssued by the Institute

of Actuanes of India, and such shortfall 1s provided for
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11.

12

13,

14.

15.

10 3 Prowision for compensated absences s made on the basis of acluanal valuation as at the Balance Sheet date
The actuanal valuation is carned out using the Projected Unit Credit Method

10 4 Intninsic value method 1s applied to account for the compensation cost of ESOP granted to the employees of the
Bank Intrinsic value i1s the amount by which the quoted market pnce of the underying shares an the grant date
exceeds the exercise pnce of the options Accordingly, such compensation cost 1s amortized over the vesting
penod

Segment Reporting
in accordance with the guidelines 1ssued by RBY, the Bank has adopted Segment Reporting as under

(a) Treasury includes all Investment portfolios, Profit / Loss on sale of Investments, Profit / Loss on foreign exchange
transactions, equities, iIncome from denvatives and money market operations The expenses of this segment
consist of interest expenses on funds borrowed from external sources as well as intemal sources and depreciation
/ amortisation of premium on Held to Matunty category investments

(b) Corporate / Wholesale Banking includes lending fo and deposits from comporate customers and dentified
earnings and expenses of the segment

{c) Retail Banking includes lending io and deposits from retail customers and identified earnings and expenses of
the segment.

{d) Other Banking Operations includes all other operations not covered under Treasury, Corporate / Wholesale
Banking and Retail Banking

Unallocated includes Capital and Reserves, Employee Stock Options {Grants) Outstanding and other unallocable
assets and habilities

Debit and Credit Card reward points liability

121 The liabitity towards Credit Card reward points 1s computed based on an actuanal valuation and the hability
towards Debit Card reward ponts 1s computed on the basis of management estmates considenng past trends

Bullion

131 The Bank imports bullion including precious metal bars on a consignment basis for selling to its customers The
imports are on a back-to-back basis and are pnced to the customer based on the prevailing pnce quoted by the
supplier and the local levies related to the consignment like customs duty etc  The income eamed 1s included in
COmMISSION INcome

132 The Bank sells gold comns 1o its customers The difference between the sale pnce to customers and purchase
pnce quoted is reflected under commission income

Income-tax

14 1 Tax expenses compnse of current and deferred taxes Current tax 18 measured at the amount expected to be
paid to the tax authonties in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 Deferred taxes reflect the impact of
current year iming differences between iaxable income and accounting Income for the year and reversal of
ttming differences of earlier years Deferred tax 1s measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date Deferred tax assets are recogmsed only to the extent that
there 1s reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred
tax assets can be realized Unrecognized deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recogrused to
the extent that it has become reasonably cerain that future taxable income will be available against which such

deferred tax assets can be realized

Earnings per share

151 Earnings per share s calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss forthe penod atinbutable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dunng the penod Diluted earnings per equity
share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potental equity shares

outstanding as at end of the year
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16. Provisions, contingent habilities and contingent assets

161 A provision is recognised when there is an obligation as a resutt of past event, and it 1s probable that an outflow
of resources will be required 1o settle the obligation, and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made
Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle
the obligation at the Balance Sheet date These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates

162 A disclosure of contingent lability 1s made when there i1s

(a) A possible obligation ansing from a past event, the existence of which will be conhrmed by occurrence or
noh-occutrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the bank, or

(b) A present obligation ansing from a past event which 1s not recognized as It 1s not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
cannot be made

16 3 Whenthere s a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources
Is remote, no provisicn or disclosure i1s made

16 4 Contingent assets are not recogmzed i the financial statements However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it 1s virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits wili anse, tha assets and related income
are recognized in the penod in which the change occurs

17 Cash and Cash equivalents

17 1 Cash and cash equivalents compnses of Cash in Hand and Balances with RBI and Balances with Banks and

Money at Call and Short Notice
SCHEDULE 18
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Bank computes Capital Adequacy Ratio as per RBI guidelines Basel Il Capital Regulations i1ssued by RBI are
apphcable to the Bank with effect from Apnl 1, 2013 Under the Basel Il Capital Regulations, the Bank has to maintain a
Mirimum Total Capital (MTC) of 9% of the total nsk weighted assets (RWAs) of which at least 5% shall be from Common
Equity Tier | {CET1) capital and at least 6 5% from Tier | capital The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank calculated as
per the RBI Basel il Capital Regulations s set out below

(T In crores)

March 31, 2014

1 Commaon Equity Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 12 71%

2 Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 1271%

3 Tier 2 capital ratio (%) 112%

4 Total Capital ratio (CRAR) (%) 13 83%

5 Amount of equity capital raised 35 16

6 Amount of Addional Tier 1 capital rarsed, of which -
PNCPS -
PDI

7 Amount of Tier 2 capital rarsed, of which

Debt capital instruments

Preference Share Capital Instruments [Perpetual Cumulative
Preference Shares (PCPS) / Redeamable Non-Cumulative Preference
Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS)]
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As Basel |l Capital Regulations came into effect from Apnl 1, 2013 corresponding details for previous year are not

applicable

The Capital adequacy ratio of the Bank calculated under RBI guidelines on Basel Il New Capital Adequacy Framework

1s set as below

(T In crores)

lItems March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Tier | Capital 8,550 66 7,344 54
Tier il Capital 836 87 84093
Total Capital 9,387 54 8,185 47
Total nsk weighted assets 67,258 57 53,283 40
Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (%) 13 96% 15 36%
CRAR - Tier | Capital (%) 1271% 1378%
CRAR - Tier 1 Capital (%) 125% 158%
Sub-ordinated debtraised as Tier || Capital Nt Nil
Amount raised byissue of IPDI Nil Nit
Amount raised byissue of Upper Tier il instruments Nil Nit

Investments
2.1 Details of Investments:

(Z 1n crores)

March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

(1) Value of Investments

() Gross value of Investmants
(a) InIndia
(b) Outside India

() Provisions for Depreciation
(a) Inindia
(b} Outside India

(m) Net value of Investments
{@) Inindia
(b} Outside India

(1 Opening balance
(n) Add Provision made dunng the year

(v} Closing balance

{2) Movement in provisions held towards depreciation on Investments

(n) Less Wnte-off / {(write-back) of excess provision dunng the year

21,661 60
21,661 60
98 65
98 65
21,562 95
21,562 95

1174
87 06
(0 15)
98 65

19,665 61
19,665 9

1174
174
19,654 17
19,654 17

10 44
210
{0 80}
1174
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2.2 Category wise details of Investments (Net):
{Z 1n crores)

As at March 31, 2014 As at March 31, 2013
HTM AFS HFT HTM AFS HFT
1) | Government secunties 12,622 59| 2,757 42 =1 12,060 91 | 2,047 35 -
ny [ Other approved secunties - - - - - -
m) | Shares 475 47 94 - 475 5328 -
w) | Debentures and bonds -] 1,380 31 - -| 75385 -
v) | Subsidianes and / or Joint Ventures 050 - - 0 50 - -
vi) | Others - Deposits under RIDF scheme with 1,643 26| 3,096 18 -| 1,38295| 3,35058 -
NABARD, Secunty Receipts/ Pass Through
Certificates, investment in units of Mutual
Funds, Commercial Paper, etc
Total 14,271.10| 7,291.85 -113,449.11| 6,205 086 -

2.3 Details of Repo / Reverse Repo including under Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) deals:
(T 1n crotes)

Minimum Maximum Dally average Balance
outstanding outstanding outstanding as at year
during the year | during the year | during the year end

Year ended March 31, 2014

Securities sold under repos

1)  Government Secunties 11300 3,200 00 482 35 3,291 00

n) Cormporate Debt Secunties . - - -

Securities purchased under
reverse repos

) Government Secunties 20 48 144 51 606 -

u) Corporate Debt Secunties - - - -
Year ended March 31, 2013

Securlties sold under repos

1y  Government Secunties 4675 2,300 00 31086 1,800 00

u) Corporate Debt Secunties - -

Securities purchased under
reverse repos

1} Government Secunhes 1011 221 56 2295 5171

n) Corporate Debt Secunties - -
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24 a)

b)

Issuer composition of Non-SLR Investments as at March 31, 2014:

(% In crores)

No issuer Amount™ Extent of | Extent of ‘below | Extent of Extent of
private investment ‘unrated’ ‘unhisted’
placement | grade’ securities | securities® | securities®
{1) 2) {(3) &) (5) {6) (7)
1 | Public Sector 27123 27123 - - -
Undertakings
2 | Financial 1,764 81 121 55 - - -
Instituttons™
3 | Banks 2,387 37 2,387 37 - - -
4 | Pnvate comporate 1,481 51 1,355 39 - - 6 51
5 | Subsidianes / 050 - - - 050
Joint Ventures
Others 302 59 302 59 - - -
Provision {25 06) (23 15) - - (1 75)
held towards
depreciation
Total 6,182.95 4,414.98 - - 5.26

Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments as at March 31, 2013:

(T In crores)

No. Issuer Amount!” | Extent of | Extent of ‘below | Extent of Extent of
private Investment ‘unrated’ ‘unlisted’
placement | grade’ securities | securities®® | securities™
{1) 2) {3) (4) {5) (6) {7)
1 Pubfic Sector - - - - -
Undertakings
2 | Financial 1,382 65 - - - -
Institutions®
3 | Banks 2,584 26 500 - - -
4 | Pnvate corporate 834 64 703 09 - - 6 51
5 | Subsidianes / Joint 050 - - - 050
Ventures
6 | Othars 754 20 324 20 - - -
7 | Provision (10 64) (8 42) - - {(175)
held towards
depreciation
Total 5,545.91 1,023 87 - - 526
Notes

(1}
(2}
(3)

(4)
()

Does not include amount of secunties pledged with Central Counter Parlies such as Clearning
Cormporation of India Lid , Natonal Secunties Cleanng Corporation of India Ltd, and Multr Commodity

Exchange of Incha Ltd

Excludes mnvestment in RIDF scheme of NABARD and equity shares

Excludes investment in RIDF scheme of NABARD, commercial papers, CD’s and preference shares
acquired by way of conversion of debts

Includes investment in RIDF scheme of NABARD

Amounts reported under columns 4, 5, 6 and 7 are nol mutually exclusive
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c) Non-performing Non-SLR investments:
(T in crores)

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Opening balance 714 176
Additions dunng the year - 538
Reductions dunng the year - -
Clesing balance 714 714
Total provisions held 7.14 2,56

2.5 Dunng the year, the value of sales and transfer of secunties to / from HTM category, excluding one-time transfer
of secunties from HTM and sale on account of Open Market Operation (OMO), has not exceeded 5% of the bock
value of investments held in HTM category at the beginning of the year As such, in Iine with RBI guidelines,
specific disclosures on book value, market value, and provisions if any, relating to such sale and transfers are not
required to be made

2.6 Dunng the year ended March 31, 2014, the Bank has aligned its accounting policy on valuation of investments
under Held For Trading (HFT) and Available for Sale (AFS) categones in line with RBI guidelines vide Master
Circular DBOD No BPBC 8/21 04 141/2013-14 dated July 01, 2013 Accordingly, the securties have been
valued scnp-wise and depreciation / appreciation are aggregated for each classification Net appreciation in
each classification, 1s gnored, while net depreciation i1s provided for As a result of this change, the provision for
depreciation on AFS secunties i1s lower by T 14 05 crores and consequently net profit for the year 1s higher by
¥ 9 27crores

Derivatives
31 Interest Rate Swaps, Forward Rate Agreements, Options and Cross Currency Swaps:
(¥ in crores)

Parhculars As at As at
March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013

{1) | Notonal pnincipal of swap agreements 43,199 08 28,568 87
(n) | Losses which would be incurred if counter parties faled to fulfill 1,23579 497 26

their obhigations under the agreements
(u) | Collateral required by the Bank upon entenng tnto swaps - -
{v} | Concentration of credit nsk ansing from the swaps — With banks 53 00% 47 1%
(v) | Net Fair value of the swap book (66 79) 321

The nature and terms of Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) (including IRS denominated in foreign currency and done
on back to back basis) as on March 31, 2014 are set out betow

{T 11 crores)

Nature Nos. Notional| Benchmark | Terms
Principal

Merchant and Cover 1 100 00 MIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Receivable
Merchant and Cover 1 100 00 MIBOR Fixed Recewnable V/s Floating Payable
Trading 94 4,624 66 MIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Receivable
Trading 105 522175 MIBOR Fixed Recewvable V/s Floating Payable
Trading 56 5,065 00 MIFCR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recewable
Trading 82 5,795 00 MIFOR Fixed Recevable Vs Floating Payable )
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The nature and terms of Options as on March 31, 2014 are set out below

Nature Nos. Notional| Benchmark | Terms
Princlpal
Merchant and Cover 1 2303| EURIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Receivable
Merchant and Cover 1 2303 EURIBOR Fixed Receivable V/s Floating Payable
Trading 6 910| EURIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Receivable
Trading 3 395| EURIBOR Fixed Receivable V/s Floating Payable
Merchant & Cover 26 138 70 LIBOR Fixed Payable /s Floating Receivable
Merchant & Cover 26 138 70 LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/s Floating Payable
Trading 37 1,911 97 LIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recervable
Trading 64 1,567 56 LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/s Floating Payable
The nature and terms of IRSs (Including IRSs denom:nated in foreign currency and done an back-to-back basis)
. as on March 31, 2013 are set out below
! (2 in crores)
Nature Nos. Notional | Benchmark |Terms
Principal
Merchant & Cover 1 100 CO MIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recewable
Merchant & Cover 1 100 00 MIBOR Fixed Recetvable V/s Floating Payable
Trading 125 5,789 15 MIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Receiwvable
Trading 131 7,162 29 MIBOR Fixed Recewable V/s Floating Payable
Trading 11 87500 MIFOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recevable
Trading 19 1,275 00 MIFOR Fixed Receivable V/s Floating Payable
Merchant & Cover 1 27 07| EURIBOR |Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recevable
Merchant & Cover 1 2707| EURIBOR |[Fixed Receivable V/s Floating Payable
Merchant & Cover 34 336 11 LIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recevable
| Merchant & Cover 34 336 11 LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/s Floaling Payable
Trading 10 41357 LIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Receivable
. Trading 24 414 32 LIBOR Fixed Receivabls V/s Ficating Payable
|

(T 1n crores)

Nature Nos. Notional Principal | Terms
Merchant and Cover 676 2,192 56 | Options
The nature and terms of Options as on March 31, 2013 are set out below
(% in crores)
Nature Nos. Notional Principal | Terms
Merchant and Cover 248 971 28 | Options

The nature and terms of Cross Currancy Swaps (CCS) (including CCS denominated in forgign currency and done
on back to back basis) as oh March 31, 2014 are set out below
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(T in crores)

Nature Nos. | Notional Principal Benchmark |Terms

Merchant & Cover 14 958 19 LIBOR Fixed Recervable /s Floating Payable
{Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant & Cover 14 76579 LIBOR Fixad Payable V/s Floating Recevable
(Gross Currency Swap)

Merchant & Cover 20 825 39 NA Fixed Payable (Principal Only Swap)

Merchant & Cover 20 944 67 NA Fixed Recewvable (Pnncipal Onty
Swap}

Merchant & Cover 15 2,119 02 NA Fixed V/s Fixed (Cross Currency
Swap)

Merchant & Cover 2 109 69 NA Fixed V/s Fixed (Pnncipal Only Swap)

Merchant & Cover 2 442 87 NA Fixed V/s Fixed (Coupon Only Swap)

Trading 98 4,038 75 LIBOR Fixed Recelvable V/s Floating Payable
{Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 43 4,357 08 LIBCR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recevable
{Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 5 802 94 LIBOR Float V/s Float (Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 13 347 31 NA Fixed Payable (Pnncipal Only Swap)

Trading 8 628 11 NA Fixed Receivable (Pnncipal Only
Swap)

Trading 11 66110 NA Fixed V/s Fixed {Cross Currency
Swap)

Trading 3 519 62 NA Fixed V/s Fixed {Coupon Cnly Swap)

Trading 4 956 10| LIBOR / MIFOR | Float \/s Float (Cross Currency Swap)

The nature and terms of CCSs (including GCSs denominated in foreign currency and done on back to back basis)
as on March 31, 2013 are seét oul below

(% 1n crores)

Nature Nos. Notional Benchmark |Terms
Principal

Merchant & Cover 1 554 EURIBOR Fixed Recewvable V/s Floating Payable
(Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant & Cover 1 648 EURIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Receivable
{Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant & Cover 11 1,092 37 LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/s Floating Payable
(Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant & Cover 1 1,211 42 LIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recervable
{Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant & Cover 29 1,060 65 NA Fixed Payable (Pnncipal Only Swap)

Merchant & Cover 29 1,023 14 NA Fixed Recevable (Pnncipal Only Swap)

Merchant & Cover 21 3,269 59 NA Fixed V/s Fixed (Cross Currency Swap)

Merchant & Cover 2 104 08 NA Fixed V/s Fixed {Pnncipal Only Swap)

Merchant & Cover 2 420 04 NA Fixed V/s Fixed (Coupon Only Swap)

Trading 37 1,749 22 LIBOR Fixed Receivable V/s Floating Payable
(Cross Currency Swap)

Trading 13 848 64 LIBOR Fixed Payable V/s Floating Recervable
(Cross Currency Swap)
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Nature Nos. Notional Benchmark |Terms
Principal

Trading 1 24 97 LIBOR Float V/s Float (Cross Currency Swap)
Trading 1 10 86 NA Fixed Payable (Pnncipal Only Swap)
Trading 3 501.08 NA Fixed Recewable (Pnncipal Only Swap)
Trading 1 2518 NA Fixed V/s Fixed {Cross Currency Swap)
Trading 1 74 95 NA Fixed V/s Fixed (Coupon Only Swap)
Trading 2 285 00| LIBOR /MIFOR |Float /s Float (Cross Currency Swap)

Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

The instrument-wise detalls of Exchange Traded Interest Rate Dernvative undertaken dunng the year are as
below(previous year Nil}

(T in crores)

Sr No | Particular 2013-14
()] Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate denivatives undertaken
during the year (instrument-wise)
a) NSEB883GS23 FEB 14 1,659 08
b) MCX883GS23 FEB 14 101
c) NSE883GS23 MAR 14 1,996 16
{0} Notional pnncipal amount of exchange traded intarest rate derivatives outstanding NiL

as on 31st March 2014 (instrument-wisa)

(i} Notional pnncipal amount of exchange traded interest rate denvatives outstanding NIL
and not “highly effective” (iInstrument-wise)

{v) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate denvatives outstanding and NIL
not “highly effective” (Instrument-wise)

Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derlvatives

The Risk Management Depanment of the Bank is responsible for measurnng, reporting and monitonng risk
ansing from denvatives transactions It functions independent of Treasury business and undeartakes the fallowing
activities

. Monitors daily denvatives operations against prescnbed policies and limits,

. Reviews daily product-wise profitability and activity reporis for denvatives operations,

. Submits MIS and details of excephions to the Top Management on a dally basis, and

. Monitors effectiveness of denvative deals identified as hedges against the terms of the hedging instruments
and underlying hedged nsk

The Risk Management function applies a host of quantitative tools and methods such as Value at Risk, PVO1,

stop-loss hmits, counterparty hmits, deal size hmits and overright position imis

The Bank undertakes denvative transactions for hedging customars’ exposure, hedging the Bank’s own exposure,

as well as for trading purposes, wherever permitted by RBI The customers use these denvative products to

hedge their forex and interest rate exposures

The Denvatives Policy approved by Board of Directors defines the framework for carrying out denvatives business

and lays down policies and processes to measure, manitor and report nsk ansing from denvative transactions

The policy provides for {a) appropnate nsk imits for different denvative products and (b) authonty levels for review

of imit breaches and 1o take appropriate actions in such events As par of the Denvatives Policy, the Bank has
a Product Suitability and Customer Appropnateness Policy, which 1s used to classify customers on the basis of
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their need for vanous derivative products as well as their competence in understanding such products and the
attendant nsks involved

The following table presents summanzed data relating to Denvatives
(T 1n crores)

4,

Note 2
Note 3
Note 4
Note 5

Mark to Market positions above includes interest accrued on the swaps
Credrit exposure 1s computed based on the current exposure method

Based on the PVO1 of the outstanding denvatives
Based on the absolute valus of PV01 of the denvatives outstanding as at the year end Denvative

contracts that are “back-to-back™ have not been ncluded herein

Asset Quality
41 Non-Performing Assels.

Sr Partlculars March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
No Currency Interest Currency Interest
derivatives rate derivatives rate
derivatives derivatives
1 E))envatwes (Notional Pnncipal Amount) {note 99,160 40 | 24,722 44 92,123 12 16,855 69
a) For hedging - - - -
b) Fortrading 99,160 40 24,722 44 92,123 12 16,855 69
2 | Marked to Market Positions (note 2)
. a) Asset (+) 2,623 06 288 16 1,742 55 67 76
b) Liability (5) {2,504 95) {31120) ] (1,66672) {68 69)
3 | Credit Exposure (note 3) 4,535 90 545 70 2,087 58 23472
4 | Likely impact of one percentage change in
interest rate (100*PV01) (Note 4)
a) on hedging denvatives - - - -
b) on trading denvatives 917 14 85 23 64 20 68
5 ( Maximum and Minimum of 100*PVO1
observed dunng the year {Note 5)
a) on hedging Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) on trading Max 3063 ( Max 3190| Max 2364 | Max 3050
Min 056 Min 011 Min Q00 Min 006
Note 1 There were no outstanding currency and interest rate futures as on March 31, 2014

(% In crores}

items March 31, 2014| March 31, 2013
() Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.33% 031%
() Movement in Gross NPAs
a) Opening balance 457.78 347 08
b) Addtiens dunng the year 62424 52777
Sub-total {A} 1,082 02 874 85
¢) Reductions dunng the year
() Upgradations 80.14 86 92
(it} Recovenes (excluding recovenes made from upgraded 200.27 186 14
accounts}
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(T 1n crores)

tems

March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

(m) Technical/Prudential wnte-offs
(v) Wnte-offs other than those under (in) above
Sub-total (B}

d} Closing balance {A-B)

(i) Movement in Net NPAs

a}) Opening balance

b} Additions dunng the year

c} Reductions dunng the year

d) Closing balance

(v) Movement in provisions for NPAs
. {excluding provisions on standard assets)

a) Opening balance
b) Provisions made dunng the year
c) Wnte-offwnte-back of excess provisions

d) Closing balance

180.82
461.23
620.79

136.76
267.39
220.10
184.05

321.02
356 85
24113
43674

144 01
417 07
45778

94 67
276 02
23393
136 76

252 41
25175
183 14
32102

Notes
1)  Recovenes include sale to SC/RC

2)  In lne with RBI crcular DBOD BP BC No 98/21 04 132/2013-14 dated February 26, 2014, the Bank
adjusted the counter cyclical provision of T 27 24 crores held against shortfall on sale of non-performing

assets to ARC
3)  Prowisions for NPAs include floating provisions

Details of technical wnte-offs and recovenes made thereon are

(] Sub-total

Kems March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Opening balance of Techrical / Prudential wntten off Nil Nil
accounts
Add Technical / Prudential wnte-offs dunng the year Nil Nil
NIl Nil
Less Recovenes made from previously technical / NIl Nl
prudential wntten-off accounts dunng the year
Closing balance of Technical / Prudential wntten-off Nil Nil
accounts

42 Sector-wise NPAs'

sl. Sector o, of NPAs to Advances in that sector as
No on
March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
1 Agnculture & alled achvities 1 1% 111%
2 Industry (Micro & Small, Medium and Large) 174% 111%
3 Services 0 89% 0 96%
4 Personal Loans* 11 64% 45 35%

* The amount of Personal Loans outstanding is very insignificant at 61 61 crores (Previous year T 9 82 crores)
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Detatls of iinancial assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for asset reconstruction

(% In crores)

ftems 2013-2014 2012-2013
1) [No of accounts / contracts 1007 1636
2) | Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SG/ RC 113 41 126 29
3) | Aggregate consideration 8400 111 50
4) | Additional constderatian realized in respect of accounts transferred in 1623 138
sarher years
5) | Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value (13 18) (13 41)

Duang the year, there has been no purchase / sale of non-performing financial assets from/ 1o other banks

{previous year Nil)

Dunng the year, there was no sale of assats through secuntization in respect of Standard Advances (previous

year Nif)
Provision on Standard Assels:

In accordance with RBI guidelines, general prowvision on standard asseéts is made at the following rates

{a} At 1% on standard advances to Commercial Real Estate Sactor,
{b)  At0 25% on standard direct advances to SME and Agnculture, and

{c) At 0 40% of the balance outstanding in other standard assets

Standard assets provision as al March 31, 2014 also includes additiona) provision made on restructured standard

assets m comphance with RBI guidelines

The provision on standard assets 1s included :n ‘Other Liabihties and Prowisions — Others’ in Schedule 5, and 1s
not netted off from Advances The amount of provision held on standard assets Is as below

{Tin crores)

Items

March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

Cumulative Provision held for Standard Assets

239 09

174 26

Floating provision:

Detauls refating to floating prowisions are given below

(Z in croras)

Items

March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

Opening Balance as at beginning of the year

Provisions made dunng the year

50 00

Draw-down made dunng the year

Closing Balance as at end of the year

5000

5. Business ratios

Ratio March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013
1} _| Interest Income as a perceniage to working funds 10 59% 10 72%
i) | Non-interest income as a percentage to working funds 243% 209%
nyy | Operahng profit as a percentage to working funds 3 33% 2 82%
) | Return on assels 181% 163%
v) | Business {deposits plus gross advances) per employee {Z1n lakhs) 717 12 840 52
vt} | Profit per employee(Z in lakhs) 903 922
vii) | Provision coveragae ratic 70 35% 70 13%
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(1) Working funds are reckoned as the average of total assets as per the monthly retums in Form X filed with RBI
duning the year

(2) Business per employee (deposits plus gross advances) s computed after excluding Inter-bank deposits

{3) Returns on Assets are computed with reference to average working funds

6. Asset Liability Management

Maturity Pattern of Assels and Llabifitles:
(a) As at March 31, 2014-

(% 1n crores)

Day 1 2tc 8to] 15t0|29daysto] Over3 Over Over| Over3| Over5 Total
7 Days| 14 Days| 28 Days| 3 months! months| 6 manths| 1yearto| yearsto years
o6 to Jyears| 5years
months 1 year
Deposits 31107 2,677 23| 2,285 22( 3,800 99| 12,036 66| 9,15408] 6576 91| 6.,109.83! 4,11567( 11,434 62| 60,502 29
Loans & 717 92)1,16010] 1,340 81| 80298| 3,31955) 3,350 04| 18,930 11| 14,303 72| 551333| 5.77327] 55,10184
Advances
Investment - - 167 24965| 3,15772| 36319) 148827 240962| 2,576 76| 14,607 07| 24,853 95
Secunhes *
Borrowings -13,17371 -| 82911 208241171763 157964] 527056 - 30890 14,761.96
Foreign currency | 57864 22908 49510\ 21588| 147023| 4980| 1,06247 3367 6859 13s10| 433957
assets
Foreign currency | 1,00278) 32821) 12122411,447 471 1,11888] 5930; 14993 S86 70| 72747 32299] 7.84607
labilities
* Investment is inclusive of Repo under LAF of T 3,291 00 crores
(b) As at March 31, 2013.
(% 1n crores}
Day 1 2to 8ta 15tol 29days| Over3 Over Over Over Over 5 Total
7 Days | 14 Days | 28 Days to 3| months | 6 months (T yearto 3] 3 years years
months to§ to years tos
months 1 year years
Deposits 27505 | 3,301 15| 1,675 22| 3,307 79| 14,505 64 | 587820 6,25230) 16,91322] 1,04547] 96268 | 54.116.72
Loans & 354877| 96350 8s080! 60522| 3,0288613,03774] 15,17564] 1342143 2,521.23| 2,877 42| 46,070 61
Advances
BRDS* -| 50000) 100000 25000 - - - - - -] 1,750.00
Investment -{ 43000 - -| 253147 61503] 47161| 204154| 1,757 79] 13,606 73| 21,45417
Secunties $
Borrowings -11,52016] 21714] 48639| 79654} 184922] 1,18591] 311529 -] a3089y| 945956
Foregneoumency | 243.20| 8845| 10358 4143| 30835 23s14| 8B070! 72635 53867 5159 3,19855
assets
Foregneurrency | 16177 | 41983| 23313| 52897| 79021) 1820737 49653) 24055 3832 64p] 474344
liabilifies

*Bills Re-chscounting Scheme
$ investment 1s mclusive of Repo under LAF of T 1,800 00 crores
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7. Exposures

Indusind Bank

71 Exposure to Real Estate Sector.
(T in crores)
Particulars March 31, 2014| March 31, 2013
(a) |Direct exposure
{) Residential Mortgages [of which indvidual housing loans 2,544 98 1,469 04
upio ¥ 25 lakhs 15 T 58 19 crores {previous year ¥107 69
crores)]
(m  Commercial Real Estate * 4,795 05 2,183 81
{m) Investments in Mortgage Backed Secunties {MBS) and other
secuntized exposuras
Res:dental - -
Commercial Real Estate - -
(b) |indirect exposure 755 55 503 66
. Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing
Bank {(NHB} and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
Total Real Estate Exposure 8,095.58 4,156.51
(1}  Does not inciude comorate lending backed by mortgage of land and building

72 Exposure to Capltai Market:

(T in crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

)

()

{on)

()

(v}
(v}

(vn)
fvin)

()
(%)

Direct investiment n equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and untts of equity onented mutual funds the corpus of
whrch s not exclusively invested in comporate debt

Advances against shares/bonds/ debentures or other secunties or on
clean basis to indwiduals for investment in shares {(including IPOs /
ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-onented mutual funds

Advances for any other purposes where shares or converitble bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity onented mutual funds are
taken as pnmary secunty

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
secunty of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
urts of equity onented mutual funds 1 e where the pnmary secunty
other than shares / convertible bonds /convertible debentures/units of
equily oriented mutual funds does not tully cover the advances
Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees
1ssued on behalf of stockbrokers and market makers

Loans sanctioned to corporatas agamst the secunty of shares / bonds/
debentures or other secunties or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s
contribution to the equity of new comparmes in anhicipation of raising
resources

Bndge loans to companies agamst expected equity flows fissues
Underwnting commitments 1aken up by the banks in respect of pnmary
issue of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units
of equity onented mutuat funds

Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and
unregistered)

61

4 63

Nil

348 70

1,360 89

]

Nil
Nl

Nil
Nil

6 55

738

Nit

286 00

1,497 71

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nl
Nil

Total Exposure to Capital Market

1,720.33

1,797.64
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73 Risk Category-wise exposure to country risk.

74

7.5

(2 1n crores)

Risk category Exposure (net)| Provision held Exposure {net) Pravision held
as at March as at March as at March as at March

31, 2014 31,2014 31, 2013 31,2013

Insignificant 356 07 - 250 09 -
Low 797 47 - 724 25 -
Moderate 8177 - 3166 -
High 514 04 - 23 58 -
Very High 729 - 13 40 -
Restricted 160 - 206 -
Off Credit - - - -
Total 1,758.24 - 1,045.04 -

Single borrower Iimit and Group Borrower Limit.
During the year, the Bank has not exceeded the prudenhal credit exposure imit in respect of Single Borrower and

Group Borrowers {previous year Nil)

Unsecured advances.

The Bank has not extended any project advances where the collateral 1s an intangtble asset such as a charge over
nghts, icenses, authonzations etc (Previous year Nil) The Unsecured Advances of ¥ 5,856 34 crores (previous

vear T 4,211 05 crares) as disclosed in Scheduls 9B () are without any collateral or security

Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

8.1 Concentration of Deposits.
(T in crores)
As on Ag on
March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 14,247 28 14,742 02
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of 23 55% 27 24%
the Bank
82 Concentration of Advances:
(% 1n crores}
As on As on
March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013
Total Advances to twanty largest borrowers 16,335.58 16,288 94
Percentage of Advances of twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 16 34% 22 59%
of the Bank

Advances are computed as per the definition of Credit Expesure Including denvatives as prescnbed in Master
Ciwrcular on Exposure Norms DBCOD No Dr BC 13/13 03 00/2013-14 dated July 1, 2013



83 Concentration of Exposures:

Indusind Bank |

(T 1n crores)

Total Exposure of the Bank on borrowers / customers

As on Ason

March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 16,335 58 16,288 94
Percantage of Exposura of twenty targest borrowers / customers to 15 38% 21 35%

Exposures are computed as per the defiibion in Mastar Circular on Exposwte Norms DBOD No D
BC 13/13 03 00/2013-14 dated July 1, 2013 and includes credit and investment exposure

84 Concentration of NPAs.

(T in crores)

As on As on

March 31,2014 | March 31, 2013

Total Exposure to top tour NPA accounts 127 27 96 78

Miscellaneous
81 Amount of Provisions for taxation during the year
(T in crores)

Particulars 2013-14 2012-13

Prowvision for Incoma Tax 74174 522 59

Defarred tax credit (2193) (7 91)

Provision for Wealth tax 050 050

Total 720.31 515,18

9.2 Disclosure of penalties Imposed by RBI*

RB! has hot imposed any penalty on the Bank u/s 46(4) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1948 (previous year Nil}

83 Fixed Asselts:

9 3 1 Cost of premises includes T 4 09 crores (previous year T 4 09 crores) in respect of properties for which
execution of documents and registration formalities are in pregress Of these properbies, the Bank has not
obiained full possession of one property having WOV of T 1 67 crores (previous year T 1 70 crores) and has

filed a suit for the same

9 32 Premises owned by the Bank were revalued as at 31 January 2014 and an amount of T 188 54 crores

(previous year NIL) was credited 1o Revaluation Reserve

94 Contingent Liabliities-

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts compnise of tax demands of T 118 38 crores (previous year
7 111 40 crores) in respect of which the Bark 1s in appeal and the cases sub judice ¥ 417 45 crores (previous
year T 319 49 crores) The above are based on managsment's estimate, and no signficant hability 1s expected

to anse out of the same
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85 Other Income:
9.5 1 Fees received in Bancassurance business

Commisston, Exchange and Brokerage in Schedule 14 include the following fees eared on Bancassurance

business
(T n crores)
Nature of Income March 2014 March 2013
For selling life insurance pohicies 4175 4324
For seiling non-life insurance policias 31 00 27 26
For selling mutua! fund products 3928 36 83
Others - -
Total 11203 107.33

9.5.2 Bank does not have any overseas branches and hence the disclosure regarding overseas assets, NPAs
and revenue 1s not applicable {Previous year: Nil)

9.5.3 The Bank does not have any Off-Balance Sheet SPVs (which are required to be consolidated as per
accounting standards) (Previous year Nil}

10. Employee Stock Option Scheme (“ESQS")

112

The shareholders of the Bank had approved Employee Stock Option Scheme {ESOS) on September 18, 2007, enabling
the Board and / or the Compensation Committee to grant such number of stock options of the Bank not excesding 7%
of the aggregate number of 1ssued and paid up equity sharas of the Bank, in ing with the gurdelines of the Secunties
& Exchange Board of India (SEBI) The options vest within a maximum penod of five years from the date of grant of
option The exercise pnece for each grant 1s decided by the Compensation Committee, which 1s normally based on the
latest available closing pnece Upon vesting, the options have o be exarcised within @ maximum penod of frve years
The ESOS 1s equity settled where the employees will receive one equity share per oplion

Pursuant to the ESOS 2007 schema, the Compensation Commitiee of the Bank has granted 3,10,18,700 oplions as set
out below

Sr. No. Date of grant No of Options Range of exercise price (%)
1 18/07/2008 1,21,65,000 48 00 - 50 60
2 17/12/2008 34,56,000 3895
3 05/05/2009 8,15,500 44 00
4 31/08/2009 3,18,500 100 05
L 28/01/2010 747,000 4800 - 140 15
6 28/06/2010 13,567,450 196 50
7 14/09/2010 73,500 236 20
8 26/10/2010 1,43,500 274 80
9 17/01/2011 25,00,000 22870
10 07/02/2011 20,49,000 95 45 - 220 45
1 24/06/2011 21,54,750 253 60

12 16/08/2011 89,500 254 90
13 30/09/201 2,61,000 262 25




Indusind Bank

————— -

Sr. No. | Date of grant No of Options Range of exercise price ()
14 21122011 9,20,000 23195
15 28/02/2012 1,985,000 304 05
16 15/04/2012 1,40,500 345 60

17 | 25/05/2012 1,34,500 304 55 |
18 10/07/2012 2,67,000 34325
19 29/08/2012 1,14,000 31505
20 10/10/2012 23,500 365 75
21 09/01/2013 30,000 43375
22 18/04/2013 12,500 419 60
23 20/06/2013 1,75,000 478 45
() 24 | 1800712013 18,35,000 453 90
25 23/09/2013 75,000 411 50
26 29/10/2013 22,000 41225
27 29/01/2014 7,67,500 300-389 85
28 25/03/2014 1,76,500 490 30

Recognition of expense

Excess of fair market pnce over the exercise pnce of an option as at the grant date, is recognized as a deferred compensation
cost and amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting pencd of such options  The fair market price is the latest avallable
closing price prior to the date of the meehng of the Compensation Committee, in which options are granted, on the stock
exchange on which the shares of the Bank ate isted Since shares are bsted on more than one stock exchange, the stock
exchange where the Bank’s shares have been traded highest on the said date 1s considered

Stock Option activity under the scheme during the year:

No. of Options | Weighted average
exerclse price (7)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,64,11,180 147 18
. Granted dunng the year 30,63,500 41835
Forfeited / surrendeved dunng the year 3,98,485 344 95
Exercised dunng the year 27,68,778 12579
Expired dunng the ysar - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,63,07,417 197 11
Options exercisable at the end of the year 1,19,49,138 134 12

The weighted average pnce of oplions exercised dunng the year is ¥ 435 49
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Following table summarnizes the information about stock options outstanding as at March 31, 2014

Date of grant Exercise | MNumber of shares arising out of | Welghted average life of
Price Options Optlons (in years)
18 July 2008 48 00 48,50,000 168
18 July 2008A 50 60 3,73,000 204
17 Dec 2008 38 95 3,185,985 237 ]
5 May 2009 44 0C 11,700 270
31 August 2009 100 05 70,540 300
28 Jan 2010 140.15 16,550 323
28 Jan 2010A 48 00 6,00,000 183
28 Jun 2010 196.50 3,74713 344
14 Sep 2010 236 20 15,840 413
26 Oct 2010 274 80 25,300 385
17 Jan 2011 22870 25,00,000 381
7 Feb 201 220 45 9,42,550 404
7 Feb 2011A 95 45 2,84,000 286
24 Jun 2011 253 60 11,42,594 4 54
16 Aug 2011 254 90 55,615 483
30 Sep 2011 26225 2,32,420 4 58
21 Dec 201 23185 7,989,550 476
29 Fehb 2012 304 05 1,53,500 494
19 Apnl 2012 34560 1,26,950 518
25 May 2012 304 55 1,33,510 517
10 July 2012 34325 2,58,150 527
29 Aug 2012 31905 95,450 555
. 10 Oct 2012 36575 23,500 5 54
9 dan 2013 43375 15,000 579
18 Apr 2013 419 60 5,000 606
20 Jun 2013 478 45 1,75,000 624
18 Jul 2013 453 90 16,68,000 6 31
23 Sep 2013 411 50 73,000 6 50
29 Oct 2013 412 25 22,000 6 60
29 Jan 2014 389 85 67,500 685
29 dan 2014A 300 00 7,00,000 685
25 Mar 2014 490 30 1,76,500 700
114
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Fair value methodology.

The farr value of options granted dunng the year has been estmated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pnecing model with the following assumptions

2013-14
Average dwdend yield 1 28%
Expected volatility 34 80% - 51 64%
Risk free interest rates 7 55% - 8 95%
Expected hie of ophons (in years) 350-550

Expected volatility 1 a measure of the amount by which the equity share pnce Is expected to fiuctuate dunng a period The
measure of volatiity used in Black -Scholes option pncing model is the annualized standard dewiation of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the share over a period of time  Expected volatiity has been computed by considenng the
histancal data oh daily volatiity in the closing equity share pnce on NSE, over a pror penocd equivalent to the expected Iife
of the options, till the date of the grant

The stock-based compensation cost calculated as per the intiinsic value method for the financial year 2013-14 15 ¥ 064
crores Had the Bank adopted the Black - Scholes model based fair valualion, compensation cost for the year ended March
31, 2014, would have increased by ¥ 32.46 crores and the proforma profit after tax would have been lower by T 21 42 crores
On a proforma basis, the basic and diluted eamings per share would have been ¥ 26 44 and T 26 00 respectively

The weighted average tair value of options granted dunng the year ended March 31, 2014 15 7 195 70

11. Disclosures — Accounting Standards
11 1 Empioyee Benefits (AS-15)
Gratuity:

The benefit of Gratutty 15 a funded defined benefit plan For this purpose the Bank has obtamed qualifying
insurance policies from two Insurance companies. The following table summanses the components of net
expenses recogmized in the Profit and Loss account and tunded status and amounts recognized in the Balance
Sheet, on the basis of actuanal valuation

(% 1n crores)

March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013

Changes in the present value of the abligation

1 Opening balance of Present Value of Obligatron 27 98 2263
2 Interest Cost F 231 175
3 Current Service Cost 7 45 8 49
4 Benefits Paid {175) (192)
5 Actuanat (gan) / loss on Obhgation {t 63) (0 97}
g Clasing balance of Prasant Value of Cbhigation 34 36 27 98

Reconclliation of opening and closing balance of the falr value of
the Plan Assels

1 Opening balance of Fair value of Plan Assels 2867 2394
2 Expected Return on Plan assets 251 21
3 Contnbutions 6 65 435
4 Benefits Paid {175) {1 92)
5 Actuanal gain / {loss) Return on Plan Assels (172) 019
6 Closing batance of Fair Value of Plan Assels 34 36 28 67 .
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Profit and Loss — Expenses
1 Current Service Cost 7 45 649
2 Interest Cost 231 175
3 Expected Retum on Plan assets {2 51) (2 1)
4 Net Actuanal (gawn) / loss recogrised in the year 009 (1 186)
5 Expenses recognised in the Profit and Loss account 734 497
Actuarial Assumptions
1 Discount Rate 9 14% 8 00%-8 15%
2 Expected Rate of Retum on Plan Assets 8 00-8 48% 8 00%
3 Expected Rate of Salary Increase 5 00% 4 00%-5 00%
4 Employee Attntion Rate
Past Service 0 to 5 years 30% 30%
Past Service above 5 yeats 0 80% -
Expenence Adjustment
(T i crores)
Particulars March 31, | March 31, March 31, March 31, [ March 31,
2014 2013 2012 201 2010
Defined Benefit Obligations 34 36 27 98 22 63 19 67 14 59
Plan Assets 3436 28867 23 84 19 89 14 67
Surplus / {Dehic) - 063 131 022 008
Expenence Adjustments on Plan 163 123 124 {103) {3 11)
Liabiities
Expenence Adjustments on Plan Assets (172) 018 (113) 056 (0 45)

Provident Fund

The guidance on implementing AS 15, Employee Benefits (revised 2005) states that benefits involving employer
established provident funds, which require interest shortfalis to be recompensed are 1o be considered as defined

benefit plans

The details of the fund and plan assets posttion as at March 31, 2014, are as follows

(% 1n crores)

Assets / Liabilities March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013
Present value of interest Rate guarantee on Provident Fund D 56 076
Present value of Tolal Obhgation 87 20 79 40
Fair value of Plan Assels 86 64 78 68
Net Asset/ (habity) recognized in the Balance Sheet {0 56) {0 72)
Assumptions

Normal Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Expected guaranteed interest on PF i future 875% 8 50%
Drscount rate 914% 8 30%
Expected average remaining working lives of employees (years) 1429-22 05 2138
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Assets / Liabllities

March 31, 2014

March 31, 2013

Benefit on nomal ratirement

Accumulated
account balance

Accumulated
account balance

Benefit on early retirement / withdrawal / resignation

Same as normal
retirement
benefit

Same as normal
retirement
benefit

Benefit on death in service

Same as normal
retirement
benefit

Same as normal
retirement
benefit

11 2 Segment Reporting (AS 17):

The Bank operates in tour business segments, viz Treasury, Corporate/ Wholesale Banking, Retarl Banking and
Other Banking Operations There are no significant residual operations carmed by the Bank

Business Segments

{I » crores)

Business Segment Treasury Corporate / Retail Banking Other Banking Total
Wholesale Banking Operation
Particulars 310314 31/0313] 31/03H4[ 31/03H3| 310314 31/03H3[ 3103114 31/03H3| 31/03M14] 31/03M3
Revenue 230278 176788] 3,67296) 336928 547449 442443 2420 2282| 11,47443| 9,584 42
inter Segment Revenue {1,330 37)| {1,238 23)
Total Income 10,144 06 8,3461%
Result 32213 136 94 70863 57532| 165603] 119447 732 616] 268411 191289
Unallocated Expenses {98 15) (7343
Operating Profit 2,58596( 183946
Income Taxes and Other (1.18794)| {778 28)
Provisions
Extraordinary profit/ loss . -
Net Profit 140802| 106118
Other Information
Segment Assets 24014 4B| 21,566 54| 20514 60| 14,909 98| 39,534 45| 34,808 05 -1 84,063 53} 71,284 57
Unallocated Assets 2,96240) 202195
Total Assets 87,025 93] 73,306 52
. Segmenl Liabilities 15,018 43! 9584 08| 35498 48| 34,83758 25,65360| 1992903 - -| 7637051| 64,350 69
Unallocated Liabihties 10,85542) 895583
Total Liabilities 87,025 83| 73,306 52

Geographic Segments
The business operations of the Bank are largely concentrated in India  Activities outside India are restncted to
resource mobihzation 1n the intemational markets Since the Bank does not have maienal eamwngs emanating
from foreign operations, tha Bank is considered to operate only in domestic segment
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Key Management Personnel:
Mr Romesh Sobfi, Managing Director

Associates

Related party transactions (AS-18):
The following Is the Information on transactions with related partles:

Indusind Marketing and Financial Services Private Lirmited

Subsidiaries-
ALF Insurance Services Pnvate Limiied (under hquidation)
In accordance with RBI guidelines, details pertaining to the related party transactions have not been provided as
thers 1s only one related party in each of the above categones
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11.4 Operating Leases (AS 19)
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The Bank has not given any assets on operating lease The Bank has taken a number of premises on operating
lease for branches, offices, ATMs and residential premises for staff The details of matunty profile of future
operating lease payments are givan balow

(Z ' crores)

March 31, 2014 | March 31, 2013

Future lease rentais payable as at the end of the year

- Not later than one year 136 01 111 08
- Later than one year but not later than five years 466 99 354 34
~ Later than five years 232 84 165 09
Total of miimum lease payments recognized in the Profit and Loss 149 40 109 32

Account tor the year

Total of future mimimum sub-lease payments expected to be recaived - -
under non-cancellabie sub-lease

Sub-lease payments recognized in the Profit and Loss Account for the - -
year

The Bank has not sub-leased any of the properties taken on lease There are no provisions relating to contingent
rent

The terms of renewal and escalation clauses are those normally prevalent in similar agreements There are ho
undue restnctions or onerous clauses ih the agreements

Earnings per share (AS 20)

Details pertaining to eamings per share as per AS-20 are as under

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2014 | March 31,2013

Net Profit as Reported (2 in crores) 1,408 02 1061 18
Basic weighted average number of equity shares 52,44,65,413 48,60,03,221
Diluted werghted average number of equity shares 53,32,37,373 49,58,08,290
Nominal value of Equity Shares (%) 10 10
Basic Earnings per Share (3) 26 85 2183
Diluted Earmings per Share (Y) 26 41 2140

Consolidated Financial Statements ~ Subsidiary (AS 21)

ALF Insurance Senvices Pvt Ltd {ALFS), subsidiary of the Bank, could not commence operations Conseguent
to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors, ALFS has inthated the process of winding up which 1s currently
under progress Since the control 1s regarded as temporary, no consolidated financial statements have been
drawn up as per AS-21 “Consolidated Fmancial Statements”
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The major components of deferred tax assats / lhabilihes are as under
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(% \n crores)

March 31, 2014 March 31, 2013
Deferred Tax Deferred Tax

Timing differance on account of Assets | Liabilitles | Assets | Liabilities
Difference between book depreciation and - 2106 - 14 60
depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961
Dufterence between Provisions for doubtful debts and 236 54 - 174 €2 -
advances and amount allowable under Section 36(1)
{vnna} of the (ncome Tax Act, 1961
Interest on secunties - 14267 - 103 39 :
Qthets 18 60 - 1285 - i
Sub-total 255 14 16373 187 47 117 99
Net closing balance carried to the Balance Sheet 91.41 - 69.48 -
(included i Sch. 11 - Others)

12. Additional Disclosures

12.1 Provisions and Contingencies charged to the Profit and Loss account for the year consist of.

(¥ 1n crores)

Particulars Year ending Year ending

March 31, 2014| March 31,2013
Depreciation on Investments 87 56 130
Provision for non-performing assets including bad debts wntten off net 31367 219 61
of wnte backs
Provision towards Standard Assets 64 83 3549
Income Tax / Wealth Tax / Deferred Tax 720 31 51518
Others 157 670
Total 1,187 94 778.28

12.2 Movement in provision for credit card and debit card reward points-
(Z In crores)

Particulars 201314 2012-13
Opening provision 926 903
Provision for Reward Points made dunng the year 018 5 80
Utiisation / Write back of provision for Reward Points {0 84) 657
Eftect of change in rate for accrual of Reward Points 058 -
Closing provision for Reward Points 9 9.26
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123 Disclosure of Compiaints:
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125

A Customer Complaints

No. | Particulars 2013-14 2012-13
(a) No_of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 377 325
{b) | No of complants receved dunng the year 18501 17093
{¢) | No of complants redressed during the year 19568 17041

{d) | No of complaints pending at the end of the year 310 377

B. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman
No. | Particulars 2013-14 201213
{a) | No of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year Nil NIl
{b) | No of Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsmen dunng 5 1
the year

{c) | No of Awards implemented during the year 5 1
{d) | No of unimplemented Awards at the end of the year Nil Nit

{Comptiled by management and relied by auditors)
Letters of Comfort
The Bank has not 1ssued any letter of comfort (Previous year Nu)
Disclosure on Remuneration

Remuneration Committee (RC)

The RC of the Bank compnses four members of the Beard of Directors of the Bank inciucing one member from
Risk Management Committes of the Board The mandate of tha RC 15 to establish, implement and maintain
remuneration polictes, procedures and prachices that are consistent with, and promaote, sound and effective nsk
management to achieve effective alignment between remuneration and nsks The Committee 1s also mandated
to oversee framing. )mplementation and review of the Bank’s Compensation policy as per RBI guidelines on
Compensation of Whole Time Directors / Chief Executive Officers / Risk Takers and Control funchon staff whose
professional activities have a matenal impact on the Bank's nsk profile The RC 1s also required 1o ensure that the
cost / income ratio of the Bank supports the remuneration package consistent with maintenance of sound capital
adequacy ratio The RC reviews compensation siructure and the policres of the Bank with a view to attract,retain

and motivate employees.

Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy 1s formulated by the Board in alighment with RBI guidelines, and is structured to cover all

components of remuneration ncluding fixed pay, vanable pay, perqusites, retrement benefits such as Prowdent

Fund and Gratuity, long term incentive plans, and Employee Stock Options,

The key objectives of the policy are

{)  Benchmark employee compensation with markst for vanous Job posihons and skills and pay for ‘Position,
Performance & Person’

(1)  Mantan an optimal balance between fixed and vanable pay

(my  Pay for Performance

(v} Buid employee ownership and fong term association through long term incentive plans (ESOPs)
Some of the mportant features of the Compensation Policy are as below

(1  The RC will oversee the framing, implementation and review of the Compensation Policy

()  Remuneration will be market linked for cntical roles so as to atiract and retain tatent

(m)  In respect of WTDs / CEO / Risk Takers, the compensation structure provides for a reasonable increase
in fixed pay in line with market benchmarks Their indivadual increments are inked to annual performance
rating and increment percentages at vanous performance rating levels, which will be decided on the basis
of the hnancial performance of the Bank Exceptions will be restncted to a select few high performers to

reward performance, motivate and retain critical staff
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)

v)

(v)

(vn)

(i)

(x)

{x)
(xa}

(xi)
()

{xiv)

The quantum of overall vanable pay to be disbursed in a year would vary on the basis of the financial
performance of the Bank measured through vanous parameters such as NiM, NN, ROA, PAT and ROE

Remuneration 1s linked to performance Increments and vanable pay are linked to the annual performance
rattng Annual Performance Rating for an empioyee 1s arnved on the basis of tangible performance against
pre-set Key Results Areas (KRAs) / Goals set at the beginning of the Financial Year

The indwvidual vanable pay 15 linked to annual performance rating, and based on vanable pay gnds
outhning vanable pay as a percentage of Annual Guarantead cash at vanous rating bands for a grade
level Exceptional increments and vanable pay may be paid to high performers, but in no case they would
viclate the stipulated R8I gudelines

The indnidual varable pay would not exceed 70% of the fixed pay Wherever vanable pay exceeds a
substantial portion of fixed pay as defined by the Bank, vanable pay will be deferred over a penod of 3 years
In a ratio to be decided by management in accordance with the RBI guidelines.

The Bank will enter into a malus / claw-back arrangerment with the concerned employees Malus arrangement
would lay down policies to adjust deferred remuneration before vesting and claw-back arrangement would
lay down policies to adjust deferred remuneralion after vesting The cntena would be negative cantnbution
by reievant business lines through supervisory oversight, excessive nsk taking, integnty / staff accountabiirty
Issues

The Compensation Policy does not provide for guaranteed bonus or sign on bonus in cash Sign on bonus
to be paid in form of pra-hinng ESOPs will be vary selaectve for cntical hires

The Compensation Policy does not provide for severance pay for any employee

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Gratuity are as per the Bank's HR policies wiich are
tn ine with the statutory norms

Perquisites are laid down in HR Policies of the Bank

At present, the Bank uses cash based form of vanable remuneration The rakonale is that cash based
form of vanable remuneration leads to an instant reward to the concemned employees and is also easy to
administer

ESOPs do not form a part of the varnable pay and are very selechvely granted to attract and retan

employees ESOPs are not granted with a defined penodicity ESOP grant cntena include grade of the
employee, cnticality of the position in terms of business contrbution and market value of the position, and

performance and behawvioural track of the employee

Other Disclosures

Year ended March 31, 2014

Year ended March 31, 2013

Number of meetings held by RC
dunng the financial year and
remuneration paid to its members

Dunng the year, two meetings of
Remuneration commiltee were
held The members were paid a
sitting fee of T 30,000 per meeting

Dunng the year, ong meeting of the
RC was held The members were
paid a sitting fee of ¥ 30,000

Number of employees having
received a vanable remuneration
award dunng the financial year

51 employees belonging to the
category of WTD/CEO/Risk
Takers had received a vanable
remuneration award

39 employees defined by the Bank
as WTD / CEO / Rusk Takers had
received a vanable remuneration
award

to the accrued benefils

Number and total amount of ‘signon'{ Nu Nu
awards made dunng the financial

year

Detarls of guaranteed bonus if any f Nil Nil
paid as sign on bonus

Detads of severance pay in addition | il Nl

Total amount of outstanding deferred
remunération spht into cash, shares
and share linked instruments and
ather forms

The outstanding deferred
remuneration 1s NiL

Deterred compensation was not
apphcable for the year
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Year ended March 31, 2014 Year ended March 31, 2013
Total amount of daferred Nit NIl
remuneration pad out in the
financial year
Breakdown of amount  of|Breakup of remuneration awards for| Breakup of remuneration awards for
remuneration awards for the|the 57 employees defined as WTD /| the 38 empioyees defined as WTD /
financial year CEOQ / Risk Takers CEO / Risk Takers
(@) Fixed pay - ¥ 73 04 crores (a) Fixed pay- 7 57 B0 crores
(b) Vanable pay — T 21 95 crores|(b} Vanable pay - T 17 50 crores
for F ¥ 2012 - 2013 FY 2011 - 2012
{c} Deferred ramuneration — Ni {c} Deferred remuneration — NIL
(d) Non-deferred remuneration —|(d) Non-deferred remuneration —~
T 21 95 crores T 17 50 crores
Total amount of outstanding | Nit Nil
deferred remuneration and retamed
remuneration exposed lo ex post
axplicit and implicit adjustments
Total amount of reductions dunng | Nil Nil
the FY due to ex — post explict
adjustments
Total amount of reductions dunng|Nil NIl
the FY due to ex ~ post mphct
adjustmenis
13. The Micro, Small and Medium Enterpnses Developrment Act, 2006 that came into force from October 2, 2008, provides
for certain disclosures n respect of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises There have been no reported cases of delays
in payments to micro and small enterpnses or interest payments due 1o delays in such payments
14  Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassiied wherever necessary
As per our report of even date attached For INDUSIND BANK LTD.
ForBSR & Co LLP R. Seshasayee Kanchan Chitale
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director
Firm's Registration No 101248W
Akeel Master Romesh Sobti
Partner Managing Director
Membership No 046768
Place Mumbai §. V. 2aregaonkar Haresh Gajwani
Date Apni 16, 2014 Chief Financial Officer Company Secratary
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DISCLOSURES UNDER BASEL Il CAPITAL REGULATIONS —
31t MARCH 2014

. Scope of

Application

Name of the head of the banking group to which the framework applies INDUSIND BANK LTD

() Qualitative Disclosures

Indusind Bank Lirited ('the Bank’) 1s a commercial bank, incorporated on January 31, 1994 The Bank has only
ong wholly owned subsidiary viz , ALF Insurance Services Pnvate Limited The financials of the subsidiary are not
consohdated with the Bank's financials as the said company could not commence business and has commenced
broceedings for a voluntary winding up The CRAR 15 computed on the financial position of the Bank alone

a)  List of group entitles considered for consolidation:
Name of the Whether Explam the Whethar Explain the Explain the Explamn the
entity/Country | the entity is method of the entity I1s method of reasons for reason if
of mcorporation | included under | consohdation included under | consolidation difterence in consolidated
accounting regulatory scope the method of | under only
scope of of consclidation censoldation one of the
consohidation {Yes/No) scopes of
(Yes/No) consolidation
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
b)  List of group entities not considered for consolidation both under the accounting and regulatory
scope of consolidation:
(Name of the Prnciple Total balance | % of banks Regulatory Total balance sheet assets
entity/Country | activity of the sheet equity holding in the treatment (as stated in the accounting
of mcorporation | entity folal equity of bank's balance sheet of the fegal
investments enlity)
in the capital
mstruments of
the entity
ALF Insurance | Insurance ¥ 5 Million 100% held by Risk Weighted | The Company is currently under
Sevices Put Corporate indusind Bank | in terms of voluntary winding up As of
Ltd /Indea Broking tid Basel Ul March 31, 2014, an amount of
gurdelines ¥ 6 68 milhon 1s available
as bank balance with the
Liquidator and there are no
external habilities except
expenses relating 1o iguidation
(i) Quantitative Disclosures-
c) List of group entities considered tor consolidation®
As mentioned above n Para (i) above, the Bank does not have a “matenal non-listed indian subsidiany”
as defined in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement ALF Insurance Services Pnvate Lid 1s a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Bank that was set up to do the business of Insurance Cormporate Breking but had not
commenced operations The Bank has since decided against entenng inio insurance broking business and
proceedings for voluntary winding up of the company have been inthated
d)  There is no capital deficiency in any subsidiary, which is not included in the regulatory scope of consolidation
e)  Ason 31¢ March, 2014, the Bank doss not have controlling interest in any Insurance entity

f)

There are no restrictions or /mpediments on transfer of funds or regulatory capital within the banking group
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Capital Adequacy
Apphicable Regulations:

Reserve Bank of India issued Guidelines based on the Base! {1l reforms on capital regulation on May 2012, to the extent
applicable to banks operating in India The Basel IH captal regulation has been mplemented from Apnl 01, 201310
India in phases and it will be fully implemented as on March 31, 2019 RBI 1ssued detalled Guidelings an Composition of
Capital Disclosure Requirements on May 28, 2013 The Basel 11l Captal Regulations have been consolidated in Master
Circular — Basel Il Capital Regulations vide circular No DBOD No BP BC 2/21 06 201/2013-14 dated July 12013

Basel lil Capltal Regulations:

Basel Il Capital regulations contnue to be based on three-mutually reinforcing pillars, viz, minimum captal
fequirements, supervisory review of capdal adequacy, and market disciphine of the Basel I) capital adequacy framewark
This aircular also prescnbes the nsk weighis for the balance sheet assets, non-funded dems and other off-balance
sheet exposures and the mimimum capntal funds to be maintained as ratio to the aggregate of the nsk weighled assets
and other exposures, as also, capital requirements in the trading book, on an ongoing basis and operational nsk

These guidelines also incomorate instructions regarding the components of capital and capital charge required to be
provided for by the banks for credit, market and operational nsks 1t deals with providing exphicit capital charge for credit
and market nsk and addresses the issues involvad in computing capial charges for interest rate related instruments in
the trading book, equities in the trading book and foreign exchange nsk (including gold and other precious metals) m
both trading and banking books Trading book for the purpose of these guidelines includes secunties under the Held for
Trading category, Available For Sale category, open goid position limits, open foreign exchange position imits, trading
positions i denvatives, and denvatives entered into for hedging trading book exposures

Basel Il capital regulations are being implemented in India with effect from Apnl 1, 2013  In order to ensure smooth
migration to Basel {ll without aggravating any near term stress, appropnalte transitional arrangements have been made
The transitional arrangements for capital ratios began as on Apnl 01, 2013 However, the phasing out of non-Basel 14
comphant regulatory capital instruments began as on January 01, 2013 Capital ratios and deductions from Common
Equity will be fully phased-in and implemented as on March 31, 2019

Minimum capital requirements-

Under the Basel lll Capital Regulations, Banks are required to mamntan a miwmum Pillar 1 Capial to Risk-weighted
Assets Ratio (CRAR) of 9% on an on-going basis {other than capital conservation buffer and countercyciical capital
bufter etc ) Besides the mimimum capital requirements, Basel 1il also provides for creation of capital conservation buffer
(CCB) The CCB requirements kick in from March 31, 2016 and are to be fully impiamented by March 31, 2019

Bestdes computing CRAR under the Pillar | requirement, the Bank also pencdically undertakes stress testing in
vanous nsk areas to assess the impact of stressed scenano or plausible events on asset quality, iquidity, interest rate,
denvatives and forex on its profitability and capital adequacy

The assessment of future capital needs 1s effectively done based on the business projections, asset mix, operating
environment, growth outlook, new business avenues, regulatory changes and nsk and retum profile of the bustness
segments The future capital requirement s assessed by taking cognizance of all the nsk elements viz Cradit, Market
and Operational nsk and mapping these to the respective busness segments

The Summary ot Capltal requirements for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk as on March 31, 2014,
1s mentioned below-

Risk Type (¥ 1in milhen)
Capital requirements for Credit Risk 52,751
Portiolio Subject to Standardised approach 52,751
Secuntisation exposures .
Capital requirements tor Market Risk 2,265
Standardised Duration Approach

Interest Rate Risk 1,885
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Risk Type (T in million)
Foreign Exchange Risk (including gold) 180
Equity Risk 200
Capital requirements for Operational Risk 5,518
Basic Indicator Appreach 5,518
Total Capital requirements at 9% 60,534
Total Capital Funds 93,049
CRAR 13.83%

QOrganisation Structure
integrated Risk Management: Objectives and Organisation Structure

The Bank has established an Enterpnse-wide Risk Management Department, indepéndent of the Business segments,
responsible for Bank-wide nsk management covenng Credit nsk, Market nsk {(including ALM) and Operatienal nsk
The Risk Management Department focuses on identification, measurement, monitonng and controlling of nsks across
vanous segments The Bank has been progressively adopting the best Intemational practices so as to continuaily
reinforce 1ts Risk Management functions

Organisation Structure
The set-up of Risk Management Department is hereunder

Managing Director

|

Chief Rigk Officer

A 4

Head - Risk Management

Credit Market Risk Operaticnal Asset Liability
Risk Management Management Risk Management Management

Separate Committees, as specified below, are set up to manage and control vanous nsks
. Risk Management Committes {RMC)

. Credit Risk Management Committes (CRMC)

. Market Risk Management Committee (MRMC)

. Asset Liability Management Gommittee (ALCO)

. Operational Risk Managerment Committee (ORMC)
Bank has artrculated vanous nsk policies which specify the nsks, controls and measurement techniques The policies are
framed keeping nsk appetite as the central objective Aganst this background, the Bank identfies a number of key nsk
components For each of these components, tha Bank determines a target that represents the Bank's perception of the
component in question
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The nsk pohicies are vetted by the sub-committees, viz CRMC, MRMC, etc and are putfarthto RMC, which 1s a sub-committee
of the Board Upon vetting of the policies by RMC, the same 1s placed for the approval of the Board and implemented

Bank has put in place a comprehensive pohey on ICAAP, which presents a holistic view of the matenal nsks faced, control
environment, nsk management processes, nsk measurement techniques, capital adequacy and capital plannung

Policies are penodically reviewed and revised to address the changes in tha economy / banking sector and Bank’s nsk profile.
Monitoring of vanous risks 1s undertaken at perodic intervals and a report 1s submitted to Top Management / Board

Crecit Risk

The Bank manages credit nsk comprehensively, both at Transaction level and at Portfoho level Some of the major mtiatives
taken are hsted below

. Bank uses a robust Risk rating framework for evaluating credi! nsk of the borrowers The Bank uses segment-specific
rating models that are aligned to target segment of the borrowers

. Risks on vanous counter-parties such as corparates, banks, ara montoted through counter-party exposure imits, also
governed by country nsk exposure limits ih case of international trades

. The Bank manages nisk at the portfolio level too, with portfolio level prudential exposure hmits to mitigate concentration
nsk

. The Bank has a well-diversified portfolio across vanous industries and segments, as illustrated by the following data

0 Retall and schematic exposures (which provide wider diversification benefits) account for as much as 49 % of the
total fund-based advances

O  The Bank’s comorate exposure is fully diversified over 85 industnes, thus insulated/minimised from indnidual
industry cycles
The above inthatives suppoert qualiabive business growth whila managing inherent nsks within the nsk appetite

Market Risk

Key sources of Market nsk are Liqundity Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Price Risk and Foreign Exchange Risk The Bank has
mplemented a state-of-the-art Treasury system which supponts robust nsk management capabilities and faciiiates Straight-

through Processing

Market Risk s effectively managed through comprehensive policy framework which provides vanous tools such as Mark-to-
Market, Sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk, besides through operational limits such as stop-loss imits, exposure imits, deal-

size imits, matunty ladder, etc

Asset Liability Management (ALM)

The Bank's ALM system supports effective management of hquidity nsk and interest rate nsk, covering 100% of its assets

and abhhes

- Liguickty Bisk 18 monitored through Structural Ligtindity Gaps, Dynamic Lquidity posttion, Liguidity Ratios analysts and
Behawvioral analysis, with prudential lmits for negative gaps in vanous tme buckets

- Interast Rate Senstivity i1s monitored through prudential imits for Rate Sensiive Gaps and other nsk parametars

Interast Rate Risk on the investment portfolio 1s monitorad through Modified Duration on a daily basis Optimum nsk i1s
assumed through duration, to balance between nsk containment and profit generation from market movements

ALCO meetings were convened frequently dunng the financial year, wherein analytical presentations were made providing
detarled analysis of iquidrty posttion, interest rate nsks, product mix, business growth v/s budgets, inferest rate outlook, which
helped to review the business strategies regularly and undertake new niiatives

Operational Risk

Operational risk 1 managed by addressing People nsk, Process nsk, Systems nsk as well as nsks ansing out of extemal
environment

The Bank has effictent audit mechanism, involving penodical on-site audit, concurrent audits, on the spot and off-site
survelllance enabled by the Bank's advanced technology and Core Banking System
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The Bank has constituted Fraud Risk Management Committee which ts involved in root cause analysis and actions taken to
rmtigate frauds A separate and independent KYC/AML cell has been in place to ensure compliance with respect to customer
on-boarding and transaction monitonng as per the intemal framework and regulatory guidelines of KYC/AML

The Bank has implemented vanous Operational Risk management tools such as Risk Events reporting framework, Risk and
Controt Self-Assessment (RCSA) and Loss Data (Basel 8 * 7 matrix} collection including Near Miss Events The Bank weighs
each new Product and Process enhancements under Operational Risk Assessment Process (QRAPY framework

The Bank has intiated the process of putting n place Operational Risk Management Framework, using sophishicated tools,
such as

. Key Risks Indicators

. Oparational Resk Incident Repaorting

. Score Cards (Branch and Comporate Functions)

The tramework would help in mitigation of operational nsks and optimization of capital requirement towards operatronal nsks
under Basel Il norms

Systems Risk

As part of System:.s-related Operational Risk Management inatives, the Bank has achieved the following

. The Bank has formulated and implemented a comprehensive Business Continuity Plan (BCP) to ensure continuity of its
cntical business functions and extension of banking services to its customers

) The Bank has Information Secunty Policy in place to ensure confidentiality, integnty and accessibility of all its information
secunty assets

. The Bank has eslablished an gffective Disaster Recovery site at a distant location, with on-line, real-time rephcation of
data, both in Mumbai and Chennai

. Comprehensive 1T secunty framework has been put in place to ensure complete data secunty and integnty
. The Bank has housed its data center in a professionally managed environment, with sophisticated and fool-proof
secunty features and assured supply of utiities

The robust Risk Management framewaork created in the Bank supports rapid and qualitative growth with optimization of nsks
and maximization of shareholder valye

. Credit Risk Exposures

“Credit Risk™ 1s defrned as the probability / potential that the borrawer or countar-party may fail to mest ds obligations n
accordance with agreed terms It involvas inability or unwillingness of a borrower or counter-party to meet commitments
in relation to lending, trading, hedgmg, settlement and other financial transactions

Credit Risk is made up of two components
1 Transaction Risk {or Default Risk), which represents the nsk ansing from individual credit exposures and

2 Portfolio Risk, which represents the nsk inherent in the portfolio of credit assets {concentration of assets,
correlation among portfolios, etc )

Credit nsk is found in a vanety of fransachions across the Bank's portiohio including not only loans, off balance sheet
exposures, investments and financial guaranteas, but also the nsk of a countemparty 1n a denvative transaction becoming
unable to meet its obiigations Credit nsk constitutes the largest nsk to which the Bank is exposed The Bank has
adequate system support which facilitates credit nsk management and measurement across its portfolio The system
support 1s strengthened and expanded as and when new exposures are added to the Bank's portiolio

The Bank has articulated comprehensive guidedines for managing credit nsk as outlined in Credit Policy, Credit Risk
Palicy and related Policies framework, Bank Risk Policy, Country Risk Policy, Loan Review Polcy and Recovery Policy
The credit nsk management systems used at the Bank have been implemented m accordance with these guidelines
and best market practices The gredit nsk management process focuses on both specific transactions and on groups of

specific exposures as portfolios .

127



P P,
[]

ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

128

The Bank’s credit nsk policy and related policies and systems focus are framed to achieve the foilowing key objectives

> Monitoning concentration nsk in particular products, segments, geographies elc thereby avoiding concentration
nsk from excessive exposures to any particular products, segments, geographies etc

Assisting in building quality cradit partfolio and balancing nsks and retums i ine with Bank’s nsk appetite
Tracking Credit quality migration

Determining how much captal to hold against each class of the assets

Undertaking Stress testing to evaluate the credit portfolio strength

To develop a greater ability to recegnize and avoid potential problems

Ahgnmaent of Risk Strategy with Business Strategy

Y V V Vv Vv VvV VY

Adherence to regulatory guidelines
Credit Risk Management at specific transaction level

The central objective for managing credt nsk at each transaction level 1s development of evaluation and monitonng
syslem thal covers the entire life cycle of the exposure, i e opportunity for transaction, assessing the credn nsk, granting
of credit, disbursement and subsequent menitoning, identifying the obligors with emerging credit problems, remedial
action i event of credit quality detenoration and repayment or termination of the obligation

The Credit Policy of the Bank stipulates for applicability of vancus norms for managing credit nsk at a specific transaction
level and more relevant to the target segment of the obhgors The Credit Policy covers all the types of obligors, viz
Cormporate, SME, Trader and Schematic Loans such as Home Loan, Personal Loan, efc

The maljor components of Credit and Risk Pollcies are mentioned below-
¥ The transaction with the customer/ prospective custormer is undertaken with an airn to build long term relationship

¥ All the related internal and regulatory guidelines such as KYC norms, RBI prudential norms, etc are adhered to
while assessing the credit request of the borrower

> The credit 1s granted with due diligence and detailed sight into the customer’s circumstances and of specific
assessments that provide a context for such credits

» The facility 1s granted based on the customer’s creditworthiness, capital base or assets to assure that the customer
15 able to substanhate the repayment. Due regard i1 also placed to the industry in which the customer s aperating,
the business specific nsks and management capability and their nsk appetite

> Regular follow-up in the overall health of the borrower 1s undertaken to assess whether the basis of granting credit
has changed
> When Inans and credits are granted to borrowers falling outstde preferred credit rating, the Bank normally obtains

sufficient collateral However, coliaterals are not the sole critenon for lending, which 1s generally done based on
assessing the business wiability of the borrower and the adequacy of the expected cash flows

»  The Bank has defined exposures imit on the basis of intemal nsk rating of the borrower
The Bank 1s particutarly cautious when granting credits to busmesses in affected or seasonal industries

> In terms of Bank's country nsk management, due caution 1s exercised when assuming nsk i countnes with an
unstable economic or poiitical scenano

Beside the acceptability norms defined in the Credit Policy for an ndiidual transaction, Bank has also implemented

various credit related product programmes which enables efficient appraisal, assessment, delivery, supervision and

control of taillor made loan products targeted at specific customer segments The customers covered under the Business

Banking preduct programme are evaluated using a sconng/rating model developed based on the segment specific nisk

profile

Consumer Financa Division appnses the loan apphcation based on robust set cntenia defined in the respective product
programmes Further as a mechanism to assess the credit quality, customers are also evaluated through application

sconng models which are segment specific
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The customers under Credit Cards segment are evaluated by means of robust customer selection ¢cmtena that include
vanety of factors

Bank has also put In place a detaed pohcy for portfoho acquistion which stipulates various chitena for asset selection
including due diligence, transter of nsks and rewards of the undarlying porttoho, credit anhancements, portfolio nsk
management and monitonng in accordance with RBI guidelines

Credit Approval Committee

The Bank has put in place the pnnciple of ‘Committes’ or *Approval Gnds’ approach while according sanctions to the
credit proposals This provides for an unbiased, objective assessment/evaluation of credit proposals Such Committees
include atleast one official from an independent department, which has no volume or profits targets to achieve The
official of tha independent department is a compulsery member of the Cradit Committee and a dissent by such member
cannot be overndden by others The spint of the credit approving system 1s that no credit proposals are approved
or recommended to higher authonties unless all the members of the ‘Committee’ or *Approval Gnds' agree on the
acceptabiity of the proposal in all respects In case of disagreement the proposal is referred to next higher Committee
whose decision to approve or dechne with conditions 1s then final

The following *Approval Gnds' are constituted
»  Corporate & Commercial Banking Segment:
o  Zonal CGredit Committee (ZCC)
=  Corporate Office Credit Committes (COCC) ~ |
@  Corporate Office Credit Committee (COCC) - Il
@  Executive Credit Committee (ECC})
3 Consumer Banking (CB) Segment

The scheme of delegation under Consumer Bankig Segment includes Vehicle financing, personal loans, housing
loans and other schematic loans under multi-tier Committee based approach as under

@ Branch Credit Committee — Consumer Banking (BCC — CB)

@  Regwonal Credit Committee — Consumer Banking (RCC - GB)

a  Corporate Office Credit Committee — Consumer Banking (COCC- CB 1 & 11
@  Executive Credit Committee

The credit proposals which are baeyond the delegated powers of ECC are placed to Committee of Directors {COD)
or Board of Directors (BOD) tor approval

Risk Classification

The Bank monttors the overall health of its customers on an on-gotng basis to ensure that any weakening of a customer's
earnings of liquidity is delected as early as possible As part of the credit process, customers are classifred according
to the credit quality in terms of internal rating, and the classification 1s regularly updated on recatpt of new information/

changes n the factors affecting the position of the customer

Thae Bank has operationabsed the following nsk ratng/ sconing models depending on the target segment of the borrower
. Large Corporate, Smali & Medium Enterpnses, NBFC;

. Trading Entties, Capital Market Broker and Commodity Exchange Broker,

. Financial Institutions / Pnmary Dealers and Banks,

- Retail Customers (Schematic Loans) —who are assigned credit sconng

The customers under Business Banking segment are assessed for credi quality using a sconng/rating model The
score serves a measure to categonse the customers into vanous nsk classes which are further calibrated to drfferent

nsk grades .
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Rating grades in each rating model, other than the segments dnven by product programmes, 1s on a scale of 1 1o 8,
which are funther categonsed by assigning +/- modifiers to reflect the relative standing of the borrower within the specific
nsk grade The model-specitic rating grades are named distinctly Each model-specific rating grade reflects the relative
ratings of the borrowers under that particular segment For instance, L4 indicates 2 supenor nsk profile of a Large
Corporate, when compared to another Large Corporate rated LS

In order to have a common nsk yardshick across the Bank, these model specific ratings are mapped to common scale
ratings which facilitate measurement of nsk profile of different segments of botrower by means of common nsk ladder

The vanous purposes for which the rating/sconng models are used are mentioned hareunder

= Portfolro Management

@ Efficiency in lending dacision

@ To assess the qualty of the borrower — single point reference of credit nsk of the borrower
@ Preferred rating norms for assuming exposures

@  Prudentral ceiling for single borrower exposures — linked to rating

@ Frequency of review of exposuras

@ Frequency of internal auditing of exposures

@ To measure the portfolio quality

@ Target for quality of advances portiolio 1s monitored by way of Weighted Average Credit Rating (WACR)
@ Pnoing Credit

o Capal Allocation {under Basel | — IRB approaches)

Credit Quality Assurance.

Bank has also adopted Loan Review Mecharusm (LRM), which \nvalves independent assessment of the quality of an
advance, effectiveness of loan administration, compliance with intemal policies of bank and regulatory framework and
portioho quahty # also helps in tracking weaknesses developing im the account for imbiaung corrective measures mbme
LRM 1s carned out by Credit Quality Assurance team, which 1s independent of Credit and Business functions

Credit Risk Management at Portfolio level:

The accumulation of indwidual exposures leads to portfolio, which creates the possibility of concentration nsk The
concentration nsk, ideally on account of borrowers/ praducts with similar nsk profile, may anse in vanous forms such
as Single Borrower, Group of Borrowers, Sensitive Sector, Industry—wise Exposure, Unsecured Exposure, Rating wise
Exposure, Off Balance sheet Exposure, Product wise Exposure, etc The credit nsk concentration 1s addressed by
means of structural and prudential mits sttpulated in the Credit Fusk Policy and othar related polictes

Concentration nsk on account of exposures o counter-partes (both single borrower and group of borrowers), Industry-
wise, Rating-wise, Product-wise, elc , 1s being monitored by Risk Management Dept (RMD) For this purpose, exposures
in all business units, viz branches, treasury, invesiment banking, etc, by way of all instruments (loans, equity/debt
investments, denvative exposures, efc ) are being considered Such monitonng 1s carhed oul at monthly intervals
Besides, respective business units are monitoring the exposure on cohtinuous real-ime basis

The conhcentration nsk is further evaluated in terms of stabistical measures and benchmarks Detan analysis of porttchio
nsk and control measures in place 1s carned out on a monthly basts on vanous parameters Direction of nsks and
controls {decreasing, stable, and increasing} and resultant net nsk 1s also done Further, a comprehensive Stress
Testing framework based on several factors and nsk dnvers assassing the impact of stressed scenano on Credit
qualty, its impact on Bank's profitabiity and capital adequacy 1s placed 1o Top Management /Board every quarter The
framework highlights the Bank’s credit portfolio under 3 different levels of intensity across default, 1 @ mild, mediwm and
severe, and analyses iis impact on the portfolio quality and solvency level

Imparred Credit - Non Performing Assets (NPAs).

The Bank has an independent Credit Administration Department that constantly monitors accounts for irregulanties,
identifies accounts for early warning signals for potential problems and identihes indnidual NPA accounts systemahcally
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Bank has also set up Financial Restructunng and Reconstruction (FRR) Dept tor managing and mornitonng defaulted
accounts, carrying out restructunng, wherever feastble and following up for recovenes of dues

The guidelines as laid down by RBI Master Circular No DBOD No BP BC.8/21 04.048/2013-14 dated Jduly 1, 2013, on
Assel classification, Income Recognilion and Prowistoning to Advances portfolio are followed while classifying Non-
performing Assets {NPAs) The guidehnes are as under

a)  Anasset, including a leased asset, becomes non-performing when it ceases to generate income for the bank
b)  Anonperforming asset (NPA) is a loan or an advance where,

| interest and / or instailment of pnncpal remains overdue for a penod of more than 90 days in respect of a
term loan,

n the account remains ‘out of order’, in respect of an Overdraft / Cash Credit (OD/ CC),
] the bill remains overdue for a penod of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and discounted,

v the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short duration
crops,

v the instaliment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long duration crops,

vi the amount of hquidty facility remains outstanding for mere than 90 days, in respect of a secuntisation
transaction undertaken in terms of RBI guidelines on Secuntisation dated February 1, 2006

vt 1n respect of denvative transactions, the overdue recetvables representing positive mark-to-market value of
a denvahve contract, if these remain unpaid for a penod of 90 days from the specified due date for payment

Out of Order status An account should be treated as ‘out of order’ If the outstanding balance remains continuously
in excess of the sanctioned limit / drawing power In cases where the outstanding balance n the principal operating
account 1s less than the sanctioned himit / drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 90 days as on the
date of Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover the interest debited dunng the same penod, these accounts
should be treated as ‘out of order’

Overdue Any amount due to the bank under any credit faciity 1s ‘overdue’ if it 1s not paid on the due date fixed by the
bank

Credit Risk Exposures
{8) Total Gross Credit Risk Exposures as on 31* March 2014

{Z in millions)

Fund Based* 796,426
Non Fund Based™™ 319,506
Total Exposures 11,186,022

* Includes all exposures such as Cash Credit, Overdrafts, Term Loan, Cash, SLR secunties etc , which are
held in banking book

b Off-Balance tems such as Letter of Credit, Bank Guarantee and credit exposure equivalent of Inter-bank
forwards, merchant forward contracts and denvatives, etc

{b) Geographlcal Distribution of Exposures as on 31* March 2014
{% in milllons)

Domestic Overseas
Fund Based 796,426 -
Non Fund Based 319,506 -
Total Exposures 11,16,022 -
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{c)

Industry-Wise Distribution of Exposures as on 31* March 2014

{ in millions)

Textiles - Cotton fabncs

Industry Name Fund Based| Non Fund Based
NBFCs
NBFC {other than HFCs and MFis) 10,784 3,202
NBFCs (LOAN COMPANY) 9 1,895
NBFC IFC (INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE COMPANY) - 242
Construction
Construction related to infra - EPC 8,337 5,722
Reads/other infra project 5,523 5,107
Contract Construction - Cvil 3,815 10,030
Real Estate
Real Estate Developers 16,429 836
Leage Rental Discounting - Real Estate 23,408 384
Housing Finance Camparnies 400 1,361
Loans against Property 2,632 -
Power
Power Generation 10,220 24,001
Power Trading - 1,696
Cables
Telecom Cables 2 651
Power Cables 156 31
Steel
Steel-Long Products 867 10,036
Steel Flats-CR,GP/GC 1,373 1,134
Steel Flats- HR 830 5
Steel - Alloy 1,849 15
Stesl Pipes 852 589
Sponge Iron 4 41
Casting & Forgings 1.085 37
Stainless Steal 281 3.384
fron and Steel Rolling Mills 379 L
Pig lron ‘ 1107
Textiles
Textiles - Readymade Garments 1,807 376
505 53
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® in milllons)

Industry Name Fund Based| Non Fund Based
Textiles -Cotton hibre / yamn 158 1
Textles - Manmade fibres / yam 412 288
Textiles-Textunsing 227 16
Textile-Blended Yam 11 -
Textile - Jute 20 .
Textiles - Synthetic Fabnes 472 172
Textle - Silk 8 .
Cotton ginning, Cleaning, Baling 888 -
Telecom

Telecom - Celiular/Towar 105 20,431
Telecom Equipments 2,011 617
Pharmaceuticals

Pharmaceuticals -~ Bulk Drugs 3,053 2,476
Pharmaceuticals - Fermulations 3,472 1,055
Chemicals

Chermicals - Organic 2,567 325
Chemicals - inorganic 2,105 1,624
Fertilisers

Fertilizers - Nitrogenous 2,125 6,840
Paper

Paper - Wnting and Pnnting 746 4,620
Paper - Industnal 3,882 1,894
Paper Newspnnt 348 21
Petroleum & Products 4,761 20,354
Engineenng & Machinery 4,685 15,246
Gams and Jewellery 11,030 650
Edible Qils 495 246
Auto Ancillanas 4,632 2,343
Diversified 5,445 1,734
Hospital & Medical Services 312 81
Food Credit 7,306 01
Alurminium 2,333 178
Capital Market Brokers 1,837 7,050
Microfinance Institution 961 -
NBFCs(Micro Finance inshitulion) 3,681 -
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(% in millions)

Industry Name Fund Based| Non Fund Based
Rubber & Rubber Products 584 31
Investment & Secunties 2,700 1,314
Lease Rental Discounting - Others 10,762 147
Plastic & Plastic Products 3,890 2 455
Other Food processing 8,597 189
Sugar 100 431
SME - Miscellaneous-Ming 471 73
Electronic components 999 828
Commodity Market Brokers 396 1,829
Beverage, Brewenes, Distillenies 518 -
Hotels & Tounsm 4,462 1,549
Glass & Glass Products 536 103
Shipping 73 1
Educational Insttutions 1,862 -
Computers - Hardware 55 315
Coal 1,187 601
IT Enabled Services 2,154 2,206
Elecincal fitings 1,055 858
Petrochemicals 19 3,808
Banks - 39,795
Animal Husbandry 127 -
Mining, Quarrying & Minerals 8186 382
Construcbhon Egqupment 1,881 1,756
Alrlines 4 688 1,555
Automobiles-2/3 wheelers 547 -
Wood and Wood Product 333 71
Leather & leather Products 386 44
Tiles/Sanitaryware 277 39
Transport Senices 1,237 5,993
Ol and Gas Exploration 500 8,010
Electnc Equipment 1,346 3,417
Media, Entertainment & Adwt 5,910 3,091
Orgarised Retailing 1,923 113
Trading - Whalesale 19,916 11,523
Trading - Retall 18,233 529
Services 7,197 6,153
Credit Cards 4,566 -
Consumer Finance Division 241,880 -
Other Industnes 34,701 29,710
Residual Assets 245,406 25,163

7,96,426 3,19,596

Total Exposure
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(d) Residual Contractual Matunty break down of assets

{X in millions)

Next| 2days| Bdays| 15t028( 29days| Over3( Over6| Over1]| Over3[ Cvers Total
Day to7| tols Days to3| months| months | yeartod| yearsto| years
days|{ Days manths tod tot years | Syears
months year

Cash 4,568 - - - - - - - - -] 4,98
Balances with RBI - - -| 3480 2525 7975| 6057y 40295 5062 9778( 39,172
Balances with other
Banks 21,891 181 439 601 383 - - 80 - -| 23,855
Investments - - 17 24971 31,577 3632| 14883 24096( 25768( 1,46,071] 2,448,540
Advances 7,179) 11,601] 13408| 6,030] 33,196| 33500 1,89.301( 1,43937 | 55133 57.733] 5,561,018
Fixed Assets - - - - - - - - -| 10.164| 10,164
Qther Assets 1408 1203 7816 470 2085} 3320) 1833 10985 2231 4427] 250888

{e) Movement of NPAs and Provision for NPAs as on 31* March 2014
(¥ m millions)

A | Amount of NPAs (Gross) 6,208
Sub-standard 2,745
Doubtful 1 1,538
Doubtful 2 1,066
Doubtful 3 583
Loss 276

B | Net NPAs 1,840

C | NPAratlos
Gross NPA to Gross advances (%) 112%
Net NPA to Net advances (%) 0 33%

D | Movement of NPAs {Gross)

Operung Balance as on 01.04 13 4,578
Additions dunng the year 6,242
Reductions dunng the year (4.612)
Closing Balance as on 31 02 14 6,208
E | Movement of provision for NPAs**

Opening as on 01 04 13 3,210
Provision made in 2013-14 3,568
Write off / Wnte back of excess provisions (2,411)

4,367

Closing as on 31 03 14

** Prowvisions include floating provisions .
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In line with RBI circuiar DBOD BP BC No 98/21 04 132/2013-14 dated February 26, 2014, the Bank adjusted the
counter cycheal provision of T 27 24 crores held agamst shartfall on sale of non-performing assets to ARC

(i Non Performing Investments and Movement of provision for depreciation on Non Performing Investments

(T in millions)

A [ Amount of Non-Perforrmng Investments 1
B | Amount of provision held for non-performing investments 71
C | Movement of provision for depraciation on investments

Opening as on 01 04 13 17

Add Provision made in 2013-14 87

Less Whnte-off/ write-back of excess provision 2)

Closing Balance as on 31 03 14 987

Credit risk: Disclosures for Portfolios under the Standardised Approach

As per the Base! Il guidelines on Standardised approach, the nsk weight on certam categones of domestc counter
parties 1s determined based con the external rating assigned by any one of the accredied rating agencies, 1 e CRISIL,
ICRA, CARE, India Ratng Pvt Ltd, Bnckworks Ratings India Pvt Ltd and SMERA For Fore:gn counterparties and
banks, rating assigned by S&P, Mocdy’s and Fitch are used

The Bank computes nsk weight on the basis of external rating assigned, both Long Term and Short Term, for the
facilties avalled by the borrower The external ratings assigned are generally facity specific The Bank follow below
mantioned procedures as lard down in the Basel || guidelines for usage of extemal ratings

. Ratings assigned by one rating agency are used for all the types of claims on the borrowing entity

. Long term ratings are used for faciiies with contractual matunty of one year & above Short term ratings are
generally applied for facilitres with contractual matunty of less than one year

- It either the shon term or long term ratings attracts 150% nsk weight on any of the claims on the borrower, the
Bank assigns umiform nsk weight of 150% on all the unrated clarms, both short term and long term uniess the
exposure 1s subjected to credit nsk mitigation

. In case of multiple ratings, if there are two ratings assigned to the facility thal maps to different nsk werghts, the
rating that maps to higher nsk weight 1s used In case of three or more ratings, the ratings corresponding to the
two lowest nsk weights is referred to and the higher of those two nsk weights is be applied 1 e , the second lowest
nsk werght

. For secunhzed and guaranteed transactions, SO ratings asstgned by the rating agency are apphed for arnving at
the nsk weights

___ Brsk Weight-wise distnbution of Grogs Credit Exposures
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Category 7 in millions
Below 100% Risk Weaights 742 537
100% Ruisk Waights 308,235
More than 100% Risk Weights 65,249

Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for Standardised Approach

The Bank mitigates credit exposure with eligible collaterals and guarantees to reduca the credrt nsk of obligors as
stipulated under Basel Il In principle with mitigating credit nsk, Bank has put in place a comprehensive policy on
Credit Fusk Mitigants and Collaterals for recognizing the ehgible collaterals and guarantors for netting the exposures
and reducing the credit nsk of obligors Basic procedures and descnptions of controls as well as types of standard/
acceptable collaterals, guarantees necessary In granfing credt, evaluation methods for different types of credit and
coliaterat, apphicable “haircuts” to collateral, frequency of revaluation and release of collateral are stpulated in the
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Bank's credit policy, policy on callateral management and credit nsk mitigant policy The Bank uses net exposure for
capial calculations after taking cogmizance of eligible financial collaterals Al collaterals and guarantess are recorded
and the details are Iinked to individual accounts Perfection of secunty interest, date, currency and comnrelation between
collateral and counterparty are also considered

As lending 1s subject to default nsk, Bank accepts collateral secunties to minmize the impact of loss and consequently
reducing the credit nsk The type of collaterals 1s determined based on the nature of facility, product type, counter
party nsk and its credit quality However, as explained earier, collateral 1s not the sole cntena for granting credit For
Corporate and SME clients, working capital facility 1s generally secured by charge on current assets and Term loan
1s secured by charge on fixed assets In case of project financing, Bank generally stipulates escrow of receivables/
project cash flows along with the charge on underying project assets The credit nsk policy clearly defines the types
ot secondary secunties and rminimum percentage in relation to the total exposures that 1s required to be obtained in
case of credit granted to obligors falling outside the preferred rating grade Credit facilities are also granted against
the secunty of assets such as cash deposits, NSC, guarantee, mortgages, pledge of shares and commodittes, bank
guarantees, accepted bills of exchange, assignment of recevables etc The credd taciities, m terms of nsk policies,
are secured by secondatry collaterals such as cash deposits, NSC, guarantee, morigages, fixed assets ete B8ank also
grants unsecured credit to the borrowers with high standing and low credit nsk profile, Customers under Gredit card
. programime are assessed by means of comprehensive customer selection parameters

For Bustness Banking clients, who are dnven by product programmes and templated sconng models, the facilities
are ordinanly secured by adequate collaterals The programmes have a robust mechantsm for collateral acceptance,
valuation and morutonng

In case of schematic products such as Home Loan, LAP, Auto Loan, etc, Loan 1o value ratic, margin and vatuation/
revaluation of collaterals 1 defined in the respective product programme The valuation 1s generally carned out by the
empaneiled valuer of the Bank Bank has also putin place approved product paper on loan against warehouse receipts,
shares and other secunties The margin, valuation and revaiuation of the assels are specified in the product note

The credit approving authonties also decides en the type and amount of collaterals for each type of faciity on a case-
to-case basis For schematic lpans and facihties offered under product prograrmme, secunties are obtained as defined
n the product notes

Eligibte Financial Asset Collateral and Guarantor

For the purpose of credit nsk migation, 1 & offseting the amount of collateral/ basket of collaterals against the individual/
pool of exposures to which the collaterals are assigned, financial asset collateral types are defined by the Bank as per
the Capital Adequacy Frameawork to include Fixed deposits, KVP, VP, NSC, Life Insurance Pohicies, Gold, Sscunties
issued by Central and State Governments and units of Mutual Fund On a similar note, the eligible guarantors are
classihed into the following categones

. ’ Sovereigns, Sovereign entities, Banks and Pnmary Dealers with lower nsk weights than the counterparty

» Other entities including guarantee cover provided by parent, subsidiary and affillate comparues when they have
lower nsk weight than the obhgor
(% In milllons)

Particulars Eligible Financial Supported by

Collaterals guarantee
Exposure before applying ehgible miigants 80,685 11,306
Exposure after applying eligibfe mitigants 29,698 0

VI. Securitisation Exposures: Disclosure for Standardised Approach
Secuntisation “means a process by which a single performing asset or a pool of performing assets are sold to a
bankruptcy remote Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV} and transferred from the balance sheet of the onginator to the SPV
in return for an Immediate cash payment

SPV" means any company, trust, or other entity constituted or established for a specific purpose - (a) actvities of which
are himited !o those for accomplhshing the purpose of the company, trust or other entity as the case may be, and (b)
which 15 structured 1n a manner intended io isolate the corporation, trust or enhiy as the case may be, from the credit

nsk of an onginator to make it bankruptcy remote
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Bank had neither onginated any secuntization transactions by way of sale of secuntised assets, nor retained any
expasure on such assets, actual conditional, or contingent, durng the year ended March 2014

The Bank, in the past, had carned out secuntization transactton and such deals were done on the basis of True Sale’,
which provides 100% protection to the Bank from the default in case of assets ongnated by it All nsks in the secuntised
portfolio were transierred to the Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) Post-secuntisation, Bank continued to senice the
loans transferred under secuntization Bank had also prowided for credit enhancements 1n the form of cash coliaterals
tc a mintmum extent

The Bank, in the past, had secuntized its assets with the objectives of managng its funding requirements, improving
Lquidity, reducing credit nsk and diversiftying the portfolio nsk, managing interest rate nsk, and capial adequacy The
Bank has not secuntised any of its portfolios for the past 8 years

Apart from managing credt nsk, Bank also considers diferent types of nsks viz nterest rate nsk and hquidity nsk
for the retained assets or acquired portfohio and ensure its adequate assessment and mechanism for mitigating the
same The secunhzed portfolio, both the retained part and acquired assets are monitored regularly in terms of vanous
nsk parameters such as repayment, cash flows to service the interest, principal and other charges, counterparty sk,
servicer's capability, underlying asset nsk profile and interest rate nsk

Exposure details on account of Securitization Transactions
(a) Secuntisation exposures in Banking Book:

There are no cutstanding under the secuntization exposures as on 31% March, 2014 No secuntizalion activities
were undertaken by the Bank dunng the year ended 314 March, 2014

{b) Amount of Assets intended to be securitized within a year:

For the tme being Bank does not have any plans to undertake secuntization of its assets Howevar, forthe purpass
of balance sheet management and if the opportunities anses, secuntization of exposure may be explored

{c) Securitisation exposure in Trading Book:

Aggregate amount of on-balance and off-balance sheet securitisation exposures purchased
(T in millions)

Exposure Type On-balance sheet
Micro Finance Loans 1,052
Vehicle Loans 594

Aggregate amount of securitisation exposures purchased subject to Comprehensive Risk Measure for Speclfic
Risk
(X in milhons)

Exposure Type On-balance sheet
Micro Finance Loans 1,052
Vehicle Loans 594

Risk welght bands break-up of securltisation exposures purchased
® In millions)

Exposure Type Amount
<100% nsk weight 584
100% nsk weight 1,052
>100% nsk weight -
Total 1,646
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Securttisation exposures deducted from capital
(% in million)

Exposure Type | Exposures deducted entirely | Credit  enhancing  interest- | Gredt  enhancing  mterest-
from Tier-1 capital only stnps deducted from total | only stnps deducted from total
capital capital
NA

Market Risk in Trading book

Market Risk may be defined as the possibility of loss to a bank caused by changes in the market vanables The market
nsk for the Bank is govemned by the Market Risk Policy and Funds and Invesiment policy which are approved by the
Board These policies serve o outhine the Bank's nsk appetite and risk philosophy in respect of Treasury / Forex {
Equity / Denvatives / Bullion operations, and the controls that are considered essential for the management of market
nsks The policies are reviewed penodically to update it with changed business requirements, econoimic envifonment
and revised regulatory guidelines

Sources of Market Risk.

Market nsks anse from the following nsk factors

» Pnce nsk for bonds, forex, equities and bullion

» Interest rate nsk for investments, denvatives, sl

» Exchange rate nsk for currencies, and

»  Trading / iquidity nsk,

Objectves of Market Risk Management:
The broad objectives of Market Risk management are

» Management of interest rate nsk and cumrency nsk of the trading portfolio
» Adequate control and suitable reporting of investments, Forex, Equity and Denvative portiolios
» Comphance with regulatory and intemnal guidelines

v Monutoning and Control of transactions of market related instruments
Scope and nature of Risk Reporting and Measurement Systems-
Reporting

The Bank reports on the vanous investments, Foreign exchange postions and denvatives positron with their related nsk
measures 1o the top management and the commrttees of the Board on a penodic basis The Bank penodically reports
the related positions to the regulators in compliance with regulatory requirements

Measurement

The Bank monitonng its nsks through nsk management tools and techniques such as are Value-at-Risk, Modified
Duration, PV01, Stop Loss, amongst others  Based on tha nsk appetite of the Bank, vanous nsk limits are placed which

1s monitored on a daily basis

Capital requirements for Market Risks @ 9%
 in milions)

Market Risk elements Amount of capital
required
interest Rate Risk 1,885
Fareign Exchange Risk (including gold) 180
Equity Risk 200
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The Bank has framed Operational Risk Management Policy duly approved by the board Other pohcies adopted by
the Board that deals with management of operational nsk are (a) Information System Secunty Policy (b) Policy on
Know Your Customer (KYC) and Antr Money Laundenng Policy (AML) process (¢} IT business continuity and Disaster
Recovery Plan and (d) Busmess Continuity Plan (BCP) () New Praduct Programme Policy {f) A framework for Risk and
Control Self Assessment (RCSA) and (g) Risk Event Reporiing Framework

The Operational Risk Management Policy adopted by the bank outlines organization structure and detail process for
management of Operational Risk. The basic objective of the policy 1s to closely itegrate operational Management
system to nsk management processes of the Bank by clearly assigning roles for effectively identifying, assessing,
monitonng and controling / mihgating operatronal nsk exposures, including matenal operational losses Operational
nsks n tha Bank are managed through comprehensive and well-articulated internal control frameworks The Bank has
completed the process of captunng, reporbing and assessing nsk events at the process level using RCSA framework

Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)

Interest Rate Risk 15 the nsk of loss in the Bank's net income and net equity value ansing out of a changs in level of
interesi rates and / or thewr implied volatility Interest rate nsk anses from holding assets and liabilites with different
prncipal amounts, matunly dates and re-pncing dates The Bank holds assets, habilities and off balance shest tems
across vanous marksts with different matunity or re-pncing dates and linked to different benchmark rates, thus creating
exposure to unexpected changes in the level of interest rates in such markets Interest rate nsk in the banking book
refers to the nsk associated with interest rate sensitive instruments that are not held i the trading book of the Bank

Risk Management Framework

The Board of the Bank has overall responsibility for management of nsks and it decides the nsk management policy
of the Bank and set imits for hquidity, interest rate, toreign axchange and equity prica nsks The Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) consisting of Bank’s senior management mcfuding Managing Director 1s responsible
for ensunng adherence to the hmits set by the Board as well as for deciding the business strategy of the Bank (for the
assets and abiitres) in line with the Bank’s budget and decided nsk management objectives ALCO decides strategres
and specifies prudential imits for management of interest rate nsk in the banking book within the broad parameters laid
down by Board of Direciors These limits are monitored pencdically and the breaches, it any, are reported to ALCO

Monitoring and Controt

The Board of Directors has approved the Asset-Liabiity Management policy The policy 1s intended to be flexible to
deal with rapidly changing conditions, any vanations from policy should be reponted to the Board of Directors with
recommendations and approval from the ALCO
The Bank has put in place a mechanism for regular computation and monitonng of prudential imits and ratios for
quedity and interest rate nsk management The Bank uses its system capability for imits and ratio monitonng The
ALCO support group generates penodic reports for reporting these to ALCO and semior management of the Bank
The ALM support group cames out vanous analyses related to assets and habilities, forecast financial market outlook,
compute hquidity ratios and intereslt rate nsk values basad on the earnings and economic value parspective

Risk Measurement and Reporting Framework

The estimation of Interest Rate Risk involves interest Rate Sensitive Assets (RSAs) and interest Rate Sensitive
Liabilities (RSLs)

Tha techniques for managing interast rate nsk include

» Interest Rate Sensiivity Gap Analysis

v Earning at Risk Analysis

’ Stress Testing

Interest Rate Sensitivity Gap The gap or mismatch nsk as at a given date, 1s measured by calculating gaps over
different ime intervals Gap analysis measures mismatches between Rate Sensitive Liatihties (ASL) and Rate Sensitive
Assets (RSA) (including off-balance shest positions) The report is prepared by grouping habilities, assets and off-
balance sheet positons into time buckets according to residual matunty or next re-pricing penod, whichever s earliar
The difference hetween RSA and RSL for each time bucket signifies the gap in that tims bucket The gap report provides
a good framework for determining the eamings impact

Earning at Risk Any change in interest rate would impact Bank’s Net Interest Income (NII) and the value of its Fixed
income Portfolio (Price fisk} The Interest Rate Risk 1s measured by EaR that s the senstwity of the NIl to a 100 basis
points adverse change 1 the level of interest rates
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Stress Testing The Bank measures the impact on Net Interest Margin (NIM) / EaR afer taking into account vanous
possible movement in interest rales across 1enor and their impact on the earnings and economic value of the Bank is
calculated for each of these scenanos These reports are prepared on a monthly basis for measurement of interest rate
nsk

With an upward rate shock of 1% across the curve, as per Rata Sensitve Gaps in INR as on March 31, 2014, the
eaming shows a decline of Rs 112 million

The impact of change in interest rate by 100 bps and SO bps has been computed on open posiions (as on March 31,
2014) and shown hereunder aganst the respactive currencles

Change In interest rates {in bps)
impact on Nil X in million)
Currency -100 -50 50 100
INR 112 56 (56) {112)
usp {0 00) {0 00) 000 0 00
JPY 000 {0 00) {0 00) (0 00)
GBP 000 000 (0 00) (0 00}
EUR 000 000 {0 00) (0 00}
Others {0 00) {0 00) 000 0 00
Total 112 56 (56) {112)

X. General Disclosures for exposures related to Counterparty Credit Risk

Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) 1s the nsk that the counterparty to a transaction could default before the final setilement
of the transaction’s cash flows An economic loss would occur if the transactions of portfolio of transactions with the
counterpanty has a posiive economic value for the Bank at the time of default Unlike exposure to credit nsk through
a loan, where the exposure to credit nsk 1s unilateral and only the lending bank faces the nsk of loss, CCR creates
a bilateral nsk of loss whereby the market vzlue for many different types of transactions can be positive or negative
to either counterparty The market valua 1s uncertain and can vary over time with the movement of underlying market
factors

Capital 1s aliocated to CCR exposures taking into consideration the regulatory gurdelines on Basel — Ill Capital Adequacy
Computahon

Counterparty credit nsk 1s managed and controlled through vanety of nsk pohcies and meonitonng procedures including,
but not limited, to the following

. Credit Risk Policy,
. Bank Risk Policy,
. . Dernvatives Policy, and

. Country Risk Policy

It 1s possible for the counterparty's credit quality to be co-dependent with the level of exposure This effect 1s called
wrong-way nsk if the exposure tends to increase when the counterparty credit quality gets worse Wrong way nsk is
controtled through polictes that manage industry, country and individual counterpanty concentrations

Exposure on account of Counterparty Credit Risk
& in millions})

Particulars Amount
Gross positive value of contracts 17,684
Netting Benefils -
Netted current credil exposure 51,782
Collateral held 925
Net denvative credit exposure 50,857

Detaled disclosures with respect to {1} Composition of Capital, (1) Composition of Caprtal —-Reconciltation Requirements,
{m) Main features of Regulatory Capital Instruments and {iv) Full terms and conditions of Regulatory Capital Instruments
are uploaded on the website under the hink ‘Regulatory Disclosures Sechion’
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US DOLLAR DENOMINATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2014

oPSSlaTone T [ (Millions of USS)
1USD = 7 59.9150 WAS AT 032014  Agat 31.03 2013

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES
Capital

Employee Stock Option Outstanding
Reserves and Sumlus

Deposits

Borrowings

Other Liabilities & Prowvisions
TOTAL
ASSETS

Cash and Balances with Resarve Bank of India
Balances with Banks & Money at Call and Short Notice
Investments

Advances

Fixed Assets

Other Assetls
TOTAL

Contingent Liabihties
Bills for Collection

b i - e Ty
e
FIOARTR N A g

87 27

179

1,184 46

9,032 25

1,578 83

350 49

12,235.09

¥ Wﬂ %g 73 70 542 41

Ry @?&393 14 600 67

s fasese 3280 34

e T 910887 7,397 25

1 0 g g5 126 20
b £ :”:;s P e

G (420 82 288 22

7 Koniln, SV A 524,90 12,235.09

Y ﬁg,g‘ q24, ggee ‘99 22,515 71

iy 663 79 1,057 75

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2014

1
{

(Millions of US$)

- Year Ended i Year Ended
1 USD = ¥ 59.9150 Cx - 31.03.2014 31.03.2013
I  INCOME
Interest eamed 1,377.54 1,165 52
Other Income « 315,54 227.48
TOTAL 5 - 1,693.08 1,393.00
il EXPENDITURE )
Interest expended 8985 07 792.85
Operating expenses 364 73 293 14
Provisions & contingencies S s 1882y 12990
TOTAL . 1,458.07 1,215.89
Il PROFIT " - 23501 177 11
Profit brought forward - 208,91 198.23
AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 533.92 375.34
Iv  APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to
a) Statutory Reserves 58 75 44 28
b) Capital Reserves 136 140
c) Investment Reserve Account cm 007
d} Dwidend on equity 3072 26 22
e) Corporate Dividend Tax 522 4 46
96 06 76 43
Balance carned over to Balance Sheet _ . 43786 298.91
TOTAL 533.92 375.34
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Branch Network

Andhra Pradesh i

Ananthapur

Email 1D anap @ indusind com
Tel No - 08554-244955,
249373, 651286, 244955

Banjara Hills

Email iD hyme@indusind com
Tel No - 040-2355 3081 / 3085
/3086 / 3087, 2354 5274

Chittoor

Emait 1D chap @indusind com
Tel No - 0B572-221166,
230044, 222220

Choutuppal
Email ID ctap @indusind com
Tal No - 08694-273055

Gaddiannaram

Email ID gaap@indusind.com
Tel No - 040-24064411 /12,
24064413

Gajuwaka

Email ID gaju@indusind com
Tel No -0891-2514125/ 33,
2758223, 2512720, 2512724,
2514124

Gudivada

Email ID gdap @indusind corn
Tel No - 0867-249033,
249044, 249055

Guntur

Email ID guap @indusind com
Tel No - 0863-2331001/2,
2330960

Hyderabad

Email 10 hybe@indusnd com
Tel No - 040-66595100/200,
27907673

Hyderabad
Tel No - 9858453776,
9959454410, 5359454105

Kadapa

Email ID - kaap@mdusind com
Tel No - 08562-221915/ 186,
274552

Kadapa (Cuddapah)
Tel No - 09953454940,
9959454940, 9959454931

Karkhaana
Emall ID - kkap@indusind com
Tel No - 040-27742025/ 26

Kodad

Eman 1D - koap @ indusind com
Tel No - 08683-256044,
256043

Kompally

Email ID - kmap @indusind com
Tel No - 8418-233312/ 14,
233313

Kothagudem
Tel No - 9959446179,
9858446179, 99509445546

Kathavalasa

Email ID - ktap @ indusind com
Tel No - 088966-263153 / 154 /
157, 263158

Kukatpally
Email 1D - kpap @indusind com
Tel No - 040 -65080172

Kurnool

Email ID - kuap@indusind com
Tel No - 08518-223425,
248327

Madhapur

Email ID - maap@ indusind com
Tal No - 040-23116781,
23116782/3, 23116784

Medak

Email ID - meap @ indusind com
Tel No - (845-2220035,
2220033

Miryalaguda
Emal ID - miap@indusind com
Tel No - 08689-243050 /150

Miyapur

Email iD - mpap @indusind com
Tel No - 040-23041632,
23041697, 23041634,
23141693

Nakkapalli

Emal ID - naap @indusind com
Tel No - 08931-227856,
227845, 227860

Nellore
Emayl 1D - neap@mndusind com
Tel No - 0861-652 2208

Nizamabad
Tel No - 9959454701,
9959453962, 9959454732

Nizampet
Email ID - map &indusind com
Te! No - 040-30479447/08/09,
30479445

Ongole
Tel No - 9959446714,
9959446714, 9959446741

Rajamundry

Emal ID - raap@indusind com
Tel No - 0883-2420501,
2420431

Ramachandrapuram

Emall ID - rcap@indusind com
Tel No - 08857-244402/03,
244404

Sadashivpet

Email iD - saap @indusind com
Tel No - 08455-251663 /
252663

Sarpavaram

Email ID - srap @indusind com
Tel No - 0884-2347033/ 44,
2347055

Seethummadhara

Ematl ID - vits @indusind com
Tel No - 0891-2707326 / 29,
2707345

Somajlguda

Email ID - sgap @ indusind com
Tel No - 040-23312980/ B2,
23312981

Tarnaka

Emai 1D - trap@mndusind com
Tel No - 040- 27001544 / 1644
11744 } 1844

Tirupathi
Tel No - 9959447360,
9959447360, 9950447318

Towlichowki

Email 1D - toap @ indusind com
Tet No - 040-23566700 /
23561700, 23567900

Vicarabad

Email 1D - vcap @ indusind com
Tel No - 084165-252541 /61,
252581

Vijayawada

Emal ID - viap@indusind com
Tet No - 0B66-2492633/44,
2462626

Visakhapatnam

Email ID - cdwa @indusind com
Tel No - 0B91-2702202 f 198,
2512721

Warangal

Email 1D - waan@indusind com
Tel No - 0B70-2433555,
2428999

‘Assam ]

Barpeta Road
Email ID - baas @indusind com
Tel No - 03666-261009

Dibrugarh

Email 1D - dias@indusind com
Tel No -0373-2323756,
2323759, 2323757

Guwgzhati

Email ID - gugs @indusind com
Tel No .- 0361-2452864 /65,
2463503, 2452867

Jogighopa
Email ID - jgas@mdusind com
Tel No - 03664-210021

Jorhat

Email ID - jpas@tndusind com
Tel No - 0376-2301408,
2301424
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Sibsagar
Email ID - ssas@indusind com
Tel No - 03772-232232

Sitchar

Email ID - siag@indusind com
Tel No - 03842 -226466,
226477, 226759, 225328

Texpur

Emauil !D - teas @ ndusind com
Tel No - 03712-230922 /924 /
928, 223417

Tinsukia

Email ID - tias@tndusind com
Tel No - 0374-2340122,
2340121

Bihar ]

Andar
Email 1D - anbi@indusind com
Tel No - 06154-284059

Anishabad

Email ID - abbi&indusind com
Tet No - 0612-2250231/32/
34/ 35

Ashiana Nagar

Email 1D - asbi @indusind com
Tel No - 0612-2580015 /50 /
71, 2580080

Begusarai
Tel No - 07781005760,
Q7781045760, 07781005761

Bhagalpur
Emait ID - bhbi @ indusind com

Bhagwanpur

Email ID - bhih@indusind com
Tal No - 0622-4245398,
4245399, 4245400

Boring Road, Patna

Email ID - br;@ indusind com
Tel No - 0612-2570236/40/41,
2570235

Kaemnagar

Email ID - knth@:ndusind com
Te! No -06182-
277001277002

Kankarbagh
Email ID - kabi@indusind com
Tel No - 0612-2356651/2/3/4

Khazanchi Road
Email ID - krb1@ indusind com
Tel No - -0612-2300551/2/3

Muzatarpur
Email ID - mubr@indusind com
Tel No - 0621 -2245265/6/7

Patna

Email ID - parp @:indusind com
Tel No -0612-2500114/15/16,
2500119
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Patna City, Patna
Email 1D - pebi@indusind com

Rajendranagar, Patna
Email iD - mbi@indusind com
Tel No - 0612--2665602/5603

Rukanpara

Email ID - ujh @ indusind com
Tel No - 0612-2593338 /39
:Chandlgam

/40
Chandigarh

Email ID - chss1@mdusind com
Tal No -0172-5001872/3/ 4,
2541657

Chandigarh Sector 35

Emarl ID - chse@indusind com
Tel No - 0172-5002353 /60
Chattisgarh ]
Abhanpur

Email ID - abch @indusind com
Tel No -0771-2120182,

Ambikapur

Email ID - amch@indusind com
Tel No -07774-231802/3,
231803

Bansankara
Email ID - bach @ndusind com
Tel No -0851-8883216

Bhatgaon
Email ID - bhch @indusind com
Tal No - 0771-2274835

Biladi
Email ID - bich@indusind com
Tel No - 0851-8883215

Bilaspur
Email 1D - bich@mdusing com
Tel No - 0775-2429591

Bilaspur
Tel No - 09926499413,
09926499413, 09669655943

Dhanora
Email ID - dhch@indusind com
Tel No --8518883218

Durg-Bhilal Nagar/Bhitai
Email 1D - bdch@indusind com

Jagdalpur

Email ID - jgch @indusind com
Tel No - 07782- 22 2038 /
6091/ 3540, 22 3520

Kanker

Email ID - kach@ indusind com
Tel No - 07868-222260,
222297, 222155

Kendri
Email ID - kech @indusind com
Tel No - 0B518883217

Korba
Tel No - 9669694695,
09663694685, 09669634698
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Raigarh
Tel No - 9926499425,
09526499425, 09669694701

Raipur

Emait !0 - raja@ mdusind com
Tel No - 0771-403 3401 /02 /
03, 403 3404

Sigma
Email ID - sich@ndusind com
Tel No - 077 262-74310

Tilda Newra

Email 1D - tneh@indusind com
Tel No - 07721-234391

Dadra & Nagar Haveli ]
Dadra

Email ID - dadn @indusind com
Tel No - 0260-2667041 /42
43/ 44, 2667041

Silvassa

Email ID - sidn @indusind com
Tel No - 0260-2641712,
2993712, 2993713, 2641713

Delhi ]

Ashok Vihar

Email iD - deav@indusind com
Tel No -011-27231115 - 7,
27231113

Barakhamba

Email 1D - debk @ indusind com
Tel No -011-23738040 / 8408
{ 8407, 23738041

Chandani Chowk
Email ID - dech @ ndusind com
Tel No - 011-23255006

Defence Colony
Emad |0 - dedc@mndusind com
Tel No -011-24337704

Dwarka

Email ID - dedw@indusind com
Tel No -011-28088260761/
62/63/64

Greater Kailash I

Email 1D - denp @ indusind com
Tel No -011-47168700,
47168713

Gujranwala Town, New Delh)
Email 1D - degt@ indusind com
Tel No - 011-47542809

Gulmohar House
Email ID - degh@:ndusind com
Tel No - 011-43394800

Indraprastha Extension
Email ID - dep @ indusind com
Tel No - -43107691/ 92/ 93
/98, 43107699

Janakpuri

Emanl ID - dejp @indusind com
Tel No - 01141000141 - 43,
41000145

Jasala
Eman 1B - deja@indusind com
Tel No - 011-29949860

Kailash Colony

Email 1D - deke @ indusind com
Tel No - 011-43394500 / 501 /
510/5M

Karol Bagh
Emat! 1D - dekb@ indusind com
Tel No - 011-433584600

Lajpat Nagar
Email D - dela@ndusind com
Tel No -011-43384100

Naraina Vihar
Email 1D - dena@indusind com
Tet No - 011-25805333

Naya Bazar

Email iD - denb @ indusind com
Te! No - 011-23987633/44/11,
23987622

Nehru Place
Eman ID - danh@indusind com
Tel Na - 011-26280041

Okhla

Emanl D - deck @indusind com
Tel No - 011-26385031,
26385032

Pashchim Vihar
Emaii ID - depa@:ndusind com
Tel No - 011-42143705

Pitampura
Emanl 1D - depi@indusind com
Tel No -011-42371310

Preet Vihar

Email ID - depv@indusind com
Tel No - 011-22051623 /32/64 /
28, 22051644

Punjabi Bagh

Emal 1D - depb@ indusind cotm
Tel No -0t1-
45511272/73774/76/78,
25220046

Rajori Garden
Email ID - derg @ indusind com
Tel No -011-43832200

Rohini
Emall ID - derh@indusind com
Tel No -011-27047095

Vasant Kunj
Email 1D~ devk @ indusind com
Tal No -011-43884400

West Patel Nagar
Email ID - dewp@indusind com
Tal No -011-2588 3221

Goa ]
Madgaon

Email ID - goma@indusind com
Tel No - 0832-2712238 - 42,
2712295

Panjim

Email ID - gopa@indusind com
Tal No - 0832-242 9044 / 46 /
47,242 7799

Ponda
Tel No - 7755901347,
7755901347, 7755950317

Porvorim

Email ID - pomh@ indusind com
Tel No - 0832-2410030 /071
/216 /263, 2410133

Sanvordem

Email iD - gosa @indusind com
Tel No - 0832-2654351 /52 /
53 b4, 265455

Eiularat ]

Ahmedabad

Email ID ahar@indusind com
Tel no 079- 66633142-143 /
66633147-153

Amalsad

Emaul ID - amgu@ndusind com
Tel No - 02634-273006 /07 /
11, 273012

Anand

Email 1D - angu@indusind com
Tel No - 02692-267351/ 52/
53/54, 266630, 266631

Ankleshwar

Email 1D - akgu@mclusind com
Tel No - 02646-226405-08,
226409

Bardoil
Email 1D - bard @ indusind com
Tel No - 02622-22 9375 / 329,
22 93n

Baroda

Emall ID - baap@indusind com
Tel No - 0265-2332409/ 16/
18 /232 6113, 2332413

Bhavnagar

Emall ID - bhgu@indusind com
Tel No - 0278-2512055/2011,
2512088

Bhu)j

Email ID - bugu@ indusind com
Tel No - (2832-230127,
230128

Bedakdev
Email {D - bdgu@indusind com
Tel No - 079-26857435/36/37

Changodar
Email {D - chgu@indusind com
Tel No - 02717-294892

Dandia Bazaar
Email 1D - dbgu@indusind com
Tel No - 0265-2410750

Dharma]

Email ID - dhar@indusind com
Tel No - 02697-245096 /97,
245102, 245098



Gandhidham

Emart ID - gagu@:ndusind com
Tel No - 02B36-233541 /
324789, 233517

Gandhinagar

Email ID - ghgu @indusind com
Tel No -079-23240507 /84 /
85786, 23240596

Gotrl Road

Email ID - grgu@mindusind com
Tel No - 0265-
2390121/321/421/422/171/381

Hazira

Emarl ID - hzgu @ mndusind com
Tel No - 0261-2861223,
2861224, 2861222

Jamnagar

Emat! D - jagu@ndusind com
Tel No - 0288-2664322 / 5760,
2664321

Kamrej
Emanl 1D - kagu @mndusind com
Tel No - 02621-250031/32/33

Karelibaug
Email (D - kbgu@ndusind com
Tel No - 0265-2467888

Mani Nagar, Abmedabad
Ematl ID - mngu@indusind com
Tel No -~ 079-25440183-85,
25440182

Manjalpur

Email 10 - mpgu@wmdusind com
Tel No - 0265-3074979,
3075929

Mehsana

Email ID - magu@indusind com
Tel No - 02762-241492 /
93,242080

Morbl

Email ID - morb @indusind com
Tel No -02822-251 760 /251
808, 231461

Nadiad

Email ID - nagu@ indusind com
Tel No - D268-2520081/82,
2520146/47

Naranpar Pasayali
Email iD - npgu @indusind com

Navsari

Emanl 1D - nvgu @ indusind com
Te! No - 02637-322629,
322630, 244700, 244800,
02637 244400

Nizampura
Email 1D - mgu@indusind com
Tel No - 0265-2780155

Prahladnagar, Ahmedabad
Email ID - pngu@indusind com
Tel No - 079-2693 7872 /93

Rajkot

Email 1D - rara@indusind com
Tel No - 0281-2460642,
2461894, 2461893, 2461892

Rajkot
Tel No - 08238062344,
08238062277, 08238062344

Rajpipla

Email ID - ragu@indusind com
Tel No - 02640-223 077 /
277,220 377

Ring Road, Rajkot
Email 1D - rrgu @ indusind com
Tel No -0281- 2571850/60/70,

Samroli

Email ID - sagu@indusind com
Tel No - 02634-
234070/233138/232111,235060

Subhanpura

Email 10 - spgu@indusind com
Tel No -0265-2280171-72,
2280370-372, 2280316-17

Surat

Email 1D - surr@indusind com
Tel No -0261-2366823/24/
27 /130, 2346469

Udwada
Email 1D - udgu@indusind com
Tel No -0260-2342061/71/81

Valsad

Email D - vaor @ indusind com
Tel No - 02632 254555,
254972

Vapi

Email 1D - vach@&indusind com
Tel No -0260-2425175/
2428129/ 2428624, 2428621

Varachha
Email ID - vagu@indusind com
Tel No - 0261-2901364

Vasana
Email ID - vigu @mdusind com
Tel No - 0265-2251595

Warasia

Emayl ID - baph @ ndusind com
Ta! No -0265-2512595,
2512597, 2512596

Haryana ]

Assandh
Email ID - asha @ ndusind com
Tel No - 01748-277222/23/24

Badshahpur
Email ID - bdha @ indusind com
Tel No -0124-23561121

Barwala
Ematl {D - baha@ idusind com
Tel No - 01733-256381

Chhachhrauti
Email ID - chha & mndusind com
Tel No - 1735-276101276102

Dhakola

Eman ID - dhha@indusind com
Tel No - 171-2822177 7277/
377

Faridabad
Email ID - hafa@indusind com
Tel No - 0129-4327000

Gurgaoh - Golf Course
Email ID - gcha @indusimd com
Tel No - 0124-2572567

Gurgaon

Email ID - guud @indusind com
Tel No -0124-2388883 - 5,
2389128

Gurgaon - Sector 10A
Emall 1D - stha@ndusind com
Tel No -0124-4307153

Gurgaon - Sector 14
Ematl ID - guha@indusind com
Tl No - 0124-4947600

Gurgaon - Sector 31

Email iD - scha@indusind com
Tel No -01244113993/828/926/
8520, 4113906

Gurgaon - Sector 57
Email ID - sgha @indusind com
Tel No - 0124-4309262

Hissar

Email ID - huha @1ndusing com
Tel No - 01662 -226340/2,
226341

Israna

Email ID - isha@indusind com
Tel No -0180-2579102/ 103/
104

Jhajiar

Emayl ID - jhha@indusind com
Tel No - 01251-253391,
253392

Katarherl
Email ID - kiha @tndusind com
Tel No -0171-2671190

Karnal

Email ID - kaha @ indusind com
Tel No - 0184-226 8955 /56
/57 /58, 2268956

Kundil
Email ID - kuha @ ndusind com
Tel. Mo - 0130-2370050

Manesar
Emait ID - maha @indusind com
Tel No - 0124 -3269956

Nighdu

Email ID - mha@indusind com
Tel No - 01745-267003/
267004 / 267005

QJ Complex, Sec-15,
Gurgaon

Email {D - jcha @indusind com
Tel No - 01244224867

Indusind Bank |

Panchgaon
Email ID - pcha @indusind com
Tel No - 0124-2164757

Panchkula

Email ID - panc@indusind com
Te! No - 0172-5024380 /
4389,502 4386

Panchkula Sec ¢
Email ID - paha@indusind com
Tel No - 0172-5033751-60

Pehowa

Ematl D) - peha@indusind com
Tel No - 01741-320802,
220252, 220190, 220053

Pipli Majra
Emaii iD - pmha@indusind com
Tel No - 01744-230212

Rewari
Email ID - reha @indusind com
Tel No - 1274-221115

Rohtak

Email ID - roha @ indusind com
Tal No - 01262-6845715/
645669 / 327890, 255944

Sadar Bazar
Email ID - sbha @indusind com
Tel No - 0124-4027167

Sirsa
Tel No - $§729996287,
9725996288, 57259956293

Sohna Road, Gurgaon
Email ID - stha@indusind com
Tel No - 0124-4548100

Sonipat

Tel No - 9991407000,
8572802353 - 9891407000,
9729896296

Sushant Lok
Email ID - stha@indusind com
Tel No - 0124-2578477

Udyog Vihar

Emaul ID - uvha @indusind com
Tel No - 0124-
4114107/069/033/032

Himachal Pradesh ]

Baddi
Email ID bahp@ndusind com
Tel no 01795-244813

Shimia

Email ID shhp@indusind com
Tel ne 0177-2654187,
2652217, 2651251

Jammu & Kashmir ]

Jammu
Emall 10 jak@wndusind.cam
Tef no 0191-2470248

Srinagar

Email ID snk@ indusind com
Tel no 0184-2480755, 2480772,
2455490
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Barhi

Email ID - bajh@indusind com
Tel No - 06543-267352

Bokaro

Email iD - bojh@ndusind com
Te! No -06542-233418 /
20,231383 /233419

Chalbasa
Email ID - chih@ndusind com
Tel No - 08582 255352/255353

Dhanbad

Ematl ID - dhbm @ indusind com
Tel No - 0326-2305700,
23088848, 2309801, 2309802

Giridih
Tal No - 7781005614,
7781005616

Hazaribagh

Emall ID - hajh@indusind com
Tel No - 06546~
224920/921/922/923

Jamshedpur

Email 1D - Jajh @indusind com
Tel No - 0857-3294929,
2756115/116, 2425761

Khargawan

Email ID - khth@indusind com
Tal No - 08583-254804,
254805

Koderma
Email ID - kojh @ indusind com
Tal No - 06534-252915/16117

Lalpur Chowk, Ranchi
£mat ID - lcth @indusind com
Tel No - 0651-2560861,
2560892, 2560864, 2560810

Pakur
Email {D - pagh@indusind com
Tel No -06435-221293

Ranchi

Email 1D - ramr@indusind com
Tel No - 0651-2330137,
2330147, 2330134, 2331377

Kamnataka B

Bagalkot
Tel No - 7259033887,
7258033887, 7259033780

Bangalore

Emai ID - bgmg @mdusind com
Tel No - 080-30287000 —
7014, 2559 2309

Basavanagudi

Email ID - bgin@mndusind com
Tel No - 08030082620/21/22/2
4/25/15/17/19, 26610258

Bellary
Tel No - 7259030884,
7259030884,7255038764
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Bidadi
Email ID - bika @indusind com
Tel No - 080-27282359

Bijapur
Tel No - 7259033857,
07259033846

Bommassandra

Email ID - brmka @indusind com
Tel No - 080-278356556,
27836557

Chikmagaiur

Emauil ID - chka @ indusind com
Tel No - 08262~
229140/41/42/43

Davangere
Tel No - 7259033843, 072590
33868, 072590 33869

Devanahalii

Emall ID - deka@indusind com
Tel No - 080-
30275386/89/90/91/92/93

Gulbarga
Tel No - 7259033830,
07255033889

HBR Lay Out, Bangalore
Email ID - hbka@indusind com
Tel Ne - 080-30251900-908,
30251909

Hubli

Ematl (D - huka@inctusind com
Tel No - 0836-2358263/64/65,
4254660

Jakkasandra
Email ID - jaka @indusind com
Tel No - 080-25539970-75

Jayanagar 5th Block
Email (D - yka @ indusind com
Tal No - 080-30254492

JP Nagar, Bangalore

Emalil ID - jpka@indusind com
Tel No - 080-26653440/41,
26653443

Malleshwaram

Emayl ID - mka @ ndusind com
Tel No - 080-30080051-56,
30080060

Mangalore

Emaii |D - maka @indusind com
Tel No - 0824-2425101-104,
2448708

Marathalii

Email ID - mrka @indusind com
Tel No - 080-25400190/181,
65358822, 2540192

Mysore

Email ID - myka @:ndusind com
Tel No - 0821-4252061/62/
4262899, 4252063

Neelamangala

Emall ID} - neka @ indusind com
Tel No - 080-277220086,
27722018

Sadashivnagar

Emanl ID - saka@indusind com
Tel No - 0B0-23567400,
23466557, 23567675

Sahakaranagar, Bangalore
Email ID - snka@ndusind com

Shimoga

Email 1D - shka@indusind com
Tel No - 08182227722,
220044

Thlppasandra

Email ID - thka@indusind com
Tel No - 080 -32022266
/32022233 / 32022223,
25207084

Udyavara
Emall ID - udka @ indusind com

:Iferala ]

Adoor

Email 1D - adke @ndusind com
Tel No - 0474-
323650/51/52/53/54/86/57

Alappuzha

Emaul I} - alke @ indusind com
Tel No - 0477-2230888 /0997
/8442, 2230888

Aluva
Email I - auke @indusind com
Tel No - 0484-6065200-206

Changanacherry
Email ID - chke@ndusind com
Tel No - 0481-2410766

Kakkanad

Email ID - koka@ ndusind com
Tel No - 0484-2413252 /3211 /
3268, 2413251

Kanhangad

Tel No - 9946109100,
08136836298, 03048105162 -
08136836427

Kannur

Email ID - kake @ indusind com
Tel No - 0497-2705944 / 45,
3259660, 2705525

Kasargod

Emarl ID - kgke @ indusing com
Tel No - 04994-
230906/230907/230000

Kattappana

Email ID - ktke @indusind com
Tel Mo - 04868-252470/71/72,
252473

Kazhakuttom

Email ID - katc @mndusind com
Tel No - 0471-2527 550/1/2,
2527553

Kesavadasapuram

Emasl 1D - keke @indusind com
Tel No - 0471-2446099/ 7099/
8089

Kochi

Emall (D - kochi @indusind com
Tel No - 0484-2360888

(4 ines), 442 2288, 236 0720 f
0775, 2382222

Kodungaltur
Emall ID - kdke @ indusind com
Tel No - 0480-2809210/20/40

Koliam

Emal ID - klke @indusind com
Tel No - 0474-2766985/B6 /
87, 2763339

Kottayam

Ematl ID - koke @ indusind cam
Tel No - 0481-2303615,
2560728, 2351737, 2303614

Kozhikode
Emait ID - kzke @indusind com
Tel No - 0485-4023000

Kozhikode

Tel No - 09447589200, -
8136836285, 9946768676 -
81368366404

Malappuram

Ematl ID - make @indusind com
Tel No - 0483-2735810,
2735811, 2735885

Palakkad

Emall 1D - pala@indusind com
Ta! No - 0491-2573800/01/
02, 2571900, 2573902

Perinthalmanna
Email D - peke @ ndusind com
Tel No - 04833-224600/1/2

Tellicherry (Thalassery)
Tel No - 9946924100,
9946807200

Thiruvalla

Email ID - hke @ mndusind com
Tel No - 0468-2600243,
3052100 - 105, 2600 225

Thiruvananthapuram

Email D - trmg @indusind com
Tel No -0471-4100800/
4100888, 4100839

Thrissur

Ematl ID - tns @ indusind com
Tel No - 0487-2323178/378,
2322762, 2320210

Tripunithara
Email ID - thke @indusind com
Tel No - 0484-2780824/25

Madhya Pradesh ]

Ashta
Emall 1D - asmp @indusind com
Tel No - 07560-246924-25-26

Badjihiri
Emall ID - bdmp @ ndusind com




Barwani

Email ID - bamp @indusind com
Tal No - 07290-222 498, 222
589

Bheslay
Emal 1D.- bhmp @:indusind com
Tel No - 07324-268321

Bhopai

Email 1D - bBhnm @indusind com
Tel No - 0755-4228090 /91/
92, 4228093

Bina
Email 1D - bimp @indusind com
Tel No - 07580-224016/1718B

Chhindwara

Emall ID - chmp@hdusind com
Tel No - 07162-245204,
247817, 247871

Deonagar
Emall 1D - demp@indusind com
Tel No --7509995026

Dholankhapa
Eman 1D - dhmp@ ndusind com

Diwangan]
Email ID - dimp @indusind com
Tel No - -7509333350

Gobhad
Email ID - gomp @indusind com
Tel No - 07539-230001

Gwallor

Email ID - gwmp @indusind com
Tel No - Q751-2235564 / 65,
2235567

Harniya Khedi
Email ID - hkmp @indusind com

Hoshangabad
Email ID - homp@indusind com
Tel No - 07574-250308

{ndore

Email ID - inab@ndusind com
Tel No - 0731-2542696 (7 /8,
2539092

Jabalpur

Email iD - jamp@indusind com
Tel No - (761-4006180,
4010100, 2450003

Kalod Kartal
Email ID - kkmp@indusind com
Tel No - -7509959025

Khurerl
Email ID - khmp@indusind com
Tel No --7509333364

Kolukhedi
Emad ID - komp @ indusind com
Tel No - -7509333365

Kurana
Email ID - kump@indusind com
Tel No - -7508333345

Maihar
Email 10 - rump @ indusind com
Tel No - 07674-233100

Mandla
Email ID - mamp@indusind com
Tel No - 07642-252 496-97

Nihalpur Mundi
Email 1D - nmmp @indusind com
Tel No --7509333382

Orchha
Email ID - ormp @indusind com
Tel No - 07680-252032/33/34

Pandhurna
Email iD - pamp@indusind com
Tel No - 07164-220070

Piparlya
Email ID - prmp @indusind com
Tel No -0756-222335/ 222337

Rairu
Email iD - ramp @ ndusind com
Tel No --7509333362

Ratiam

Tel No - 078569901414,
7869901419

Rewa

Tel No - (78689014598,
9179549065

Sapna Sangeeta Road, Iindore
Email ID - inmp @ indusind com
Tel No - 0731-2760419 -23,
2760424

Satna
Tel No - 07869901445,
07869901447

Shujalpur
Email ID - shmp@indusind com
Tel No - 07360 -242031/32

Singrauli
Te) No - 7868901476,
7869901476, 7869901477

Sirol
Emarl 1D - simp @ indusind com
Tel No --8518883217

Sukha
Ematl 1D - sump @ndusind com
Tel No --7509333360

Talawali Chanda
Emarl 10 - ternp@indusind com
Tel No --7509333325

Umariya
Email ID - ummp@indusind com
Tal No - 07324-286302

:Maharashlra __}
Akola

Emall ID - akmh@thdusind com
Amravatl

Email ID - ammh@indusind com

Andheri

Emad 1D - boan@mdusind com
Tel No - 022-67412500/02/03,
28237574

Arwade
Eman ID - armh @ indusind com
Tal No - 02346-255570

Aundh, Pune
Email ID - anmh @indusind com
Tel No - 020-
25897770/25893614/25893664

Aurangabad

Email ID - aumh @indusind com
Tel No - 0240-2353760/7 56/
58 /59, 2353757

Bandra

Email ID - basv@indusind com
Tel No - 022-26457800 /8320,
26458323

Bandra Kurla Complex

Email |D - bobk@indusind com
Tel No - 022-26754142/ 43,
26754144

Bandra Mehboob Studio
Emaul 1D - bobitm @indusind com
Tel No - 022-26405463,
26405684, 26405691,
26405475

Bhayendar
Email ID - bobh@indusind com

Bhokara
Email iD - bomh @ indusingd com
Tet No - 0712-2612912

Borivall

Email ID - bobo @indusind com
Tel No - 022-30008266,
30008274

Byramjl Town
Email ID - btmh@ indusind com
Tel No - 0712 - 2581100

C A Road, Nagpur
Email ID - nemh @indusind com
Tel No -0712-2762305- 8

Chandrapur
Emauil ID - chmh @indusind com
Tel No -07172-272321-25

Chembur
Email ID - boch@indusind com
Tel No - 022-25260882/83/84

Crawford Market

Emait (D - bocm @indusind com
Tel No - 022-22632126/7/8,
22632125, 22632124

Dadar
Email iD - boda @indusind com
Tel No - 022-24099160

Daroda
Email ID - damh@indusind com
Tel No - -7153203344

Indusind Bank |

Dhantoli
Eman 1D - dnmh@indusind com
Tel No - 0712-2458911/1213

Dombivali (East)
Emall ID - bodo @indusind com
Tel No - 0251-2860512/13

Fort

Email ID - boms @indusind com
Tel No - 022-66366580 - 83,
66366590 / 87

Ghatkopar

Email D - bogh@indusind com
Tel No - 022-21020284/88,
21020286

Ghodbunder Road, Thane
Email ID - bogt@indusind com
Tel No - 022-25977102

Gijawane
Emall ID - gimh@&ndusind com
Tel No - 02327-222755

Hinjewadi
Emai 1D - mh@indusind com
Tel Mo - 020-22933788-33

Hiranandani Garden, Powai
Email ID - bohg @indusind com
Tel No - 022- -25704824/34

Jalgaon
Tol No - 7755801094,
7755901085

Jaripatka

Email 1D - najp @ indusind com
Tel No -0712-2647955/
2641944

Juhu
Emal 1D - poju @ mndusind com
Tel No -022 -26125172

Kalbadevl

Email ID - bokl @indusind com
Tel No - 022 -22417532,
22417536

Kalyan

Email ID - kamh@indusind com
Tel No -0251-2310262 /
2310328 / 2310141

Kalyani Nagar, Pune
Emall |D - knmh@indusind com
Tel No - 020-26650200

Kandivall

Emall ID - boka @indusind com
Tel No -022-28022079 /80,
28022083

Kanjurmarg
Email ID - bokn @ndusind com
Tel No - 022-67584165

Karmoli
Email 1D - kmh @ indusind com
Tel No - -7798903888
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Khar (W}, Mumbal

Email ID - bokh @ indusind com
Tel No -022-61271975/77/
79,6127 1985

Kharghar (Navl Mumbai)
Emait 1D - bokg @ indusind com
Tet No - 022-66739933

Kingsway-Sardar
Ematl (D - ksmh@indusind com
Tel No - 0712-2522508/08/07

Kolhapur

Email ID - komh@mndusind com
Tel No - 0231-6512007/9,
2530707

Kondhwa Khurd

Email ID - puko @indusind com
Tel No - 020-26838941-45,
26832355

Kothrud
Email ID - ktmh @ indusind comn
Tel No - 020-41494602

Lokhandwala

Emanl 1D - bolo@indusind com
Tel No - 022-4033 9700 &
2673 1574, 2673 1575

Lower Parel
Email ID - bolp@indusind com
Tel No - 022-24950353

Mahim

Email ID - bavs @ ndusind com
Tel No - 022-24455301 /
24455563, 24455091

Malad

Emat! ID - boma@indusind com
Tel No - 022-28880408,
28880409

Mulund

Email ID - bomu@indusind com
Tel No - 022-2582 7080 / 6808
/6833, 2552 6837

Nagpur

Email ID - nass @indusind com
Tel No - 0712-6641800-18,
2547457

Nagpur
Tel No - 7755826902,
07755926902, 07755926903

Nanded
Tel No - 7755901170,
7755901172, 7755901175

Nariman Point

Email 1D - bonp1 @indusind
com

Tel No -022-22022404 /407 /
415/ 419, 22022387

Nashik
Email ID - namh @indusind com
TFel No - D253-6695401/02/03
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Nerul

Emall 1D - bone @ indusind com
Tel No -022-22217081 /091,
27707031 {041

Opera House

Emall 1D - booh @ indusind com
Tel No - 022-022-4345 7500,
23859913

Panvel

Email ID - pamr@indusind com
Tet No - 022-2748 3252,
27483026

Pedder Road, Mumbai

Ema 1D - bopa @ indusind com
Tel No - 022-23542073/74/75,
23542076

Pimpri Chinchwad, Pune
Email ID - pcmh@indusind com
Tel No - 020-274 40622 /
23/24/25/26, 27440627

Prabhadevi

Email iD - bopr @indusind com
Tel No - 022-24315857,
24304498

Pune

Emant 1D - pugt @indusind com
Tel No - Q20-
0461601/30461602/30461603,
28343241

Sangll
Emall ID - samh@ indusind.com
Tel No - 0233-2327522

Satara
Email ID - stmh@mdusind com

Shikrapur
Eman ID - shmh @wmndusind com
Tel No -02137-286136

Solapur
Emall ID - somh @indusind com

Thakur Complex - Kandivall-E
Emaii 1D - botc @ indusind com
Tel No - 022-28705526 /1138
14993

Thane

Email ID - both @ ndusind com
Tel No - 022-25306851/52,
25390376

Vasal M

Email ID - bovs@indusind com
Tel No - 0250-
2330009/5/21/123/124,
2330100

vashi

Email ID - bova@indusind com
Tel No - 022-27830026 /27 /
1028, 27830034

Vashi Sector 17

Emai 1D - bovh @indusind com
Tel No - 022-
27668458/62/63/64

Vile Parie (East)
Email ID - bovp @ indusind com
Tel No - 022-26126177

Viman Nagar
Email ID - vamh @indusind com
Tel No - 020-41494545

Wardha Road

Email 1D - wrmh @indusind com
Te! No - 0712-2235061-64,
2295065

Yerla
Emal [D - yemb@indusind com
Tel No - 0712-2053039

mpur - ]

Imphal
Email ID - imma@ndusind com
Eeghalaya

Tel No - 0385-2448042
Shillong

Email ID shme@indusind com
Tel no 0364-2501479/2501405
Mizoram

i _— _.:]
Ajzaw!

Email ID airm @ indusind com
Tel no 0388-230 5515/ 18, 230

5355
]

Eggaland

Dimapur
Email ID dina @:ndusind com
Tel no 03862-234021

Odisha |

Angul

Emall ID - anor@indusmd com
Tel No - 06764-230084/85,
230074

Balasore

Email ID - baor@indusind com
Tel No - 06782-240274 /6,
268293, 240265

Barbil

Email 1D - bror@indusind com
Tal No - Q06767-276821,
277473

Bhubaneswar

Emaul ID - bhkn@indusind com
Tel No - 0674-2536124/ 6125,
2535191

Chandikhole

Email ID - caor@indusind com
Tel No - 06725-
226291/226293, 226292

Chandrashekharpur

Email iD - bhor @ indusind com
Tel No - 0674~
2743962/2743963

Cuttack

Email 1D - cuor@indusind com
Tol No - 0671-232 1341/42/
43, 2321344

Dhamra

Email ID - dhor@indusind com
Tel No -06786-
9238157107/6238157105

Guall

Email ID - guor @indusind com
Tel No - 06767-244190/
244191

Jajpur
Email iD - jaor@indusind com
Tel No -06726-223056/57/58

Jeypur
Tel No - 07752000112,
07752000179

Jharsuguda

Email ID - ther@indusind comn
Tel No - 06645-273415/25
f35

Joda

Email 1D - joor@ mdusingd com
Te! No - 06767-272816/
272841 / 273780,272558

Keon]har
Email 1D - keor@indusind com
Tel No - 06766-255832 / 858

Nimapada

Email ID - mor@indusind com
Tel No - 068758-252851/3,
262852

Panposh
Email ID - paor@indusind com
Tel No - 0861-2401583/84/85,
2401550

Patrapara

Email |D - ppor@indusind com
Tal No - 0674-2384913,
2384914, 2384915

Pipili

Email ID - pror@indusind com
Tel No - 06758-240095/75,
240055

Rourkela

Tel No - 7752000198 &
8337089817, 7752000198,
7752000315

Sambalpur
Email ID - saor@indusind com
Tel No - 0663-2541366

Sonapur
Email (D - soor@indusind com
Tel No - 06654-220134/35

Sundergarh

Email !D - suor@indusind com
Tel No - 0662-2273434,
2273430



e

Talcher

Email ID - tacr @indusind com
Tal No - 06760-240065,
240008

Pondicherry R

Pondicherry

Emanil D - poin@mdusind com
Tel No - 0413-4210600,
4210801, 4210602

Punjab !

Abohar
Tel No - 08288039357,
08288039467

Arnloh
Email ID - alpu@indusind com
Tel No - 01765-520288-89-90,

Amritsar

Email ID - ampu@indusind com
Tel No - 0183-5066708 / 808,
2221055

Apra

Email ID - ampu@mdusind com
Tel No - 01826-
250533/251533, 252533

Bakarpur

Email ID - bkpu @indusind com
Tel No -0160-2251773,
2251774

Banga

Email ID - phjs@indusind com
Tel No - 01823-269739/
264513 /501011 /501012,
263739

Bhatinda

Email ID - bapu @indusind com
Tel No - 0164-2213466- 68 /
222 4284, 5004187

Dacn

Email ID - dapu@indusind com
Tel No - 0172-3017480,
3017481, 3017475

G T Road, Amritsar
Emal ID - agpu@indusind com
Te! No - 0183-5020220

Gobindgarh

Email ID - gopu@indusind com
Tel No -01765-
251084/250094/252091

Hoshlarpur
Email ID - hopu@:ndusind com
Tel No - 01882-502700

Jaltandhar

Emait 1D - jall@ndusind com
Tel No - 0181-5010348, 347,
345, 341, 5003480, 5003580,
5010345

Khamanon

Email ID - khpu@indusind com
Tel No - 01628-503440/ 41
/42 1 43 /44

Khanna

Emat ID - khgt@indusind com
Tel No - 01628-503638,
503537

Lajpat Magar, Jalandhar
Email ID - jlpu@indusind com
Tel No - 0181-5051585, 588,
589

Landran

Email 1D - lapu@indusind com
Tel No - 0160-2250200,
2250300, 2250100

Ludhiana

Email ID - lufe @ indusind com
Tel No - 0161-504 3800 ~ 11,
2771810

Manauli
Email ID - mnpu@indusind com
Tel No - 0160-2251355 / 56

Mansa

Email ID - mapu@ indusind com
Tel No - 01852 -500026 - 28,
500029

Miller Ganj, Ludhiana

Email ID - mgpu@indusind com
Tel No - 0161-
250/5048251/5048252/5048255

Mohali

Email ID - moha @ indusind com
Te!l No - 172-502 ¢821-27, 505
3651

Mohali- Phase 11

Email ID - mopu @ indusind com
Tel No - 0172-5058208
5058208

Mullanpur

Emal ID - mupu@indusind com
Tel No - 0180-5090569 / 70
71/72173

Nawanshahr

Email D - napu@indusind com
Tel No - 01823-503150/51/
52 /53

Patlala
Email 1D - ptpu@mdusind com
Tel No - 0175-5009600

Phagwara

Email ID - phgt@indusind com
Tel No - 01824-503060 to
503068, 223421

Rahon

Email 1D - rapu@indusind com
Tel No - 01823-240275,
501799

Sangrur

Ema! ID - sapu@indusind com
Tel No - 01672-500201
Shahkot

Ematl iD - shpu@indusind com
Tel Mo - 01821-500 300 /02 /
03, 509 301

Sunder Nagar, Ludhiana
Emait ID - lusn@ndusind com
Tel No - 0161-3028653,
3028654

Threekay

Email 1D - thpu@indusind com
Tal No - 0161-5001590 /93 /
5001595-99, 5021313

Urban Estate Focal Point
Email ID - lujs@indusind com
Tel No - 0161-4613373

E}asthan, .

Afmer

Email ID - ara @ indusind com
Tel No - 014526319095,
2428239, 2428240, 2428251

Alwar City
Emai ID - alra@indusind com
Tel No - 0144-2701368

Banswara

Email ID - bsra @ indusind com
Tel No - 02962-2411686,
240767

Barmer

Emait iD - bara @ indusind com
Tel No -02982-221005,
221006

Bhilwara

Email |D - bhra@indusind com
Tel No - 01482-233200 - 201,
233202

Bhiwadi

Emarl ID - bwra@indusind com
Tal No - 01493-204087,
230083

Bljoliya

Email ID - bjra@mndusind com
Tal No. - 61483-236236/
236400 / 236240, 236237

Bikaner

Emall ID - bira@indusind com
Tel No -0151-2201790/
2201793, 2201792

Boranada

Email 1D - bara@indusind com
Tel No ‘- 02931-281373,
281310

Chittaurgarh

Email ID - chra@indusind com
Tel No - 01472- 243335-36,
243330

Deoli

Email ID - dera@indusind com
Tel No - 01434-232433/ 35,
232434

Gordhanvilas

Email ID - gvra@indusind com
Tel No - 0294-2641802-03,
2641804

Indusind Bank |

Gotan

Email ID - gora @indusind com
Tel No - 01591-230059/ 60/
61, 230055

Gowarl

Eman! ID - gwra@indusind com
Tel No - 002966-255332-33,
255334

Hanumangarh
Tel No - 8003597665,
8003587663

Jaipur

Email ID - jach@indusind com
Tel No - 0141-2387301-05,
2387084

Jhunjhunu

Email [D - jhra @ indusind com
Tel No - 01592-236319,
236728, 235018

Jodhpur

Emal iD - josr@indusind com
Tel No - 0291-264 7739, 262
27865

Johr! Bazar

Emaul 1D - jajb @indusind com
Tal No - 0141-2560074,
2560076, 2564075, 2560075

Kota

Email t0 - kora@indusind com
Tel No - 0744-2366677 - 80,
2366681

Laxmangarh {Lachhmangarh)
Eman ID - lara@indusind com
Tel No - 01573-222 061, 222
062

Mahapura

Emat ID - mara@indusind com
Tel No - 0141-2258090/84,
2258086

Malvea Magar, Jaipur
Emat ID - jarmn @ indusind com

Nagaur

Email ID - nara@indusind com
Tel No - 01582-247184,
247185, 247168

Nasirabad

Email ID - nsra@indusind com
Tel No - 01491 -220452,
220456, 220454

Neemrana
Email \D - jane@mdusind com
Tel No - 01494-248037 /8

Paota- Jodhpur
Emadl ID - para@indusind com
Tel No - 0291-2545601-2

Raja Park, Jalpur

Emaul ID - jarp @ indusind com
Tel No - 0141-2600300,
2600477, 2600713
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Rajasmand

Email (D - nra@mdusind.cotn
Tel No - 02952-224003/4,
224005

Raniwara

Ema ID - mra@wndusind com
Tel No -02990-232001 /011
o2

Shahpura

Email iD - shra@indusind com
Tel No - 01422-225388/88,
517231,225390

Sikar
Tel No - 9928883883,
8003592855

Sumerpur

Email ID - sura@indusind com
Tel No - 02933-258127 / 128/
3277328/ 744, 258743

Sursagar

Email ID - sora@indusind com
Tel No -0291-2780784,
2780785,2781785

Udaipur

Email ID*~ udra@indusind com
Tel No - 0294-2417294/295
24279857/2427998, 2415240

Vaishall Nagar

Email ID - Javn @ indusind com
Tel No - 0141-2353753/54/57,
2353755

Vallabh Nagar

Emal 1D - viwra @ indusind com
Tel No - 02957-240007,
240017

Sikkim

Gangtok

Email iD gasi@indusind com
Tel no 03592-231585 / 232571,
271157

Jorethang

Email 1D jost@indusind com
Tel no 03595-257701, 257702,
257710

Tamil Nadu ]
Adyar

Email ID - maad @ indusind com
Tel No - 044-42807575 - 79,
42607577

Aminjikaral, Chennai

Emall ID - amtn@ndusind com
Tel No - 044-
23630166/092/0068, 23630089

Annanagar

Emai ID - maan@:ndusind com
Tel No - 044-48060300 /
01/02/03/04, 49060312

Aranthangil

Emad D - ann@indusind com
Tel No -04371-271 555/271
302
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Ashok Nagar

Email ID - astn@mdusind com
Tel No - 044-
24851067/68/69/71/72,
24851070

Avinashi

Email ID - avin@indusind com
Tel No - 04206-273701/ 04/
05

Chennal

Email ID - manb@indusind com
Tel No - 044-044 4586 2500 /
01/02/03, 4596 2510, 4596
2520

Coimbatore

Emad 1D - coav@indusind com
Tel No - 0422-6602000,
6602003, 6602004, 6002007,
6602008, 2221770

Coonoor

Email 1D - cotn@indusind com
Tel No. - 0423-2232010,
2232020, 2232120

Dharmapuri

Ematrl ID - dhtn@ ndusind com
Tel No - 04342-269708,
269611,267809

Dindigul
Email ID - ditn@ ndusind com
Tet No - 0451-
2432120/130/140,

East Mogappalr, Chennal
Email ID - motn @indusind com

Erode

Email 1D - ermr@indusind com
Tel No - 0424-2259073/75/
76, 2257061

Guindy-Chennai
Tel No - 9840783684,
9840597674

Hosur

Email ID - hotn@indusind com
Tel No - 04344-240301/
240401 / 649588, 240101

Karur

Emall [D - kath@indusind com
Tel No - 04324-231402/ 3,
231404

Kilpauk

Email ID - kitn @ indusind com
Tel No - 044-
26420409/0423/0436/0468

Madipakkam
Email ID - mdtn@indusind com
Tel No - 044-22472363

Madurai

Email 1D - matn@mndusind com
Tel No - 0452-2520421/
2522850, 2520383

Medavakkam
Eman 1D - metn@indusind com
Tel No - 044-22770872

Mowlivakkam

Ema D - mana@indusind com
Tel No - 044-32006664/
32006665/32006667/32006668,
23821535

Namakkal

Email ID - natn@indusind com
Tel Mo - 04286-231722 7 0064
/00886, 225906

Namakkal
Tei No - 09840256619,
9842056619, 9840256710

Omalyr

Emarl 1D - omtn @1ndusind com
Tel No - 04290-
222581/582/583, 222584

R. § Puram

Email ID - cokm @indusind com
Tel No - (422-2541409 /29,
2545564

Rajajl Salai
Email ID - rstn@ indusind com
Tel No -044-30063030

Ramnagar

Email 1D - ratn@mndusind com
Tel No - 0422-2233015,
2233035, 2233045, 2233075,
2233025

Salem

Email ID - satn@indusind com
Tel No -0427-2446086,
2330505

Sankari

Emant ID - sntn@indusind com
Tel No - 04283 241600,
241001

Sirkali

Email ID - sktn @indusind com
Tel No - D4384-270B66,
2718686, 272866, 273866,
274866

Sivakasl|

Email ID - sitn @ indusind com
Tel No - 04562-276736,
276734

Sripermbadur

Email ID - stn@ ihdusind com
Tel No - 044-27183B880,
27163882, 27163877,
27163887, 27163889

T Nagar, Chennal
Email 1D - tntn@ indusind com
Tel No - 044-28156937/36

Teynampet
Email ID - tetn @indusind com
Tet No - 044-24315632 - 35

Thiruvaliur

Email ID - thtn @indusind com
Tel No - 044-2766 4381 /82 /
83/84

Tiruchlrapalli

Emad 1D - itn @ mndusind com
Tel No - 0431-2412237/
2462237, 2412217

Tirupur
Eman D - heo @indusind com
Tel No - 0421-2423875/885,
2422471

Tuticorin

Email 1D - tutn @indusind com
Tel No - 0461-2300702/3/4/6,
2300702

Valasaravakkam
Emaii ID - vatn @indusind com
Tel No - 044-24869171-75

Vellore

Emall ID - veta@ indusind com
Tel No - 0416-222 2263 /43,
2222243

(Tripura ]

Agartala

Email 1D agtr@ndusind com
Tel no 0381-2320040 /
2320061, 2327897

Dharmanagar
Email 1D dhtr @indusind com
Tel no 03822-235181 /235189

Uttar Pradesh

Agra

Email ID agup @ mdusind com
Tel no 0562-3018380 / 3018390
13018420, 3018420

Ahimanpur
Emall |D - ahup @indusind com
Tel No - 05414 -243033

Ajitpur
Email 1D - apup @ indusind com

Alambagh

Email 1D - abup@indusind com
Tel No - 0522-
2453245/2452245

Aligan]
Email 1D - ajup @mindusind com
Tel No - 05622-2329826/7

Aligarh
Tel No - 8172909622,
08172805622, 08172909635

Allahabad

Emaul |D - alup @indusind com
Tal No - 0532-2260354,
2260353, 2260355

Aminabad

Email ID - tumv@indusind com
Tel No - 0522-2638989,
2625994

Anaura Kala
Emauil 1D - akup @indusmind com
Tel No - -8795838011
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Anpara

Emall ID - anup&wndusind com
Tel No - 05446-272 747 / 74,
272 448

Bareilly
Email 10 - baup@indusind com

Te! No - 0581-2572112 /2113,

2471912

Bhadohi
Email 1D - bhup @ indusind com
Tel No -05414-224301 /302

Bhatsamau
Email ID - bsup @indusind com
Tel No - -8795839012

Chhapraula
Email iD - chup@ndusind com
Tel No - 0120-2673036

Chitaura

Email ID - ctup @indusind com
Tel No - 08650921112,
08795839006

Chowk
Email ID - coup @ indusind com
Tel No -0522-4935666

Dhanwa
Email ID - dhup @ indusind com
Tel No - -8735839008

Fatehpur

Tel No - 09838375222,
08172909313, 9839301999,
08172909315

Ghaziabad
Email 1D - ghup @indusind com
Tel No - 0120-4041560

Gomtinagar

Email ID - glup @indusind com
Tel No -0522-2304125/
2304126

Gopiganj

Email ID - ggup@ indusind com
Tel No - (05414-232056

Garakhpur
Emarl ID - goup @ indusind com
Tel No - 0551-6457144

Govind Nagar

Emat! 1D - gnup@mndusind com
Tel No - 0512-2650170/171/
186/ 187

Hapur

Emaii ID - harr@indusind cormn
Tel No - 0122-2306085/86,
2306087

Harduaganj
Email ID - hgup @indusind com

{ndira Nagar
Email ID - jup @indusind com
Tal No - 0522-2349953

Indirapuram
Email ID - mup@indusind com
Tel No - 0120-4299450

Jagdishpur

Emad 1D - jaup@indusing com
Tel No - 5361-265221,
265222, 265219

Jamalpur
Email 1D - jpup@indusind com
Tel No - -8795833003

Jhansi
Tel No - 8172509374,
B172909375

Kakarmatia
Email ID - kaup @indusind com
Tel No -0542-2270041/2

Kanpur

Ematl (D - kasn@indusind com
Tel No - 0512-2554057-60,
2554056

Khandamau
Eman 1D - khup@indusind com
Tel No - -8795839005

Kundol
Email ID - kuup@indusind com
Tel No - -8795838002

Lucknow

Emall ID - lula@indusind com
Tel No - 0522-4935600,
4935663

Meerut
Email iD - meup@ indusind com
Tel No -0121-2504771

Moradabad

Emait ID - moup &indusind com
Tel No - 0591-2410823
124/25/27, 2410827

Narepar Uparwar
Emall ID - nuup@ ndusind com

Noida Sector 18

Email ID - nogb@ndusind com
Tel No - 0120-418 7450,418
7451

Noida Sector 48
Email ID - nosc@indusind com

Noida Sector 51

Email ID - noup@indusind com
Tel No - 0120-2485566,
2480099

Nolda Sector 62
Email ID - noss @indusind com

Noida Sector 63
Email |0 - nozs @ indusind com
Tel No -0120-4782101-122

Noida Sector 110
Email ID - scup@indusind com
Tel No - 01204571270

Obaree

Email ID - cbup @ indusind com
Tel No - 0524B-225822 /
226822

Omega
Emai ID - soup @indusind com
Tel No -(0120-2395146

Palkaramau
Email ID - paup @indusind com
Tel No --B795839009

Palia Khalan
Email 1D - pkup@indusind com
Tel No - 05871-233021

Robertaganj
Emaul (D - roup@undusind com
Tel No - 05444-222852/851

Saharanpur
Tel No - 8172909468,
8172909444

Saifai

Ermarl ID - saup @indusind com
Tel No - 05688-276115/
276114

Sector-Alpha - Greater Noida
Email ID - nosa@indusind com
Tel No -0120-2395147

Sikrl Hissa
Emaul ID - shup @indusind com
Tel No --8795839004

Sirsa Etawah
Email ID - seup @indusind com

Tanda Sadat
Email 1D - tsup @indusind com
Tel No - -8735839010

Varanasl

Email ID - vams @indusind com
Tel No - (542-2222
147/148/149/153

Uttarenchal ]

Dehradun

Email ID derr@indusind com
Tal no 0135-2740411/
27405622, 2740433

:!Vest Bengal J
Alamgan)

Email ID - alwb @ indusind com
Amtala

Emall ID - amwb@&indusind com
Tet No - 033-24809834,
24809836

Asansol

Email ID - aswb @ indusind com
Tel No - 4341-2315665-8,
2315669

Bagnan
Email ID - bawb @indusind com
Tel No - DA214-266333/34/35

Barasat
Tel No - 8584047518,
8584047343

Baruipur
Eman 1D - brwb @ indusind com
Tel No - 033-24337022

Bhowanipore
Email 1D - bhwh@ indusind com
Tel No - 033-22870278

Burdwan
Tel No - 8584047377,
8584047379

Burra Bazar

Email 1D - cakk@indusmd com
Tel No - 033-22690171, 033-
22690172, 22690161

Dankuni
Tel No - 08584047462,
8584047464

Dhupguri

Email ID - dhwb @ indusind com
Tel No - 03563-250086,
250032

Diamond Harbour

Email iD - dwb@indusind com
Tel No - 03174-258584/85,
258583

Domjur
Emauil ID - doko@indusind com
Tel No - 033-26705908/09/10

Duniop
Email 1D - dnwb @indusind com
Tal No - 033-25313372-77

Durgapur

Email 1D - duwb @indusing com
Tel No - 0343-2543520/21/22/
23, 2543822

Gariahat

Email ID - caga@ indusind com
Tel No - 033-2460 9100/9101,
2480 9102, 24609103

Ghatal

Email ID - ghwb @indusind com
Tel No - 03225-257007/8,
257009

Howrah

Email ID - howb @ indusind com
Tel No - 033-
26660028/47/65/88, 26660016

Jaigaon

Emaul ID - jawh @ indusind com
Te! No - 03566-
265705/265706/265704

Kalimpong

Email 1D - kpwb@indusind com
Te! Nop - 03552-
256513/14/15116

Kankurgachl

Email ID - kawb@indusind com
Tel No - 033-23203665-70,
23203666
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Katwa

Emall ID - kiwb @indusind com
Tel No - 03453-
255554/53/255625

Kharagpur

Ematl ID - khwb @ indusind com
Tel No - 03222-
228328/29/30/31

Kalkatta

Email ID - caps @indusind com
Tel No -033-30212400/

01 (30 lines), 22896204,
22896205, 22896206

Madhyamgram

Email ID - mdwb @ indusind com
Te! No - 033-2526 7850
/51/53/ 54, 2526 7852

Malda

Email ID - mawb@indusind com
Tel No - 03512-265762 / 5769
/ 5887,265648

Patuli

Emall ID - ptwb @indusind com
Tel No - 033-24620132/ 36,
24620042

Prince Anwar Shah
Email ID - pawb @indusind com
Tel No - 033-24174796

R N Mukheriee Road, Kolkata
Email ID - mwb @indusind com
Tel No - 033-
22624731/33/34/35/36,
22624738

Raghunathpur
Emall ID - rawb @indusind com
Tel No - 033-26630311/13/14

Salt Lake, Sector- V

Email ID - siwb@indusind com
Tel No - 033 40075603
/604/605/606, 40075607

Salt Lake, Sector-1

Email ID - stwb @ indusind com
Tel No - 033 -23342267 /70/
71772173

Siligurl

Email ID - siwb@ indusind com
Tel No - 0353-2777940/ 41/
42/43, 2534474

Stock Exchange

Email ID - csex@indusind com
Tel No - 033-2237 2727, 2231
2725

Tamluk
Email (D - tawb@indusind com
Tel No - 03228-263028

Tarakeshwar

Email ID - tkwb @ indusind com
Tel No - 03212-278220/21,
278219

152

Dffices Abroad: ]

Dubai

Email ibldubai @indusind ae
Tel No - +971 4 3978803,
+ 971 4 3978804,

+971 4 3978805

London

Email sharukh wadia@
indusind com

Tel No —+442074845585,
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Tel +91 20 2634 3227/28 | Fax +91 20 2634 3241
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